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NOTICE OF THE TENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF SAMUNNATI 

FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Statutory Auditors 

Board of Directors of 

SAMUNNATI FINANCIAL INTERMEDIATION & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Samunnati Financial 

Intermediation & Services Private Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Monday, September 30, 

2024, at 2 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) in 

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder 

read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 

April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 

dated January 13, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular 

No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, General 

Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and other applicable circulars issued by the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Circulars”), to transact the 

businesses set out below. Members participating through the VC / OAVM facility shall be reckoned 

for the purpose of quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

The proceedings of the AGM will be recorded at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 

Baid Hi Tech Park, 8th Floor, No 129B, East Coast Road, Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai - 600 041. 

 

In compliance with the Circulars issued by the MCA, the Notice of the AGM and the Audited Financial 

Statements for the Financial Year 2023-24 along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon and other documents required to be attached thereon are being circulated to the 

Members of the Company through electronic mode. 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

 

ITEM NO. 1 – TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 ALONG WITH THE REPORTS  OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 

along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2024, as circulated to the Members and laid before the Meeting, be and are hereby 

approved and adopted.” 

 

ITEM NO. 2 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF M/S. V. NARAYANAN & CO, CHARTERED 

ACCOUNTANTS, AS THE STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141 and Section 142 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and the Guidelines for 

Appointment of Statutory Auditors of NBFCs issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide ref. no. 

RBI/2021-22/25 - DoS. CO. ARG/SEC. 01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021, including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, and as recommended 

by the Board of Directors, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

for the appointment of M/s V. Narayanan & Co, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 002398S), 

as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 (Three) consecutive years to hold office 

from the conclusion of the 10th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 13th Annual General 

Meeting (i.e. for FY 2024-25 to FY 2026-27).  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to 

negotiate and fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Years 2024-25 to 2026-27.” 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 

ITEM NO. 3 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF MS. PADMA CHANDRASEKARAN AS AN 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY FOR A PERIOD OF 5 YEARS 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Ordinary 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152, 160, 161, Schedule IV and 

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment 

and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) 

thereof, for the time being in force) read with the Articles of Association of the Company, approval 

and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, 

Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran (DIN: 06609477), who was appointed as an Additional Director 

(Independent Director) of the Company on July 16, 2024 and who holds the office till the conclusion 

of this Annual General Meeting and who meets the criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of 

the Act and the Rules made thereunder, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director, not 

liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five years with effect from July 16, 2024 up to July 15, 

2029. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 

settle any question or clarifications that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all 

such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient, and desirable for the purpose of giving 

effect to this resolution.” 

 

ITEM NO. 4 - APPROVAL FOR ISSUANCE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES ON PRIVATE 

PLACEMENT BASIS 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Special 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

and other applicable provisions of the Act, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus 

and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 as may be amended from time to time, and subject to such 
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other applicable laws, rules and regulations and guidelines and in accordance with the provisions of 

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the Members of the 

Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred 

to as the “Board”, which term shall include any committee(s) and/or any of the Director(s) or 

person(s) authorised by the Board to exercise powers conferred by this resolution to the extent 

permitted by law) to raise funds by way of making offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to sub-

ordinated or unsubordinated, listed or unlisted, senior, secured or senior unsecured or unsecured, 

rated or unrated, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) or Market-Linked Debentures (“MLDs”) 

(“Debentures”) or any other permissible debt securities as may be determined by the Board, issued 

by the Company on a private placement basis, in one or more series/tranches, on such terms and 

conditions including the price, coupon, premium/ discount etc. as may be determined by the Board 

and the Debentures may be issued up to a tenure as may be determined by the Board, up to an overall 

limit of INR 10,000 MN (Indian Rupees Ten Thousand Million only) for the financial year 2024-25. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded, to 

pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge all or any part of the moveable or immovable 

properties of the Company and/or creating a floating charge in all or any movable or immovable 

properties of the Company to or in favour of banks, financial institutions, investors and any other 

lenders to secure the amount raised by issuance of Secured Debentures by the Company from time to 

time for the payment of the principal and/or together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and all 

other monies payable by the Company in respect of such Debentures provided that the aggregate 

indebtedness secured by the assets of the Company does not exceed a sum of INR 10,000 MN (Indian 

Rupees Ten Thousand Million only) for the financial year 2024-25. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anil Kumar S G, Director (DIN: 01189011) or Mr. Gurunath N, 

Wholetime Director (DIN: 02799586) or the Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 

severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to execute all such 

agreements, documents, undertakings, instruments, applications, etc., as may be necessary for giving 

effect to the above resolution, with power to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise 

in regard to the aforesaid resolution including but not limited to filing of necessary forms with the 

Registrar of Companies and to comply with all other requirements in this regard.” 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

 

S/d- 

S. Arun Kumar 

Company Secretary 

Place: Chennai  

Date: September 06, 2024 
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NOTE: 

 

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 

OF THE COMPANY SUBJECT TO PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION. However, as per 

the Circulars issued by MCA, the entitlement for appointment of proxy has been dispensed with for 

the General Meetings conducted through VC / OAVM. Accordingly, the Attendance Slip, Proxy Form 

and Route Map have not been annexed to this Notice of AGM. 

 

2) Corporate Members intending to nominate their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting 

are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to 

attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

3) The explanatory statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed 

hereto and forms an integral part of the Notice. 

 

4) Members may kindly note that since the Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be 

held through VC / OAVM, the login credentials shall be shared with the Members along with the 

instructions for logging in, to their registered mail ids. In case of any clarifications in this regard, 

Members can reach out to us at secretarial@samunnati.com or 044-66762400.  

 

5) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 

Section 170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained 

under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder shall be available 

electronically for inspection. 
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

 

A. EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The following statement contains all the material facts relating to the businesses as set out in this Notice: 

 

ITEM NO. 2 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF M/S. V. NARAYANAN & CO, CHARTERED 

ACCOUNTANTS AS THE STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY 

 

The Members may note that M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 

003990S / S200018) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 (Three) 

consecutive years from the conclusion of the 7th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion of 

the 10th AGM of the Company (i.e. for FY 2021-22 to FY 2023-24).  

 

In accordance with the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Auditors of NBFCs issued by Reserve Bank 

of India (RBI) vide ref. no. RBI/2021-22/25 - DoS. CO. ARG/SEC. 01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 

2021, M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP have completed a term of 3 (Three) years as Statutory Auditors 

of the Company and are not eligible for re-appointment as statutory auditors of the Company. 

 

In this regard, the Board had, at its Meeting held on September 06, 2024, recommended to the Members 

for their approval, the appointment of M/s V. Narayanan & Co, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 

002398S), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 (Three) consecutive years, to hold 

office from the conclusion of this 10th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 13th Annual General 

Meeting (i.e. for FY 2024-25 to FY 2026-27). 

 

The Board has considered some key parameters including the firm’s experience, reputation, profile of 

partners, audit experience, clientele served, technical knowledge etc., prior to recommending the 

appointment. The Company has received consent and eligibility letter from M/s V. Narayanan & Co, 

Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 002398S) to act as Statutory Auditors of the Company along with 

confirmation that, if appointed, their appointment, would be within the prescribed limits under the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Board recommends passing of the resolution at item no. 2 of the notice as an ordinary resolution. 

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested in the resolution as set out in Item no. 2, except to the extent of their shareholding. 

 

ITEM NO. 3 – TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF MS. PADMA CHANDRASEKARAN AS AN 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

 

Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati’s (DIN:00016990) second term as Independent Director was until September 24, 

2027. Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati, owing to other business and personal commitments, had stepped down 

as Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 15, 2024. 

 

Further to this, the Company has identified Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran (DIN 06609477), for appointment 

as an Independent Director of the Company. Considering her qualification, experience and expertise and 

based on review of all the declarations given by her including the fit and proper declaration and the 

background verification carried by the Company, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had 
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through a resolution by circulation passed on July 13, 2024, recommended to the Board, the appointment 

of Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran as an Independent Director of the Company.  

 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

has appointed Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran as an Additional Director (Independent Director) of the 

Company w.e.f. July 16, 2024, who holds office as an Additional Director until this Annual General 

Meeting. Further, the Board has recommended the appointment of Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran (DIN: 

06609477), as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five years with 

effect from July 16, 2024 up to July 15, 2029. 

 

In the opinion of Board, Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, and she is a fit and proper person for appointment as a Director 

as per the RBI regulations and is independent of the Management. The brief profile of Ms. Padma 

Chandrasekaran and other information as required under the Secretarial Standards are disclosed under 

Para – B of this statement. 

 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act. The appointment of 

Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran is being placed before the Members for their approval by means of a Ordinary 

Resolution. The Board recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution set out in Item No 3. 

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or 

interested in the resolution as set out in Item no. 3, except to the extent of their shareholding. 

 

ITEM NO. 4 - APPROVAL FOR ISSUANCE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT 

BASIS 

 

The Company in the ordinary course of business proposes to raise funds by way of issuance of debt 

securities including subordinated, listed or unlisted, senior secured, senior unsecured, secured or 

unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) or Market Linked Debentures (“Debentures”) or any 

other permissible debt securities as may be determined by the Board. 

 

The Board had at its Meeting held on January 23, 2024, approved issuance of non-convertible debt 

securities subject to approval of the Members up to an aggregate limit of INR 8,000 MN (Indian Rupees 

Eight Thousand Million only) for FY 2024-25 and the same was approved by Members of the Company at 

the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on March 20, 2024.  

 

Considering the business plan and the proposed sanctions and facilities in the pipeline for FY 2024-25, 

the Board had at its Meeting held on May 28, 2024, approved the revised sub limits and the overall 

borrowing limits of the Company. In order to align with the aforesaid borrowing limits, the Board had 

also approved the revised limits for issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on a Private Placement basis 

for FY 2024-25 upto an aggregate limit of INR 10,000 MN (Indian Rupees Ten Thousand Million only). 

 

Accordingly, the approval of the Members is being sought, by way of a special resolution, to offer and 

issue non-convertible debentures on a Private Placement basis for FY 2024-25 upto an aggregate limit of 

INR 10,000 MN (Indian Rupees Ten Thousand Million only). 

 

Pursuant to Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 

(“Prospectus and Allotment Rules”), the following disclosures are made: 
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Sr 

No. 
Particulars Disclosure 

1. Particulars of the offer 

including date of passing of 

Board resolution 

Proviso to Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules 

prescribes that where the amount to be raised through offer 

or invitation of Non-Convertible Debentures, it shall be 

sufficient if the company passes a special resolution only 

once in a year for all the offers or invitations for such NCDs 

during the year.  

 

Pursuant to this resolution under Section 42 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, the specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs 

shall be decided at the time of issuance of the relevant NCDs. 

The date of the relevant resolution of the board and / or 

committee authorising the issuance shall be 

mentioned/disclosed in the private placement offer cum 

application letter for each offer/issue of NCDs. 

 

The Board had at its Meeting held on May 28, 2024, approved 

issuance of non-convertible debt securities subject to 

approval of the Members up to an aggregate limit of INR 

10,000 MN (Indian Rupees Ten Thousand Million only) for FY 

2024-25. 

2. Kinds of securities offered 

and the price at which 

security is being offered 

Sub-ordinated or unsubordinated, listed or unlisted, senior 

secured or senior unsecured or unsecured, rated or unrated, 

Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) or Market-Linked 

Debentures or any other permissible debt securities as may 

be determined by the Board (“Debentures”) 

 

The NCDs will be offered/issued either at par or at premium 

or at a discount to face value, which will be decided by the 

Board of Directors, or any Committee authorised by the 

Board of Directors, for each specific offer/issue, on the basis 

of the interest rate/effective yield determined, based on 

market conditions prevailing at the time of the respective 

offer/issue of NCDs. 

3. Basis or justification for the 

price (including premium, if 

any) at which the offer or 

invitation is being made 

Not applicable 

 

The securities proposed to be issued are non-convertible 

debt instruments, which will be offered/issued either at par 

or at premium or at a discount to face value in accordance 

with the terms decided in respect thereof. 

4. Name and address of valuer 

who performed valuation 

Not Applicable  

 

  
5. Amount which the company 

intends to raise by way of 

such securities 

The aggregate amount to be raised through the issuance of 

Debentures pursuant to the authority under this resolution 

shall not exceed the overall limit of INR 10,000 MN (Indian 

Rupees Ten Thousand Million only) during the financial year 

9



 

 

 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are 

concerned or interested, either directly or indirectly, in the proposal contained.  

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends that the Members approve the resolution mentioned 

in item no. 4 as a Special Resolution. 

  

2024-25.  
6. Material terms of raising such 

securities 

The specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs shall be as 

approved by the Board or any Committee authorised by the 

Board of Directors, at the time of issuance of the respective 

securities. These disclosures will be specifically made in each 

private placement offer cum application letter for each 

offer/issue. 

7. Proposed time schedule The aforesaid resolution shall be valid for issuance of 

subordinated, listed or unlisted, senior secured, senior 

unsecured, secured or unsecured Non-Convertible 

Debentures (“NCDs”) or Market Linked Debentures 

(“Debentures”) or any other permissible debt securities as 

may be determined by the Board for the financial year 2024-

25. 

 

The allotment of Debentures will be done within 60 (Sixty) 

days from the date of circulation of private placement offer 

letter cum application form. 

8. Purposes or objects of offer The proceeds of Debentures issued shall be utilised for the 

expansion and growth of business of the Company. 

9. Contribution being made by 

the Promoters or Directors 

either as part of the offer or 

separately in furtherance of 

objects 

None of the Promoters or Directors or Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company shall be subscribing to the 

Debentures issued. 

 

10. Principle terms of assets 

charged as securities 

The assets charged along with the amount and extent of 

charge creation for specific offer/issue of Secured NCDs shall 

be as approved by the Board or any Committee authorised by 

the Board of Directors, at the time of issuance of the 

respective securities. 

 

The terms and class of assets to be charged will be provided 

in the relevant Deed of Hypothecation and the charge will be 

created within timelines stipulated under the Companies 

Act. 2013. 
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B. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 2 ON GENERAL MEETINGS 

 

Name of the Director Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran 

DIN 06609477 

Date of Birth 15/03/1961 

Age 63 

Qualification(s) 

• Bachelor’s degree in mathematics / Statistics 

from the University of Calcutta;  

• MBA (PGP 1984) from IIM Ahmedabad and  

• MBA with specialization in Telecommunications 

from the University of San Francisco, California 

Date of Appointment 

(Initial Appointment) 
Not Applicable 

Nature of his expertise in specific 

functional areas 

30 years of experience as an executive, 

entrepreneur, board member in the for-profit and 

philanthropic sectors in India and globally. She has 

been on the advisory board and investment 

committees of several venture capital companies. 

Number of Board Meeting attended 

during FY 2023-24 
Not applicable 

Inter-se relationship with any other 

directors and KMPs of the Company 
None 

Directorships in other Companies 

• Archean Chemical Industries Limited 

• PNB Metlife India Insurance Company Limited 

• Health Sensei India Private Limited 

• Adani Capital Private Limited 

• SKYFI Education Labs Private Limited 

Number of shares held in the 

Company  
NIL 

Details of remuneration sought to 

be paid 
Not Applicable 

Details of remuneration last drawn NIL 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

 

S/d- 

S. Arun Kumar 

Company Secretary 

Place: Chennai  

Date: September 06, 2024 
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Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors are pleased to present the Tenth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 

Statement of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited (“the Company” or 

“Samunnati”) for the year ended March 31, 2024.  

 

A. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

 

The summarised Standalone results of your Company are given in the table below: 

                                                                                                                                            (INR MN)                                                                 

Particulars 
Year ended                     

31st March 2024 

Year ended  

31st March 2023* 

Revenue from Operations (A) 2,192.94 1,971.54 

Other Income (B) 118.56 138.63 

Total Income (A+B) 2,311.50 2,110.17 

Expenditure 2,060.01 3,407.54 

Total Expenses (Including Interest & Depreciation) 2,060.01 3,407.54 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 251.49 (1,297.37) 

Less: Tax expenses:   

1. Current tax - 5.03 

2. Deferred tax 41.00 (318.60) 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax 210.49 (983.80) 

Other Comprehensive Income  (25.66) 0.66 

Total Comprehensive Income  184.83 (983.14) 

         *Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary 

 

The summarised consolidated results of your Company are given in the table below:  

(INR MN)                                                                             

Particulars 
Year ended                       

31st March 2024 

Year ended                       

31st March 2023* 

Revenue from Operations (A) 25,039.57 18,774.47 

Other Income (B) 439.81 223.25 

Total Income (A+B) 25,479.38 18,997.72 

Expenditure 25,478.72 20,885.71 

Total Expenses (Including Interest & Depreciation) 25,478.72 20,885.71 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 0.66 (1,887.99) 

Less: Tax expenses:   

1. Current tax 0.23 5.10 

2. Deferred tax 79.53 (427.72) 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (79.10) (1,465.37) 

Other Comprehensive Income  (31.80) 0.73 

Total Comprehensive Income  (110.90) (1,464.64) 

         *Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary 
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Despite the challenging environment, Samunnati as a group registered an aggregate GTV of INR 

35,256 MN in Agri finance business & INR 22,891 MN in Agri commerce business during FY 2024. FY 

2024 has also been a profitable year for the Company both on standalone and consolidated basis. 

The Profit Before Tax on a standalone basis stood at INR 251.49 MN compared to a loss of INR 

1,297.37 MN in the previous year. On a consolidated basis, the Profit Before Tax stood at INR 0.66 

MN compared to a loss of INR 1,887.99 MN during the previous year. 

 

Samunnati has made significant strides in operational efficiency, reducing employee costs from INR 

881 MN during FY 2023 to INR 736 MN during FY 2024, a reduction of 20%. This was achieved by 

reducing headcount from 620 to 536, a 16% decrease. Despite this, the Company managed to grow 

its assets by 20% and increase operational efficiency by 12% through strategic cost reductions. 

 

During the year under review (as of May 2024), the Company raised Pre-Series E capital aggregating 

to INR 2,169 MN through issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares and 

Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares. The existing investors as well as some new 

investors participated in these rounds of capital raise, which indicates the investors’ confidence in 

the Company’s business model. 

 

Since inception, the Company has disbursed a cumulative amount of US$ 3 billion (as of March 31, 

2024) and aims to disburse US$ 7 billion by FY 2027, targeting an ambitious compounded annual 

growth rate (CAGR) of 50%. Samunnati's mission for the near future is to facilitate financial and 

trade supply chain solutions for one in every four farming households, enabling the Agri and food 

supply chain through innovative ideas powered by technology at scale. To achieve this ambitious 

mission, Samunnati has devised detailed action plans for each customer segment. 

 

For the Agri Enterprises segment, the disbursement is projected to grow at 40% CAGR. In the Farmer 

Collectives segment, the disbursement is expected to grow at 85% CAGR. This aggressive growth 

strategy highlights Samunnati’s commitment to deepening its penetration in the relatively 

untapped Farmer Collectives segment and elevating it to an asset class. 

 

During FY 2024, Samunnati's debt raise has doubled to INR 11,039 MN. The debt strategy for the 

fiscal year focused on ensuring liquidity, with a diversified mix of instruments and institutions. The 

Company onboarded 13 new lenders during the year under review. Additionally, Samunnati's Net 

Worth increased by 38% as of March 31, 2024 and stood at INR 7,689 MN compared to INR 5,601 MN 

as of March 31, 2023. 

 

Samunnati has demonstrated remarkable growth and operational efficiency in FY 2024, setting 

the stage for an ambitious future. The Company's strategic initiatives, coupled with its focus on 

innovation and technology, position it well to achieve its mission of transforming the agriculture 

and food value chains in India. With a strong foundation and clear action plan, Samunnati is poised 

for sustained growth and significant impact in the years to come. 

 

B. SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS  

 

Standalone 

 

The Company’s Asset under Management (AUM) grew by INR 1,823 MN to INR 13,335 MN as of 

March 31, 2024, compared to INR 11,512 MN as of March 31, 2023. Revenue from operations grew 

by INR 221.40 MN (growth of ~ 11%) to INR 2,192.94 MN during FY 2024 from INR 1,971.54 MN 
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during FY 2023. The Profit before tax improved significantly from a loss of INR 1,297.37 MN during 

FY 2023 to a profit of INR 251.49 MN during FY 2024. The Cash generated from operations before 

working capital changes also increased from INR 1,379.23 MN during FY 2023 to INR 1,558.71 MN 

during FY 2024. 

 

During the year, the Company raised capital of INR 2,169 MN (including capital raised during May 

2024) and debt funding of INR 7,199 MN (excluding Debentures and Commercial Papers) from 

Banks, NBFCs and foreign institutions, despite adverse financial market conditions. 

 

Summary of Operations of Subsidiaries 

 

• Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which 

trades in Agro commodities. The Gross Transaction Value / Sales of the subsidiary during FY 

2024 increased to INR 21,986.33 MN (growth of ~ 30%) from INR 16,940.51 MN during FY 2023.  

 

• Samunnati Finance Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated 

on September 22, 2021. The wholly owned subsidiary is yet to commence its business 

operations and is awaiting the issuance of Non-Banking Finance Company license from the 

Reserve Bank of India. 

 

• Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (“SAIL”) (formerly known as Kamatan Farm 

Tech Private Limited), which deals in trading of Agro commodities, was acquired as a wholly 

owned subsidiary on April 16, 2021. Apart from trading in Agro Commodities, SAIL also strives 

to make markets work for small holder farmers through strategy, innovation, establishing non-

linear business growth channels of crowd and community sourced rural franchisee network of 

Agri Entrepreneurs, Village Level Entrepreneurs, Farmer Financing, Agri value chain financing 

through anchor institutions like Agri startups, Business Correspondents and online debt 

marketplace channels. The sales of SAIL increased significantly from INR 22.95 MN during FY 

2023 to INR 925.03 MN during FY 2024. 

 

• Samunnati Foundation, a wholly owned subsidiary, is a not-for-profit company incorporated 

under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. It was established to enable inclusive growth and 

create opportunities for the unserved/ underserved communities in the agricultural ecosystem 

in order to make a tangible difference to the livelihood of small holder farmers. Samunnati 

Foundation has been excluded from consolidation as its inclusion is not material to the Group 

and being not for profit organisation, impairs its ability to transfer any benefit to the 

Company. 

 

• Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited was incorporated as a wholly 

owned subsidiary of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited on March 08, 2022, which 

intends to manage an Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with 

emphasis on Sustainability, Scalability and Impact, as and when the AIF is set up. Samunnati 

Investment Management Services Private Limited is yet to commence its business operations. 

 

C. COMPANY OVERVIEW 

 

Your Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India 

and is a specialised Agri Value Chain enabler that provides innovative and customised financial 

and non-financial solutions. 
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Samunnati leverages on the ‘social capital’ and ‘trade capital’ in buyer-seller relationships via 

Samunnati Aggregators, through non-traditional sourcing, risk assessment and mitigation, aided 

by cutting edge technology and an experienced management team with deep domain expertise. 

All these contribute to building a quality business that is sustainable and inclusive growth. These 

values are embedded in the genetic code of Samunnati and demonstrated in the way the 

Company’s processes operate. 

 

With an aim to offer holistic, suitable solutions to the Agri-value chain players, Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private Limited (“Samunnati Agro”) was incorporated on October 14, 2016 as a wholly 

owned subsidiary of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited. Samunnati 

Agro offers trade facilities and market linkages to Agri-value chain players.  

 

Your Company acquired Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (“SAIL”) (formerly known 

as Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited) as a wholly owned subsidiary with effect from April 16, 

2021.  

 

Your Company has also incorporated Samunnati Finance Private Limited as a wholly owned 

Subsidiary on September 22, 2021. Samunnati Finance Private Limited will engage in the business 

of providing Financial Assistance and improving access to finance to underserved geographies and 

customer segments by providing or arranging loans and advances. Samunnati Finance Private 

Limited has made an application for obtaining Registration/License from the Reserve Bank of India 

(RBI), to operate as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC). Upon receipt of the 

Registration/Licence from RBI, the NBFC business of the Company would be transferred to 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited by way of a slump sale, as part of the Scheme of Arrangement. 

 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited has incorporated Samunnati Investment Management 

Services Private Limited on March 08, 2022, as a wholly owned subsidiary, with an intent to 

manage an Alternative Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with emphasis on 

Sustainability, Scalability and Impact.  

 

D. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT  

 

Industry Structure and Key Trends 

 

Agriculture and allied sectors significantly contribute to India’s overall growth and development as 

it engages more than 50% of the workforce and contributes about 21% to the country’s Gross Value 

Added (GVA). The rapid population expansion in India is the main factor driving the industry. The 

rising income levels in rural and urban areas, have also contributed to an increase in the demand 

for agricultural products across the country. The total allocation to Ministry of Agriculture and 

Farmers Welfare in Budget 2024 stands at around INR 1.27 crore against last year's Budget of 

approximately INR 1.15 lakh crore, which represents a hike of around 10 per cent. This highlights 

the government’s commitment to promoting the growth and development of the agriculture sector. 

 

Also, facilitating the availability of hassle-free credit to the Agricultural sector has been the top 

priority for the Government of India as the same plays a vital role in farm sector development and 

facilitates adoption of new technologies. 
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The Russia-Ukraine conflict, ongoing since February 2022, has continued to impact global prices 

for food, fuel, and fertilizers, driving inflation and prompting monetary policy tightening 

worldwide. Developing countries, particularly in South Asia, have faced economic challenges due 

to weaker currencies, higher import prices, rising living costs and a stronger dollar, making debt 

servicing more expensive. 

 

In FY 2024, these pressures have persisted. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has raised the repo rate 

by 250 basis points since May 2022 to curb inflation, with rates peaking in the first half of the fiscal 

year 2023-24. This has led to higher borrowing costs and liquidity constraints. Businesses and 

consumers face increased interest expenses, reducing disposable income and investment capacity, 

thereby slowing economic growth. 

 

Higher borrowing costs mean businesses struggle to finance operations and expansion, while 

consumers face more expensive loans, reducing spending power. Liquidity constraints, exacerbated 

by tighter monetary policies, limit access to credit, further straining economic activity. These 

factors collectively hinder economic recovery, maintaining pressure on prices and affecting overall 

financial stability. In view of this, Samunnati also experienced increased cost of borrowing/ impact 

on the fund raise plans and liquidity constraints for business expansion. 

 

Opportunities and Threats 

 

As performance of the agriculture sector remains critical to growth and employment in the country, 

the Government has been supporting the sector through various interventions like providing income 

support, strengthening of institutional finance and insurance and the push given to access for 

credit. The Government has also been focusing on providing thrust towards allied sector so as to 

diversify the farmers’ income to make them more resilient to weather shocks. 

  

In FY 2024, the Indian government increased the agricultural credit target to INR 22-25 lakh crore, 

focusing on sectors such as animal husbandry, dairy and fisheries. This increase is aimed at 

providing greater financial support to these industries, promoting growth and sustainability. The 

budget also continues support for initiatives like the PM Kisan Samman Nidhi, allocating INR 60,000 

crore to provide direct financial assistance to over 11.8 crore small and marginal farmers. The 

Pradhan Mantri Fasal Bima Yojana (PMFBY) received allocations to ensure crop insurance for four 

crore farmers, protecting them against adverse weather and other risks. 

 

Additionally, the government emphasizes a cluster-based approach to encourage collaboration 

among farmers, state, and industry. This approach aims to improve the supply of inputs, extension 

services and market connections, fostering sustainable agricultural growth. To support young 

professionals and agricultural startups, the Agriculture Accelerator Fund continues to receive 

backing, focusing on innovative solutions to increase productivity and profitability in farming 

through modern technology. 

 

Furthermore, the budget aims to address post-harvest losses with public-private partnerships to 

enhance infrastructure and storage facilities, which are crucial for improving food security and 

driving economic growth. The key to transforming India into an agricultural powerhouse is the 

development of agricultural technology as India lags behind developed nations in agricultural 

technology. More than half of the farming community lack basic farming equipment, three of every 

four farms are at risk of crop damage from pests and weather and 50 percent of India’s farmers 

lack access to traditional financing sources. This presented a good business opportunity for 
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Samunnati Agro in the farm equipment space especially those related to farm mechanization viz., 

sprayers, dryers, weed harvesters, bailers and farm implements etc. These equipments are more 

sought after by farmers and the farmer collectives and would enable Samunnati Agro to become a 

formidable player in the farm equipment distribution space. There are many start-ups that are 

innovative and technology-driven but do not have a conventional distributor/dealer network to 

reach the products to the consumers at large and may not have the reach in connecting with the 

farmers at large through a single source. Considering Samunnati’s strong presence in the FPO eco-

system, Samunnati Agro can be a distributor for these products as Samunnati has the reach in the 

FPO Space with about 5500+ FPOs in its fold. In view of this, Samunnati Agro has recently ventured 

into trading of farm implements, equipment, agricultural processing machines, accessories and 

tools. 
 

The advent of digital technologies and the evolution of multiple Agtechs have put the farmer right 

at the heart of the entire ecosystem where historically, the market was centred around mandis 

and farmer was just one of the stakeholders. There are various solutions which are now being made 

more farmer-centric in each part of the Agri value chain that is digitizing, be it finance, inputs, 

outputs, market linkage or advisory. 

 

All these initiatives like increasing the availability of credit, facilitation of better-quality inputs 

through a clean plant program, investments in digital infrastructure and skill development will all 

help in increasing farm-level productivity. The increased focus on driving millet cultivation, 

consumption and exports, higher investment in fisheries and promotion of natural farming are all 

helpful from a crop diversification, sustainability and nutrition standpoint. 

 

Samunnati’s approach to success in this competitive environment is to offer more touchpoints and 

broader portfolio of products and services across the value chain, encompassing both trade and 

finance solutions from market linkage and financing to advisory. In line therewith, Samunnati has 

created a digital marketplace which is a one-stop solution for credit, inputs, outputs, market 

linkage and advisory and would satisfy the requirements of all stakeholders in the Agri value chain. 

 

Sustainability Initiatives at Samunnati 

 

Samunnati's sustainability strategy rests on four main pillars: sustainable lending, sustainable 

operations, sustainable supply chains and overall sustainable impact. 

 

• Sustainable Lending 
 

Samunnati focuses on climate-smart and gender-focused portfolios. The Company has accessed US$ 

12.2 MN through Green Bonds since 2021 and during FY 2024, secured US$ 9 MN through Orange 

Bond from the Impact Investment Exchange (IIX) to finance women-led enterprises and Farmer 

Producer Organizations (FPOs). During FY 2025, Samunnati aims to raise US$ 35 MN through 

thematic capital, targeting to reach at least 20% of the AUM to be in green and social assets. 

 

Samunnati has collaborated with USAID, USDFC and Rabo Foundation to support sustainable 

financing and risk mitigation. These partnerships help secure credit guarantees and thematic funds, 

bolstering the green and social asset portfolio of the Company. USAID and USDFC have provided 

credit guarantees worth US$ 12.5 MN (~INR 1 billion) and US$ 25 MN (INR 2 billion), enhancing 

financial stability and risk management. Rabo Foundation’s involvement (INR 900 MN) supports 

sustainable finance frameworks and capacity building in the agricultural sector. 
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• Sustainable Operations 

 

Samunnati’s ESG strategy encompasses governance, risk management and reporting. The 

organization targets key ESG risks such as GHG emissions, E&S risks and climate-smart agriculture 

while seizing opportunities in product innovations and building enabling ecosystems. This approach 

aims to improve financial access, market access and gender participation in agriculture. 

 

• Sustainable Supply Chains 

 

Samunnati through its wholly owned subsidiary, Samunnati Foundation, drives initiatives in FPO 

promotion and development, gender inclusion, climate-smart agriculture and rural youth 

engagement. Programs like the FPO Academy and partnerships with organizations such as Corteva 

and DCM Shriram support all-women FPCs and projects like Responsible Soya. 

 

Case Studies and Biochar Summary 

 

Samunnati’s biochar initiative highlights sustainable practices by converting biomass and crop 

residues into soil carbon through smokeless pyrolysis, reducing CO2 emissions. Four biochar 

manufacturing facilities have been established, with over 200 farmers trained. Positive impacts on 

crop yields have been demonstrated through field trials. Partnerships with major textile 

manufacturers and research institutes have been established with aim to enhance the scalability 

and impact of biochar applications, including generating carbon credits and improving agricultural 

practices. 

 

These initiatives underscore Samunnati's commitment to integrating sustainability into its 

operations, enhancing the livelihoods of smallholder farmers and contributing to broader 

environmental and social goals. 

 

Target for the year ahead 

 

Samunnati aims to achieve a total AUM of US$ 275 MN by end of FY 2025, with 20% (US$ 55 MN) 

allocated to green and social assets. The planned capital raise for thematic investments stands at 

US$ 35 MN. 

 

Business Performance Overview 

 

Samunnati has consistently enabled various agriculture and food value chains to operate at higher 

equilibrium through customized solutions, including working capital, aggregation and market 

linkage, higher accessibility through technological interventions, advisory services and capacity 

building. The Company has successfully partnered with over 3,500 Agri Enterprises and 6,500 

Farmer Collectives, addressing the needs of these two principal client segments.  

 

• Agri Enterprises 

 

For Agri Enterprises, Samunnati primarily offers Agri Receivables Finance and Term Loans, which 

together constitute nearly all of the assets under management (AUM) for this segment. During FY 

2024, the total disbursement in this segment reached INR 25,066 MN, marking an 18% increase from 

FY 2023. The AUM grew to INR 7,885 MN, a 15% rise from the previous fiscal year. Notably, the 

growth rates for both disbursement and AUM in FY 2024 surpass those between FY 2022 and FY 
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2023, with disbursement growth doubling and AUM growth increasing sixfold. Despite such robust 

growth, the repayment efficiency in this segment has remained impressive at 99.1%. 

 

• Farmer Collectives 

 

The key products for Farmer Collectives include Instant Preapproved Loans (IPL), Input Loans, 

Output Loans, Term Loans and Samunnati Farmer Loans (SAFAL), all contributing significantly to 

the AUM share in this segment. In FY 2024, the total disbursement in this segment soared to INR 

9,711 MN, representing a substantial 75% increase from FY 2023. The AUM reached INR 4,980 MN, 

a 50% increase from the previous year. According to FPO financing trends in India published by 

APMAS, Samunnati holds a dominant 75% market share, with NABKISAN a distant second at 20%, 

and other players like FWWB and Caspian Debt contributing a mere 5%. This dominance underscores 

Samunnati’s leadership in the nascent yet crucial Farmer Collectives segment. Despite the inherent 

risks associated with financing these collectives, Samunnati has maintained an impressive 

repayment efficiency of 97.8%. 

 

Financial Performance 

 

The AUM of the Company as of March 31, 2024 stood at INR 13,363 MN, a 20% increase from March 

2023. The Profit Before Tax on a standalone basis stood at INR 251.49 MN compared to a loss of 

INR 1,297.37 MN in the previous year. On a consolidated basis, the Profit Before Tax stood at INR 

0.66 MN compared to loss of INR 1,887.99 MN during the previous year. The Gross Non-Performing 

Assets (GNPA) stood at 2.33%, while the Net Non-Performing Assets (NNPA) stood at 1.29% at the 

end of FY 2024. The overall repayment efficiency for Agri Finance business stood at 98.2%. 

 

Operational Efficiency 

 

Samunnati has made significant strides in operational efficiency, reducing employee costs from INR 

881 MN during FY 2023 to INR 736 MN during FY 2024, a reduction of 20%. This was achieved by 

reducing headcount from 620 to 536, a 16% decrease. Despite this, the Company managed to grow 

its assets by 20% and increase operational efficiency by 12% through strategic cost reductions. 

 

Future Potential 

 

Since inception, the Company has disbursed a cumulative amount of US$ 3 billion (as of March 31, 

2024) and aims to disburse US$ 7 billion by FY 2027, targeting an ambitious compound annual 

growth rate (CAGR) of 50%. Samunnati's mission for the near future is to facilitate financial and 

trade supply chain solutions for one in every four farming households, enabling the Agri and food 

supply chain through innovative ideas powered by technology at scale. To achieve this ambitious 

mission, Samunnati has devised detailed action plans for each customer segment. 

 

For the Agri Enterprises segment, the disbursement is projected to grow from INR 25,066 MN in FY 

2024 to INR 67,645 MN in FY 2027, representing a 40% CAGR. In the Farmer Collectives segment, 

the disbursement is expected to increase from INR 9,711 MN in FY 2024 to INR 67,645 MN in FY 

2027, representing a 85% CAGR. This aggressive growth strategy highlights Samunnati’s 

commitment to deepening its penetration in the relatively untapped Farmer Collectives segment 

and elevating it to an asset class. 
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Equity and Debt 

 

During the year under review (as of May 2024), the Company raised Pre-Series E capital aggregating 

to INR 2,169 MN through issuance of Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares and 

Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares. The existing investors as well as some new 

individual investors participated in these rounds of capital raise which highlights the investor’s 

confidence in the Company’s business model. 

 

During FY 2024, Samunnati's debt raise has doubled to INR 11,039 MN. The debt strategy for the 

fiscal year focused on ensuring liquidity, with a diversified mix of instruments and institutions. The 

Company onboarded 13 new lenders during the year under review. Additionally, Samunnati's Net 

Worth increased by 38% as of March 31, 2024 and stood at INR 7,689 MN compared to INR 5,601 MN 

as of March 31, 2023. 

 

Samunnati Foundation 

 

Some of the key initiatives/projects undertaken by Samunnati Foundation during FY 2024 are given 

below: 

 

a) Development of Hadoti Agrofarm Producer FPC 

Samunnati Foundation, in collaboration with DCM Shriram Foundation, is empowering smallholder 

farmers of 14 villages in the Ladpura Block of Kota. The program aims to transform the Hadoti 

Agrofarm FPC into a sustainable entity. Key areas of focus include member activation, governance 

enhancement, market integration, financial management, and digital adoption. 

 

Key initiatives include the following: 

 

• Shareholder Engagement: Noteworthy progress in strengthening Hadoti FPC, resulting in a 

threefold increase in membership. The FPC boasts a total of 410 shareholders, with over 50% 

being women. Additionally, INR 0.37 MN of shareholder funds have been mobilized. 

 

• Procurement and Sales of input: FPC has conducted agri input purchases worth INR 2.95 MN 

and sales worth INR 2.97 MN, engaging 503 unique farmers in these transactions. 

 

• Procurement and Sales of output: FPC procured a total of 146.8 MT of commodities, including 

mustard, wheat and soyabean, from 76 farmers. Sales amounted to INR 5 MN. Farmers 

benefitted by additional price of INR 55-60 per quintal through these transactions. 

 

These accomplishments signify substantial progress in uplifting the Hadoti Agrofarm Producer FPC, 

demonstrating tangible outcomes in shareholder engagement, market participation, and economic 

benefits for local farmers. 

 

b) Promotion of 10 All Women FPCs Supported by Corteva:  

 

Samunnati Foundation, in collaboration with Corteva Agrisciences, is empowering smallholder 

women farmers in Madhya Pradesh and Jharkhand.  
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Key initiatives include the following: 

 

Project prioritized the enhancement of skills and knowledge for both the FPC staff and Board of 

Directors. Comprehensive capacity-building training sessions were conducted for both the Board of 

Directors and FPC staff. The FPC has successfully incorporated various Standard Operating 

Procedures (SOPs) in their respective FPCs with the approval of the Board of Directors.  

 

• Community engagement and Member Mobilization: - The total interactions with 16000+ 

farmers across 1000+ meetings underscored the commitment to engaging and mobilizing 

community members. A cumulative addition of 5047 shareholders and mobilization of a share 

capital of INR 3.67 MN has been achieved. 

• Agri Input Business: FPCs procured agri inputs worth INR 9.95 MN and achieved a total sales of 

INR 8.33 MN benefiting 2300 farmers. 

• Agri Output Business: Procurement of soybean, paddy, and maize from 127 small and marginal 

farmers generated revenue of INR 4.02 MN upon sale to local traders. 

• Digitization:  FPC details and member details digitisation through FPO next. 

• Innovation: Installation of four vegetable drying units (Raheja solar) in Jharkhand FPCs aims to 

introduce new technologies, enhancing the marketability of dried vegetables through Raheja 

Solar. This will serve as an additional income source to FPC. 

 

c) Strengthening of Vijayalaxmi Sakhi FPC & Manjiri Sakhi FPC in Maharashtra 

 

The recent MOU signing with Swayam Shikshan Prayog (SSP) heralds a transformative chapter for 

Vijayalaxmi Sakhi Producer Company Limited & Manjiri Sakhi Producer Company Limited in 

Maharashtra. Through business line identification, commodity selection and completion of the 

baseline survey, we've laid the groundwork for impactful change. Additionally, directors and staff 

orientation, coupled with a substantial working capital loan of INR 1 MN for Manjari Sakhi FPC, signify 

our commitment to catalysing sustainable development and empowering local communities.  

 

d) Promotion of Responsible Soya  

 

The "Promotion of Responsible Soya" initiative in Madhya Pradesh, funded by the Samunnati 

Foundation and led by the Madhya Bharat Consortium of Farmers Producer Company Limited 

(MBCFPCL), aims to boost soybean production sustainably. Through improved agricultural practices, 

the program aims to increase yields by over 20%, reduced child labor in soya production by up to 

80%, and ensured equal wages for women 

 

Key initiatives include the following: 

 

• Farmer Engagement: 4000 farmers registered, with baseline data collected for 3500, 

demonstrating extensive farmer involvement. 

• Training and Awareness: 267 events and sessions held on Sustainable Agriculture Practices, 

gender laws, and workers' health safety, indicating a strong educational effort. 

• Demonstrations on Good Practices: 445 demonstrations conducted on seed treatment, 

improved varieties, sowing methods, weed management, and integrated pest and nutrient 

management, showcasing practical training in sustainable agriculture. 

• Adoption of Sustainable Techniques: Emphasis on eco-friendly practices like bio-pesticide seed 

treatment and mechanical weeding in demonstrations highlights the program's focus on 

sustainable agriculture. 
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e) FPO Academy:  

 

The FPO Academy Learning Platform is dedicated to facilitating the holistic growth of Farmers 

Producer Organization (FPO) CEOs, Accountants, Staff, Board of Directors, FIG leaders, and Member 

farmers. 

 

Key Features: 

 

• Extensive Course Portfolio: Offering a diverse range of 65 meticulously curated courses, the 

platform hosts over 850 high-quality videos. These courses cover crucial domains such as FPO 

governance, compliance, organizational management, marketing strategies, financial acumen, 

business planning, leadership skills, technology integration and the agri-value chain. 

• Multilingual Access: Breaking language barriers, the FPO Academy provides content in English 

and five regional languages—Hindi, Tamil, Telugu, Kannada, and Marathi. This commitment 

ensures inclusivity, allowing every learner to access transformative knowledge in their preferred 

language. 

• Dual Accessibility: Transition seamlessly between devices with the FPO Academy, which is 

accessible through both web and mobile platforms. This dual accessibility guarantees a 

consistent and enriching learning experience, empowering learners to engage with content at 

their convenience. 

 

Additionally, the FPO Academy has conducted over 30 training sessions, benefiting more than 500 

individuals. These efforts further underscore the commitment to equipping stakeholders with 

valuable skills and knowledge for the advancement of FPOs and agricultural communities. 

 

f) Rural youth drone technology training Program:  

 

• Samunnati Foundation in collaboration with Indian Oil Corporation, conducted a 13-day 

residential training program on Drone Technology for 22 rural youth between December 11 - 23, 

2023, at Kanha Shanti Vanam.  

• Participants, including ITI-IOT students and FPO directors, were trained in drone applications in 

agriculture and related entrepreneurship skills.  

• The program aimed to empower participants to become Agri pruners and positively impact 

farmers' lives. 

 

Strategic Interventions with Ecosystem 

 

Informal interaction on policy issues, especially related to FPO policy, continued with Ministry of 

Agriculture from FY 2023. A key transformation in FY 2024 was the formal participation of Samunnati 

representatives in several high-level expert and working groups, tasked with generating inputs on 

specific themes related to lending to FPOs, technology, marketing and institution building. These 

provided a platform for the Company to share its experiences, provide feedback on bottlenecks and 

opportunities and suggest options to address constraints. It also enabled the Company to interact with 

senior representatives from various Ministries of Government of India and the State Governments, 

besides regulatory bodies, financial institutions and civil society organizations.  

 

One major outcome of these series of engagements was the notification by the Ministry of Agriculture 

of an amendment to the credit guarantee fund for FPOs, administered by NABARD, expanding the 

eligibility of NBFCs to be covered under its ambit. This notification resulted from a set of suggestions 
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specifically contributed by Samunnati to a working group on FPO financing. The positive impact of this 

change will be visible during FY 2025 on our finances, as a result of lower ECL provisioning for FPO 

loans which are eligible for credit guarantee cover.  

 

Our engagement with FICCI also continued apace during FY 2024, where our representatives chair two 

task forces, on FPOs and Agri Finance. This multi-stakeholder platform enabled us to build a wider 

community of dialogue partners, including key industry players besides FPOs, start-ups and financial 

institutions. 

 

On the ground, Samunnati continued to be recognized as the lead player in the FPO business space, 

dominating lending, while actively working on market linkages, technology and training. Our network 

of FPOs grew further to cross 5500 and the Company is positioned as a high-recall brand enjoying 

significant trust in this sector. The growing number of CSR-supported projects (including support from 

MNCs like Corteva, Walmart and Unilever) is testimony to the Company’s expanding presence in the 

Agri space. 

 

Samunnati Research Desk 

 

Samunnati’s Research Desk continued to grow in its third year. Existing customers preferred to renew 

the service contract and the new clients joined via subscription route. Also, the global clientele has 

increased during FY 2024, solely through word of mouth publicity. The fact that the Company is 

providing quality research at the right time helped the cause. 

 

Research Desk provides host of services ranging from crop cutting, yield estimation to price forecasting 

providing market intelligence in form of regular weekly, monthly and crop survey reports. Samunnati’s 

FPO network was of a great help for the same by providing credibility to our research. The client base 

ranges from Indian and foreign MNC traders to domestic manufacturers. 

 

Research serves internal customers like credit, risk, business departments for our programs like ML and 

STF. Regular weekly reports and Risk reports are shared with the concerned internal departments that 

help them make informed decisions. During FY 2024, the desk released more than 400 reports that 

covered more than 25 commodities and around 12-16 value chains ranging from oilseeds, pulses, spices, 

grains, dry fruits, to dairy, aqua, textile, ethanol value chains regularly. 

 

While the Research Desk is in the business of assessing commodity demand, supply and provide an 

outlook, the success rate is not 100%. Occasionally, unanticipated events like government policy, 

weather vagaries and global events end up influencing research outcomes.  Regular update on those 

are also given to all the stakeholders to keep them updated on the changing circumstances.    

 

Going forward, the Research Desk is intensifying the efforts for a diversified client base. The desk has 

also taken up a project of value chain research in three districts of Assam for WWF. If this works out 

to the satisfaction of the client, it has the potential to grow more.  
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Awards & Recognitions 

 

During the year under review, the Company has received the following awards and recognitions: 

 

• Samunnati has been certified as a great workplace (Category: Mid-Sized Organisations). 

Samunnati was certified as a Great Place to Work for the fourth time in a row during the year 

under review and also featured in the mid-size places to work in the country.  

• Samunnati has been awarded at the Best Financial Support to sugar and allied industry and the 

sugar and ethanol awards ceremony in Delhi in February 2024. The award ceremony was 

organized by Chini Mandi (JK Sugar Group). 

 

Financial Performance 

 

Standalone Financial Performance 

 

On a Standalone basis, the Company recorded a total Income of INR 2,192.94 MN during FY 2024 

compared to INR 1,971.54 MN during FY 2023 which represents a growth of ~ 11%. The Net Income 

increased significantly to INR 1,063.62 MN during FY 2024 compared to INR 755.80 MN during FY 

2023, registering a growth of ~41% despite increase in cost of funds due to the external environment. 

The Profit/ (Loss) before tax improved significantly from a loss of INR 1,297.37 MN during FY 2023 

to a profit of INR 251.49 MN during FY 2024. Impairment/ provision was INR 158.37 MN during FY 

2024 compared to INR 1,370.72 MN during FY 2023. The total Comprehensive Income stood at INR 

184.83 MN during FY 2024 compared to a loss of INR 983.14 MN during FY 2023. 

 

The Company’s Net Worth on a standalone basis has significantly increased to INR 7,688.76 MN as at 

March 31, 2024, compared to INR 5,601.46 MN as at March 31, 2023 on account of the equity infusion 

and profits.  

 

The cash generated from operations before working capital has increased from INR 1,379.23 MN 

during FY 2023 to INR 1,558.71 MN during FY 2024. The total assets have significantly improved from 

INR 15,323.57 MN as of March 31, 2023, to INR 19,943.89 MN as of March 31, 2024. The Company’s 

net portfolio has increased from INR 10,448.04 MN as at March 31, 2023 to INR 13,810.40 MN as at 

March 31, 2024. 

 

Consolidated Financial Performance 

 

On a consolidated basis, the total income of the Company has increased to INR 25,479.38 MN for FY 

2024 compared to INR 18,997.72 MN during FY 2023. The Impairment/ provision was INR 158.37 MN 

compared to INR 1,308.96 MN during FY 2023. The Company also turned profitable on a consolidated 

basis registering a Profit Before Tax of INR 0.66 MN compared to a loss of INR 1,887.99 MN during FY 

2023. The total Comprehensive Loss has significantly reduced to INR 110.90 MN compared to a loss 

of INR 1,464.64 MN during FY 2023. At a consolidated level, the Company’s Net Worth stood at INR 

6,372 MN as at March 31, 2024, compared to INR 4,580.08 MN as at March 31, 2023. 

 

E. COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company had at the Meeting held on October 28, 2021, approved a 

Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) for: 
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(a) the slump sale (i.e., transfer and vesting) of the NBFC business of the Company as a going 

concern to Samunnati Finance Private Limited; and 

(b) post giving effect to (a) above, the amalgamation of Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 

into the Company.  

 

The Company had obtained the approval of all stakeholders for the Scheme and had, along with 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited and Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited, filed a joint 

petition before the National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai (“NCLT”) for approval for the 

Scheme. 

 

The NCLT heard the matter and took on record the NOCs submitted by the regulators and in view 

of the absence of any material objections from any statutory authorities and as all the requisite 

statutory compliances had been fulfilled, the NCLT sanctioned the Scheme and pronounced the 

order sanctioning the Scheme on December 23, 2022. 

 

The Effective Date of the Scheme is the date of receipt of the NBFC license by Samunnati Finance 

Private Limited or filing the copy of the NCLT order with the Registrar of Companies, whichever 

is later. 

 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited had submitted an application with the Reserve Bank of India 

(RBI) during December 2021 seeking the grant of Certificate of Registration (CoR) for undertaking 

the business of NBFC, in line with the Scheme of Arrangement. However, after seeking additional 

information and documents, RBI had returned the application during August 2022 stating that 

entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands, an FATF grey-list jurisdiction, indirectly held more 

than 20% in Samunnati Finance Private Limited. 

 
Subsequently, Cayman Islands was removed from the list of Jurisdictions under Increased 

Monitoring (‘FATF grey-list’) at the plenary held during October 2023 and RBI had issued a press 

release dated November 1, 2023, confirming the same.  

 
Further to this, Samunnati Finance Private Limited has filed an application with the Reserve Bank 

of India on December 01, 2023, seeking grant of Certificate of Registration (COR) for undertaking 

the business of a Non-Deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND) under Section 

45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. In this regard, the Reserve Bank of India has sent a 

communication explaining the modalities for surrender of the NBFC license by the Company and 

issuance of the new NBFC license in the name of Samunnati Finance Private Limited. 

 

F. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT 

 

During May 2024, the Company raised further equity through allotment of second tranche of the 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares, the details of which are given 

below: 

 

Date of Allotment Name of the Shareholder No of Shares 

May 09, 2024 Equitane DMCC 24,870 
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Consequent to the same, the paid-up share capital as on the date of this report stands at, INR 

2,59,45,800/- (Rupees Two Crore Fifty Nine Lakhs Forty Five Thousand and Eight Hundred Only) 

divided into 5,73,861 (Five Lakhs Seventy-Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty-One only) Equity 

Shares of INR 10/- each and 20,20,719 (Twenty Lakhs Twenty Thousand Seven Hundred and 

Nineteen only) Preference shares of INR 10/- each. 

 

No other material changes and commitment that affect the financial position of the Company has 

occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the 

date of this report. 

 

G. ALTERATION OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

 

As part of the capital raise, the Articles of Association of the Company has been altered during the 

year under review by substituting the Articles of Association with new set of Articles of Association 

in order to capture the terms of the Amendment to the Amended and Restated Shareholders’ 

Agreement dated March 20, 2024. 

 

H. DIVIDEND 

 

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 

I. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

 

The Company has made Profit After Tax of INR 210.49 MN during the Financial Year 2023-24. Further 

to this, the Company has transferred INR 42.10 MN, being 20% of the profits, to statutory reserve 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

J. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24. 

 

K. NON-ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS 

 

During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from 

public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequently, no amount on account 

of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on March 31, 2024. 

 

L. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

 

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate with 

the size and nature of business of the Company. Further, the internal financial control system of 

the Company is supplemented with internal audit, regular reviews by the management and checks 

by the Statutory Auditors. It provides reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and 

operational information, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the 

Company, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of accounting records 

and ensuring compliance with the Company’s policies. The Audit Committee monitors this system 

and ensures adequacy of the same. The Statutory Auditors of the Company also provide their 

opinion on the internal financial control framework of the Company. 
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During the year, no material or serious omissions and commissions have been observed by the 

Auditors, reflecting the efficiency and adequacy of internal financial controls. 

 

M. CHANGES TO SHARE CAPITAL 

 

During the period from April 1, 2023 till the date of this report, the Company has issued 1,75,450 

(One Lakh Seventy Five Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty) Pre-Series E Compulsorily Convertible 

Cumulative Preference Shares and 41,450 (Forty One Thousand Four Hundred and Fifty) Pre-Series 

E Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares. The details of the same are given below: 

 

S. 

No 

Date of 

Allotment 

Name of the Shareholder Type of Shares No of 

Shares 

1. 
April 06, 

2023 

responsAbility Sustainable Food – 

Asia II, SLP through its general 

partner responsAbility 

Sustainable Food – Asia II (GP), 

S.À R.L. 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

1,22,000 

2. 
April 06, 

2023 
Mr. Ramaraj Rajasekhar 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

4,000 

3. 
April 06, 

2023 
Mr. Vaidyanathan Shankar 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

4,000 

4. 
April 06, 

2023 
Mr. Venkataramani Srivathsan 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

2,000 

5. 
April 06, 

2023 

Mr. Colladi Venkatesan 

Janakiraman 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

1,000 

6. 
April 06, 

2023 
Mr. Muthukumar Neelamani 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

1,000 

7. 
March 27, 

2024 

Equitane DMCC (formerly known 

as ATIF Holdco DMCC) 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

16,580 

8. 
March 27, 

2024 
EE-FI AIF 

Pre-Series E Optionally 

Convertible Redeemable 

Preference Shares 

41,450 

9. 
May 9, 

2024 

Equitane DMCC (formerly known 

as ATIF Holdco DMCC) 

Pre-Series E Compulsorily 

Convertible Cumulative 

Preference Shares 

24,870 

Total 216,900 

 

Consequent to the same, the paid-up share capital as on the date of this report stands at, INR 

2,59,45,800/- (Rupees Two Crore Fifty Nine Lakhs Forty Five Thousand Eight Hundred Only) divided 

into 5,73,861 (Five Lakhs Seventy Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty One only) Equity Shares 

of INR 10/- each and 20,20,719 (Twenty Lakhs Twenty Thousand Seven Hundred and Nineteen only) 

Preference Shares of INR 10/- each. 
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The details of the opening and closing Authorized and Paid-up capital of the Company is provided 

below: 

 

Particulars 
Opening 

(April 01, 2023) 

Closing 

(Date of this 

Report) 

Authorized Capital (INR) INR 3,05,00,000/- INR 3,05,00,000/- 

Paid Up Capital (INR) INR 2,37,76,800/- INR 2,59,45,800/- 

 

N. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

The disclosure with regard to voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the Company 

as required under proviso to Section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 16(4) of 

the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.   

 

O. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS 

 

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential rights during the Financial Year 

2023-24.  

 

P. DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS / SWEAT EQUITY SHARES 

 

The Company currently administers an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) which was initially 

constituted during 2015. The Board had approved the amended Employee Stock Option Plan 2019, 

at its Meeting held on May 22, 2019, and the same was also approved by the Members at the 

Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 24, 2019. Further with a view to broaden the terms and 

conditions, including those on vesting, exercise, lapse and surrender, the Board has approved the 

Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 (“ESOP Scheme 2022”), at its Meeting held on February 10, 2022, 

and the same was approved by the Members in the Extraordinary General (EGM) Meeting held on 

March 07, 2022. 

 

The ESOP was introduced with the intention of motivating employees to contribute to the growth 

and profitability of the Company, as well as to create a sense of ownership and participation 

amongst the employees. 

 

In addition to the above, the Company administers Management Stock Option Plan (MSOP) 

constituted during 2019 to provide wealth creation opportunities to the Promoter of the Company. 

It is to be noted that the Company is a registered startup and has been issued a certificate of 

recognition as a ‘startup’ by the Government of India, with registration number DIPP6002. Further, 

as per applicable law (Rule 12(1), the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014), a 

startup is permitted to issue employee stock options to its Promoter.  

 

Q. DISCLOSURES UNDER RULE 12(9) OF THE COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES) 

RULES, 2014 

 

Particulars Value 

Outstanding Options at the beginning of the 

year – April 01, 2023 
74,454 
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Particulars Value 

Options Granted during FY 2024 - 

Options Vested during FY 2024 - 

Options Exercised during FY 2024 - 

Options Lapsed 4,334 

Total No. of Shares arising as a result of 

exercise of option during FY 2024 
No options exercised during FY 2024 

Exercise Price (Weighted) No options exercised during FY 2024 

Variation of terms of options 
No variation in the terms of the options 

during FY 2024 

Money realised by exercise of options No options exercised during FY 2024 

Total No. of Options in force as on March 31, 

2024 
70,120 

Employee wise details of options granted to:  

(1) key managerial personnel; Nil 

(2) any other employee who has been granted 

options in any one year amounting to five 

percent or more of options granted during 

that year 

Nil 

(3) identified employees who were granted 

option, during any one year, equal to or 

exceeding one percent of the issued capital 

(excluding outstanding warrants and 

conversions) of the company at the time of 

grant 

Nil 

 

R. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO 

 

The Company’s Capital Adequacy ratio stood at 23.25% as on March 31, 2024, which is well within 

the regulatory limits applicable for NBFC-ND-SI as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 

S. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 

 

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the 

annual return in Form MGT-7 is placed on the website of the Company and is available at 

https://site.samunnati.com/annual-returns/ 

 

T. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE YEAR 

 

S No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN Category 
Changes during the 

year, if any 

1. Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan 01501266 
Independent 

Director 
Nil 

2. Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati 00016990 
Independent 

Director 

Cessation w.e.f. July 

15, 2024* 

3. Ms. Padma 06609477 Additional Appointed w.e.f.  
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Chandrasekaran Director 

(Independent) 

July 16, 2024* 

4. Dr. Venkatesh Tagat 02728441 
Independent 

Director 

Retired w.e.f. 

September 17, 2023 

5.  Mr. Krishnan K 01109189 
Independent 

Director 

Appointed w.e.f. 

September 18, 2023 

6. 
Mr. Mahendran 

Balachandran 
00121640 

Nominee 

Director 
Nil 

7. Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan 06572288 
Nominee 

Director 
Nil 

8. Mr. Akshay Dua 03144843 
Nominee 

Director 
Nil 

9. Ms. Rekha Unnithan 08354141 
Nominee 

Director 

Cessation w.e.f. 

November 29, 2023 

10. Mr. Stephen Dongwon Lee 08640160 
Nominee 

Director 

Appointed w.e.f. 

November 30, 2023 

11. Mr. Anil Kumar S G 01189011 Director & CEO Nil 

12. Mr. Gurunath Neelamani 02799586 
Whole-time 

Director 
Nil 

13. Mr. Lalit Malik AKDPM0939K CFO (KMP) 
Cessation w.e.f.  

May 29, 2023 

14. Mr. S Arun Kumar AIPPA8757R 
Company 

Secretary 

Cessation w.e.f.  

August 16, 2023 

Re-instated w.e.f. 

October 31, 2023 

15. Mr. Anand Subramaniam AAXPS3215J CFO (KMP) 
Appointed w.e.f.  

April 18, 2024* 

* Changes post end of the financial year 

 

Dr. Venkatesh Tagat, Independent Director, due to other commitments, had requested that his 

term as an Independent Director which ended on September 17, 2023, be not extended. Further 

to this, the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on September 18, 2023, approved the 

appointment of Mr. Krishnan K as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a 

period of five years with effect from September 18, 2023. 
 

Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati’s (DIN:00016990) whose second term as Independent Director was until 

September 24, 2027, has, owing to other business and personal commitments, stepped down as 

Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 15, 2024. 
 

Further to this, the Company identified Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran (DIN 06609477), for 

appointment as an Independent Director of the Company. Considering her qualification, experience 

and expertise and based on review of all the declarations given by her including the fit and proper 

declaration and the background verification carried by the Company, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee had through a resolution by circulation passed on July 13, 2024, 

recommended to the Board, the appointment of Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran as an Independent 

Director of the Company.  

 

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
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Committee, has appointed Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran as an Additional Director (Independent) of 

the Company w.e.f. July 16, 2024. Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran holds office as an Additional Director 

until the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

In this regard, the Board recommends to the Members the appointment of Mr. Padma 

Chandrasekaran as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five 

years with effect from July 16, 2024, up to July 15, 2029. The notice convening the Annual General 

Meeting, sets out the details. 

 

U. BOARD EVALUATION  

 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board 

Committees, and individual Directors. The performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking 

inputs from all the Directors on the basis of criteria such as the Board Composition and Structure, 

effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, etc.  

 

The performance of the Committees was evaluated after seeking inputs from the Committee 

Members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of Committees, effectiveness of 

Committee meetings, etc.  

 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent Directors, the 

Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views 

of executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 

 

V. DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT 

 

The Company is a foreign owned and controlled company (FOCC) as per the provisions of the 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as more than 50% of the Share Capital of the Company 

on a fully diluted basis is held by foreign investors.  

 

During FY 2024, the Company has made the following downstream equity investments in its wholly 

owned subsidiaries: 

 

Name of the Subsidiary 

Amount of 

downstream 

equity investment 

(INR MN) 

Automatic / 

Approval 

Route 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private 299.96 Automatic Route 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited 100.00 Approval Route * 

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private 

Limited 
199.99 Automatic Route 

 

* Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, the Company had incorporated a wholly owned 

subsidiary, Samunnati Finance Private Limited, to which, the NBFC business of the Company 

would be transferred by way of a slump sale in accordance with the Scheme. In this regard, 

Samunnati Finance Private Limited has made an application to the Reserve Bank of India for 

obtaining a NBFC license. In order to meet the requirements with regard to Net Owned Funds, 

the Company had infused equity of INR 100 MN during November 2023. At the time of filing Form 

DI for the said downstream investment, the Authorised Dealer had advised the Company to seek 
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the approval of the Ministry of Finance for the said downstream investment as Samunnati Finance 

Private Limited proposed to be in the business of a NBFC. Pursuant to the same, the Company 

has obtained the approval of the Ministry of Finance (MoF) vide MoF’s letter dated July 8, 2024 

and the Form DI filed by the Company has been approved. 

 

In accordance with the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person 

Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2017 read with Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt 

Instruments) Rules, 2019, your Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of 

your Company. The same would be available at the Annual General Meeting for inspection by 

Members. 

 

W. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, inter-alia, provides for criteria and qualifications for 

appointment of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, Board diversity, 

remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, etc. The policy can be accessed at the 

following link: https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-

private-limited/  

 

X. DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times during the Financial Year 2023-24. The details of 

Board Meetings held during the year and the attendance of Directors at the said Meetings are given 

below: 

BOARD MEETINGS 

Sl. 

No 
Date of Meeting 

No. of Directors who 

attended the 

meeting 

1. May 10, 2023 9/9 

2. 
May 29, 2023 8/9 

May 30, 2023* 6/9 

3. August 11, 2023 8/9 

4. October 31, 2023 7/9 

5. January 23, 2024 9/9 

6. March 19, 2024 7/9 

                         * Adjourned Meeting 

 

Y. LIST OF COMMITTEES 

 

The composition of the Board Committees as of the date of this report, are as below:  
 

1. Audit Committee 
 

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Krishnan K           -  Chairman 

b) Mr. N. Srinivasan   -  Member 

c) Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran -  Member 

d) Mr. Akshay Dua               –  Member 

 

33

https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-private-limited/
https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-private-limited/


 

 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. N. Srinivasan    –  Chairman 

b) Mr. Krishnan K   -  Member 

c) Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran -  Member 

d) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan     –  Member     

e) Mr. Stephen Dongwon Lee    –  Member     

 

3. Risk Management Committee 

 

               The composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Krishnan K   -  Chairman 

b) Mr. N. Srinivasan   -  Member 

c) Mr. Akshay Dua   -  Member 

d) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -  Member 

e) Mr. N. Gurunath   -  Member 

 

4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

                The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Krishnan K            -  Chairman 

b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -  Member 

c) Mr. N. Gurunath   -  Member 

 

5. IT Strategy Committee 

 

               The composition of the IT Strategy Committee is as follows: 

a) Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran -       Chairman 

b) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -      Member 

c) Mr. N. Gurunath   -       Member 

d) Mr. Raj Vallabhaneni  -       Member 

e) Mr. Lakshmana Perumal  -       Member 

 

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

               The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. N. Srinivasan      -      Chairman 

b) Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan   -      Member 

c) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -      Member 

 

7. Finance Committee 

 

               The composition of the Finance Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -     Member 

b) Mr. Gurunath N    -    Member  
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8. Investment Committee 

 

               The composition of the Investment Committee is as follows: 

a) Mr. Anil Kumar S G   -     Member 

b) Mr. Gurunath N    -    Member  

 

Z. DETAILS OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

The details of Committee Meetings held during the year and the attendance at the said Meetings 

are given below: 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 

No. of Members who 

attended the 

Meeting 

1.  May 29, 2023 3/3 

2.  August 10, 2023 2/3 

3.  October 30, 2023 3/3 

4.  January 22, 2024 3/3 

   

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 

No. of Members who 

attended the 

Meeting 

1. 
May 22, 2023 5/6 

May 26, 2023* 6/6 

2. August 09, 2023 5/6 

                 * Adjourned Meeting 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 

No. of Members who 

attended the 

Meeting 

1.  May 24, 2023 6/6 

2.  August 09, 2023 6/6 

3.  October 30, 2023 6/6 

4.  January 22, 2024 5/5 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 

No. of Members who 

attended the 

Meeting 

1. January 22, 2024 3/3 
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IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 

No. of Members who 

attended the 

Meeting 

1. June 06, 2023 5/5 

2. August 07, 2023 4/5 

3. November 02, 2023 3/5  

4. January 30, 2024 4/5 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 

No. of Members who 

attended the 

Meeting 

1. January 23, 2024 2/3 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  April 12, 2023 2/2 

2.  April 26, 2023 2/2 

3.  May 24, 2023 2/2 

4.  June 09, 2023 2/2 

5.  June 28, 2023 2/2 

6.  June 29, 2023 2/2 

7.  July 24, 2023 2/2 

8.  July 26, 2023 2/2 

9.  August 09, 2023 2/2 

10.  August 14, 2023 2/2 

11.  August 21, 2023 2/2 

12.  September 21, 2023 2/2 

13.  September 27, 2023 2/2 

14.  September 29, 2023 2/2 

15.  October 25, 2023 2/2 

16.  November 16, 2023 2/2 

17.  November 28, 2023 2/2 

18.  December 18, 2023 2/2 

19.  December 21, 2023 2/2 

20.  December 22, 2023 2/2 

21.  December 27, 2023 2/2 

22.  December 29, 2023 2/2 

23.  January 06, 2024 2/2 

24.  January 17, 2024 2/2 

25.  January 23, 2024 2/2 

26.  January 29, 2024 2/2 

27.  February 05, 2024 2/2 

28.  February 14, 2024 2/2 

29.  February 21, 2024 2/2 

36



 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

30.  February 28, 2024 2/2 

31.  March 01, 2024 2/2 

32.  March 13, 2024 2/2 

33.  March 14, 2024 2/2 

34.  March 21, 2024 2/2 

35.  March 22, 2024 2/2 

36.  March 26, 2024 2/2 

37.  March 27, 2024 2/2 

38.  March 28, 2024 2/2 

39.  March 29, 2024 2/2 

 

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  April 17, 2023 2/2 

2.  May 17, 2023 2/2 

3.  June 19, 2023 2/2 

4.  July 18, 2023 2/2 

5.  August 17, 2023 2/2 

6.  September 28, 2023 2/2 

7.  October 19, 2023 2/2 

8.  November 20, 2023 2/2 

9.  December 20, 2023 2/2 

10.  January 02, 2024 2/2 

11.  January 19, 2024 2/2 

12.  February 22, 2024 2/2 

13.  March 19, 2024 2/2 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING 

S. No. Date of Meeting 
No. of Members who 

attended the Meeting 

1.  January 23, 2024 3/3 

 

AA. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS  

 

The particulars of loans, investments and guarantees for FY 2023-24 have been provided in the 

notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 

BB. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory regulatory requirements of the Reserve Bank of 

India guidelines, the Companies Act, 2013, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other applicable statutes and 

regulations. 
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CC. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AS OF MARCH 31, 2024 

 

As of March 31, 2024, the Company has five wholly owned subsidiaries as given below: 

 

(a) Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited, which offers trading facilities and market 

linkages to Agri value chain players. 

 

(b) Samunnati Foundation - It was established to enable inclusive growth and create 

opportunities for the unserved/ underserved communities in the agricultural ecosystem in 

order to make a tangible difference to livelihood of small holder farmers. 

 

(c) Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (formerly known as Kamatan Farm Tech 

Private Limited), apart from trading in Agri commodities, strives to make markets work for 

small holder farmers through strategy, innovation, establishing non-linear business growth 

channels of crowd and community sourced rural franchisee network of Agri Entrepreneurs 

(AE), Village Level Entrepreneurs (VLE), Farmer Financing, Agri value chain financing through 

anchor institutions like Agri startups, Business Correspondents (BC), online debt marketplace 

channels. 

 

(d) Samunnati Finance Private Limited, will engage in the Business of providing Financial 

Assistance and improving access to finance to underserved geographies and customer 

segments by providing or arranging loans and advances in the Agricultural Sector. It has made 

an application for obtaining NBFC license with the Reserve Bank of India. The NBFC business 

of the Company would be transferred to Samunnati Finance Private Limited as part of the 

Scheme of Arrangement. 

 

(e) Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited, will manage an Alternative 

Investment Fund (“AIF”) (Category 2 – Debt fund) with emphasis on Sustainability, Scalability, 

and Impact. Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited is a subsidiary of 

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited and is a step-down subsidiary of the Company.  

  

The information as required under the first proviso to sub-Section (3) of Section 129 is given in 

Form AOC - 1 in Annexure I. 

 

DD. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the prescribed Form AOC-2 for the financial year 2023-

24 is appended as Annexure II to this Board’s report. 

 

Also, the Related Party Disclosures under Regulation 53(f) read with Part A of Schedule V of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have been provided in 

Note 43 of the notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. 

 

EE. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS 

 

During the year under review, no significant and material orders have been passed by the 

regulators, Courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and future operations of the 

Company. 
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FF. DETAILS OF CREDIT RATINGS OF THE COMPANY DURING FY 2023-24  

 

During the year under review, the rating given by the Rating Agencies are as given below: 

 

Rating agency 
Ratings as on April 

01, 2023 

Changes/revisions 

of rating during 

the year, if any 

Ratings as on 

March 31, 2024 

CRISIL - Long term CRISIL BBB/Stable - CRISIL BBB/Stable 

CRISIL - Short term CRISIL A2 - CRISIL A2 

CARE CARE BBB/Stable - CARE BBB/Stable 

 

GG. DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE OF LISTED DEBENTURES 

 

The Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company and Commercial Papers are listed on the Bombay 

Stock Exchange.  

 

The details of Debenture Trustees of the listed NCDs are given below: 

 

Name of the Debenture 

Trustee 
Complete Postal Address 

Email ID and Contact 

Number 

Catalyst Trusteeship 

Limited 

Windsor, 6th floor, Office 

no.604, CST Road, Kalina, 

Santacruz, Mumbai – 400098 

E mail ID: 

nidhi.vasa@ctltrustee.com 

Contact No: 022-4922 0555 

Orbis Trusteeship Services 

Private Limited 

4A, Ocus Technopolis, Sector 

54, Golf Club Road, Gurgoan, 

Haryana - 122002  

E mail ID: 

trusteeship@orbisfinancial.in 

Contact No: 0124 454 6527/ 

565 

 

HH. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Independent Directors of the Company have submitted declarations as required under Section 

149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) stating that they meet the criteria of independence 

as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors 

fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made thereunder for appointment as 

Independent Directors including their integrity, expertise and experience and confirm that they 

are independent of the Management.  

 

II. RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY MD/WTD FROM A COMPANY OR RECEIPT OF 

COMMISSION/REMUNERATION FROM ITS HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY 

 

The Company’s Directors have not received any commission/ remuneration from the Subsidiary 

Companies. 

 

JJ. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Committee 

under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
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2013. Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual 

and endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and 

harassment including sexual harassment. The policy on Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, can be accessed at the following link: 

https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-financial-intermediation-and-services-private-limited/  

 

During the financial year 2023-24, your Company has not received any complaints pertaining to 

sexual harassment.  

 

KK. STATUTORY AUDITORS, THEIR REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with the Financial Statements together with the Notes 

to the Financial Statements are enclosed to this report. The observations made in the Auditors’ 

Report are self-explanatory, contain no qualification, reservations, adverse remarks and 

disclaimers and therefore do not call for any further comments. 

  

The Board of Directors at its Meeting held on July 29, 2021, recommended the appointment of M/s 

PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 003990S/S200018) as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 3 (three) consecutive years. Subsequently, the 

Members, at the 7th Annual General Meeting held on August 31, 2021, had approved the 

appointment of M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory 

Auditors from the conclusion of the 7th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 10th Annual 

General Meeting (i.e. for FY 2021-22 to FY 2023-24). 

 

In accordance with the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Auditors of NBFCs issued by Reserve 

Bank of India (RBI) vide ref. no. RBI/2021-22/25 - DoS. CO. ARG/SEC. 01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 

April 27, 2021, M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP have completed a term of 3 (Three) years as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company and are not eligible for re-appointment as statutory auditors of 

the Company. 

 

Further to this, the Board recommends to the Members for their approval, the appointment of M/s 

V. Narayanan & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 002398S), as the Statutory Auditors 

of the Company for a period of 3 (Three) consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of 

the ensuing 10th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 13th Annual General Meeting (i.e. for 

FY 2024-25 to FY 2026-27). The Board has considered some key parameters including the firm’s 

vintage, reputation, profile of partners, audit experience, clientele served, technical knowledge 

etc., prior to recommending the appointment. The notice convening the Annual General Meeting, 

sets out the details. 

 

The Company has received consent and eligibility letter from M/s V. Narayanan & Co., Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Registration Number 002398S) to act as Statutory Auditors of the Company along 

with confirmation that, if appointed, their appointment, would be within the prescribed limits 

under the Companies Act, 2013 and the RBI regulations. 

 

LL. DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have examined the books as 

required under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and have not identified any employee 

related frauds. 
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MM. DETAILS OF PENALTIES/ FINES/ LATE FEES PAID BY THE COMPANY 

 

There was an inadvertent delay of one day in filing the details of the record for payment of interest 

/ principal repayment under Regulation 60 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In view of this, BSE had levied a fine of INR 10,000/- (Indian 

Rupees Ten Thousand Only) plus GST and the Company has paid the fine. 

 
Details of the fine levied and the steps taken to prevent recurrence of such delays were tabled to 

the Board of Directors at the Meeting held on January 23, 2024. The Board advised the Company 

to file such intimations well in advance going forward, to avoid any delays. 

 

NN. COST AUDITOR AND COST AUDIT REPORT 

 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of 

Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities carried out 

by the Company. 

 

OO. SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Board of 

Directors had appointed M/s Mohan Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary 

(Membership No. F4347 /Certificate of Practice No. 19145), to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 

the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form 

MR-3 is annexed as Annexure III.  

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or adverse disclaimers made by the 

Secretarial Auditor in his Report dated May 28, 2024. 

 

PP. COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 

QQ. INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

The Company has an Internal Audit department, and the Head of the department has a dotted line 

reporting to the Audit Committee of the Company.  

 

In line with the requirement of Section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the 

Audit Committee, had appointed M/s. RGN Price & Co LLP (Firm Registration Number – 002785S) 

as the Internal Auditors of the Company for FY 2023-24.  

 

The Internal Auditors (both external and in-house) of the Company carried out the Audit and have 

confirmed that the checks and control systems prevalent are commensurate with the size and 

turnover of the Company. The significant observations from the Internal Audit were tabled to the 

Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 
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RR. INFORMATION SYSTEM AUDIT 

 

In line with the requirements of RBI’s Master Direction on Information Technology Framework for 

the NBFC Sector, the Company is required to appoint Information Systems (IS) Auditors to examine 

and confirm the effectiveness of controls that are in place to ensure confidentiality, integrity and 

availability of the Company’s IT infrastructure. 

 
Accordingly, the Board had appointed M/s RSM Astute Consulting Group as Information Systems 

Auditors of the Company for FY 2023-24. The Information Systems Auditors conducted the 

Information Systems audit and confirmed that the Company is in compliance with all applicable 

regulations as prescribed by RBI. The observations from the IS Audit are tabled to the Audit 

Committee on an annual basis. 

 

SS. DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting 

highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. The Company has 

implemented a vigil mechanism to provide a framework for the Company’s employees and Directors 

to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing.  

 

The Company has established a Board approved policy on whistle blowing and separate email 

addresses are designated wherein the employees or the stakeholders can report the matters falling 

under the purview of Vigil Mechanism. There was no complaint received under this category during 

the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.  

 

TT. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, the 

Board of Directors has adopted a policy on CSR as recommended by the CSR Committee and the 

said policy is available on the Company’s website, at https://site.samunnati.com/samunnati-

financial-intermediation-and-services-privatelimited/ 

 

Due to losses incurred in the previous years, the Company was not under an obligation under 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 to spend for CSR activities during FY 2023-24. The annual 

report on CSR activities is provided in Annexure-IV to this report. 

 

UU. SAMUNNATI’S ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICY 

 

Your Company maintains a systematic and comprehensive Enterprise Risk management (ERM) 

approach to proactively identify and address potential risks, leading to enhanced decision making 

and improving the overall resilience across businesses. The Company has risk management and 

internal controls to monitor and manage the various risks associated with the business. The key 

objectives of the ERM of Samunnati are: 

 

• to establish methodologies and lay down a multi-tier governance structure; 

• to build a profitable and sustainable business with conservative risk management approach; 

• to have risk management as an integral part of the organization’s business strategy; and 

• to undertake business activities that are well understood and within acceptable risk appetite.   
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The ERM embeds an Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS) with an aim to ensure 

that Samunnati’s business activities consider and address environmental and social risks and also 

impacts associated with the projects or business that Samunnati finances.  

 

To achieve long-term value through sustainability, Samunnati has rolled out its Environmental and 

Social Management System (ESMS) to implement the E&S Policy and Operational Principles.  

 

Accordingly, Samunnati shall:  

 

• not extend loans to any activity that features in Samunnati’s ‘Exclusion List’ or is 

prohibited by local, national or international laws, as applicable;  

• Assess and identify potential environmental and social risk and impacts associated with 

borrower’s activities; 

• influence borrowers to comply with national environmental and social legal 

requirements;  

• encourage borrowers to adopt international good practices and safeguards, 

as relevant;  

• promote prevention and control of pollution to protect the environment;  

• promote resource use efficiency and sustainable production of living and 

natural resources;   

• promote safe and healthy work environment and treating all workers fairly;  

• proactively engage with the stakeholders towards timely redressal of grievances; and  

• protect its borrower through robust processes and effective communication. 

 

VV. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

The Company had 293 employees on payroll as on March 31, 2024 (on standalone basis). The 

management team of the Company comprises of passionate professionals committed to achieve 

the organizational goals. 

 

During the year, Samunnati built the rigour around employee engagement conducting several 

programs on mental and social well-being apart from refurbishing the employee connect program. 

Samunnati rolled out a Learning Management System (Skillsedge) to administer training programs 

online for its employee. Skillsedge was accessible on the go through mobile applications and apart 

from the inhouse training content, also provided access to external library of valuable materials.  

 

As on March 31, 2024, Samunnati Group (the Company and its subsidiaries) had a total of 464 

employees on its rolls. 

 

WW. TECHNOLOGY RELATED UPDATES 

 

1. Technology initiatives 
 

Samunnati’s Tech initiatives for FY 2024 were focused on digitizing the Company’s processes 

and integrations, aligned to the Technology roadmap. All the new, upgraded features and 

integrations were aimed at reducing the Turn Around Time and improving the end user 

efficiency.  
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2. Core systems updates 

 

SAM Custopedia (Loan Origination system): 

 

Loan Origination System was enhanced with the features like disbursement trigger, collection 

tracker, etc. Feature for capturing the ESG tagging of loans was implemented and the same 

helps in focused tracking. Auto generation of Sanction letter has been implemented and the 

same significantly improves the TAT. 

 

One.Samunnati houses modules like generic ticketing system, internal audit, Samunnati 

Associate onboarding, Tele Calling, Lead Management, etc. This portal also hosts the Insights 

Dashboard. 

 

Loan Management System: 

 

Encore, the LMS system which is offered in a SaaS model to Samunnati has been upgraded to 

their latest version 5.6 and new features are being tested. LOS and LMS are fully integrated 

ensuring seamless data flow.  

 

Analytics and insights 

 

With the first version of unified data ecosystem place, this year’s focus was to ensure seamless 

flow of data from the digital systems, optimizing the data ecosystem components. The 

business-as-usual dashboards are being upgraded and optimized. 

 

The platform continues to integrate, process and transforms both near-real time and batch 

data, serving as a single source of truth for business and customer metrics. With this data 

foundation use cases like Customer churn analysis, bad loan prediction has been kickstarted 

under the data intelligence category. 

 

The Insights Dashboard portal continues to house customized dashboards for the Farmer 

Collective and Agri Enterprises verticals serving the needs of business leaders, support teams 

and field force.  

 

Facilitated by the centralized data repository, a few LCNC applications were built and deployed 

for improving the productivity of the field force. 

 

Unnati 

 

Unnati was implemented to cater to the B2B2C segment for one loan product. In this, the credit 

line is sanctioned to farmers/members of FPOs or partners. The mobile first platform is a 

configurable and agile platform for onboarding partners, products and business rules. The 

platform is made compliant to digital lending guidelines and fair practice code.  

 

Samunnati’s Marketplaces for Transformation (SMarT) 

 

Samunnati's Marketplaces brings all the Agri Ecosystem players – Agri entrepreneurs, Agtech 

startups, Traders, Value added service providers and Farmers & Collectives together on a single 

platform. 

44



 

 

 

Credit Marketplace:  

 

Seamless access to loan solutions provided by Samunnati, equipped with user-friendly features 

for tracking existing loans and initiating new requests. The platform furnishes comprehensive 

details about loan products and facilitates inquiries, enables document submission through a 

simple chat feature. Continuous backend support is available to assist with proposals. 

 

3. Information Security 

 

The Company continues to strengthen the information and cyber security infrastructure 

through the following activities: 

 

a. Comprehensive Endpoint Security  

• Device Management and Protection 

• Anti-Virus/Spyware/Malware/Ransomware Protection 

• File/Web/Network Threat Protection 

• Programme/Windows Application Control 

• Web Access Control and Content Filtering 

 

b. Data Loss Prevention for company owned devices 

• Device Protection 

• Drive Encryption 

 

c. Additional Security Measures 

• Cloud Apps Protection 

• Added Azure Cloud Servers to Security Operation Centre (WatchGuard SOC) 

Dashboard for real-time monitoring 

• Location-based access restrictions. Work emails/apps are accessible only from 

Indian locations and exceptions are provided on need basis for short-term 

• Work Profile Creation in Personal Mobile Devices 

• Work Email/Apps are accessible only from company owned devices or work 

profile in personal mobile devices 

 

d. e-Waste processing through empaneled vendor for secure disposal 

 

e. Annual Vulnerability and Penetration Test (VAPT) for Infra/Network at Chennai Head Office 

 

f. All IT and IS policies and procedures are reviewed and updated periodically and based on 

RBI’s master directions. 

 

XX. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Samunnati has implemented comprehensive risk management practices to effectively identify, 

assess, and mitigate risks in order to safeguard financial stability, ensuring prudent lending 

practices and protecting interest of all stakeholders. 

 

The risk management approaches followed are:   
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a) Account Acquisition - This involves careful selection of customers based on the defined credit 

policy of the Company. Clear definition of prudential norms in terms of client wise exposures, 

sector wise exposures are defined and monitored through a strong governance mechanism. 

 

b) Account Management - Considering the nature of customers who are repeat borrowers under 

revolving credit facility, the account management is done through periodic visits to ensure 

completion of post sanction covenants, ascertaining end use of funds and assessing early 

warning signals. 

 

c) Portfolio Management – A strong follow-up and collections team and Risk Monitoring 

department, supported by daily MIS on portfolio performance aid the Company’s efforts to 

have a satisfactory loan book, in tune with the risk appetite. 

 

d) Risk Framework – Samunnati follows a structured approach to identify, assess and manage 

risk.  The key components of the framework are as under: 

 

a. Risk Governance: A clear governance structure that defines roles, responsibilities for 

risk management. 

  

b. Risk Identification: Identifying and categorizing various types of risk that Samunnati 

faces including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal and 

regulatory risk, and strategic risk. 

 

c. Risk Assessment: Assess the magnitude and likelihood of identified risks using various 

risk metrices using both quantitative and qualitative methods. 

 

d. Risk appetite and Tolerance: Samunnati has defined risk appetite, which represents 

the level of risk that Samunnati is willing to take to achieve its objectives. Risk tolerance 

limits to determine the acceptable level of risk exposure under each risk category, 

which effectively guides risk management decisions and action. 

 

e. Risk Mitigation strategies:  Samunnati has developed various risk mitigation strategies 

and controls to manage identified risks viz, by devising robust credit policies, 

underwriting standards and risk acceptance criteria. 

 

f. Information, Communication and Reporting: Enterprise risk management requires a 

continual process of obtaining and sharing necessary information, from both internal 

and external sources, which flows up, down, and across the organisation. 

 

YY. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Directors, based on the 

representations received from the operating management after due enquiry, confirm that: 

 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 
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b) They have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and 

have applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent to give a true and fair view of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and 

loss of the Company for that period; 

 

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

 

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

e) The Board of Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

ZZ. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO 

 

The disclosure of particulars regarding conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign 

Exchange Earnings and Outgo in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, are given below:  

 

Conservation of Energy 

 

Sr. 

No 
Particulars 

1. 
The steps taken or impact on 

conservation of energy  

The Company is taking adequate steps to 

conserve the energy at all the levels and 

has also implemented various measures for 

reduction in consumption of energy like: 

a. Recycling and reduced usage of paper 

b. Energy efficient lighting in its offices 

c. Introduction of mobile based training 

application for employees 

d. Virtual meetings, reviews, planning and 

mobile based learning sessions 

2. 
The steps taken by the company for 

utilising alternate sources of energy  
Not Applicable  

3. 
The capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment’s  

During the year under review, there are no 

capital investment made on energy 

consumption equipment  

 

Technology Absorption 

 

The Company has no Technology Absorption during the period under review as given below: 
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i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; NA 

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost 

reduction, product development or import substitution; 

NA 

iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last 

three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 

year) -  

NA 

a) the details of technology imported;  NA 

b) the year of import;  NA 

c) whether the technology been fully absorbed; NA 

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not 

taken place, and the reasons thereof; and 

NA 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development NA 

 

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

 

Particulars Inflow Outflow 

Current Year (FY 2023-24) INR 2.94 MN INR 192.05 MN 

Previous Year (FY 2022-23) NIL INR 14.01 MN 

 

AAA. OTHER DISCLOSURES AND AFFIRMATIONS  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company affirms that for 

the year ended on March 31, 2024:  

a. There were no proceedings on the Company pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016, before the National Company Law Tribunal or any other court.  

b. There was no instance of one-time settlement with any bank or financial institution. 

 

BBB. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for employees who have contributed to the 

growth and performance of your Company. Your Directors thank the clients, vendors, bankers, 

Members, auditors and business partners of the Company for their continued support. Your 

Directors also thank the Central and State Governments, and other statutory authorities for their 

continued support.   

 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

 

S/d-     S/d-   

Gurunath Neelamani   Anil Kumar S G 

Wholetime Director   Director & CEO  

DIN: 02799586    DIN: 01189011 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date: September 06, 2024 
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ANNEXURE - I 

Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with  

Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 

 

Part A: Subsidiaries 

                             (INR MN) 

S. 

No. 
Particulars Details 

1. Name of the subsidiary 

Samunnati 

Agro 

Solutions 

Private 

Limited 

Samunnati 

Finance 

Private 

Limited 

Samunnati 

Agri 

Innovations 

Lab Private 

Limited 

(Formerly 

known as 

Kamatan 

Farm Tech 

Private 

Limited) 

 

Samunnati 

Investment 

Management 

Service 

Samunnati 

Foundation 

2. 
Date since when subsidiary was 

incorporated/acquired 

October 

14, 2016 

September 

22, 2021 

April 16, 

2021 

March 08, 

2022 

March 9, 

2020 

3. 

Reporting period for the 

subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding 

company’s reporting period 

NA NA NA NA NA 

4. 

Reporting currency and 

Exchange rate as on the last 

date of the relevant Financial 

year in the case of foreign 

subsidiaries 

NA NA NA NA NA 

5. Share capital 6.94 125.00 253.45 0.10 8.50 

6. Reserves & surplus 1,058.05 0.90 (239.65) (1.32) (39.18) 

7. Total assets 5,996.36 129.28 631.82 0.17 3.12 

8. Total Liabilities 5,996.36 129.28 631.82 0.17 2.13 

9. Investments 30.10 - - - - 

10. Turnover 21,986.33 - 925.03 - 24.85 

11. Profit / (Loss) before taxation (161.99) 0.89 (86.78) (0.46) (12.27) 

12. Provision for taxation 38.51 0.22 - - - 

13. Profit / (Loss) after taxation (200.50) 0.67 (86.78) (0.46) (12.27) 

14. Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL N.A. * 

15. Extent of Shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

* Samunnati Foundation is a Section 8 Company and cannot declare dividend 

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. 
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• Samunnati Finance Private Limited 

• Samunnati Investment Management Service Private Limited  

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – Not Applicable 

 

Part B : Associates and Joint Ventures 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies 

and Joint Ventures 

 

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures 

Not applicable 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 

associated or acquired 

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 

company on the year end 

No. of shares 

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 

Extent of Holding% 

4. Description of how there is significant influence 

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated 

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet 

7. Profit/Loss for the year 

i. Considered in Consolidation 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 

 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations – Not applicable 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year – Not 

applicable 

 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

 

S/d-     S/d-   

Gurunath Neelamani   Anil Kumar S G 

Wholetime Director   Director & CEO  

DIN: 02799586    DIN: 01189011 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date: September 06, 2024 
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Annexure II 

Form No. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain Arm’s Length Transactions under third provision thereto. 

 

a) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  

Name(s) of 

the related 

party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/ 

arrangemen

ts/ 

transaction 

Duration of the 

contracts/arran

gements/transa

ctions 

Justification for 

entering into such 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advances

, if any 

Date on which 

the special 

resolution was 

passed in 

General 

Meeting as 

required under 

first proviso to 

Section 188 

NIL 

 

b) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

 

Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Duration of the 

Contracts/Arrang

ements/Transacti

on 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the value, 

if any 

(Amount in INR) 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, Wholly 

owned subsidiary 

and entity in which 

Director is 

interested 

Deputation of 

Employees of the 

Company to the 

Wholly owned 

subsidiary 

12 months Deputation of 

Employees of the 

Company to the 

Wholly owned 

subsidiary  

INR 20.79 MN 

(excluding taxes), 

has been charged 

from wholly owned 

subsidiary as 

Deputation Charges 

February 

06, 2023 

 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, Wholly 

owned subsidiary 

and entity in which 

Director is 

interested 

Fees charged for the 

Corporate Guarantee 

granted by the 

Company in respect of 

the borrowings of its 

wholly owned 

subsidiary 

In accordance 

with the tenure of 

the relevant 

borrowing by the 

Subsidiary 

Fees charged for the 

Corporate Guarantee 

granted by the 

Company in respect 

of the borrowings of 

its wholly owned 

subsidiary 

February 

06, 2023 
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Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Duration of the 

Contracts/Arrang

ements/Transacti

on 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the value, 

if any 

(Amount in INR) 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

INR 14.46 MN 

(excluding 

taxes) 

 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, Wholly 

owned subsidiary 

and entity in which 

Director is 

interested 

Shared Services 12 months Fee charged by the 

Company from the 

Wholly owned 

subsidiary towards 

the Shared Services 

INR 

2.82 MN (excluding 

taxes) 

February 

06, 2023 

 

Samunnati Agro 

Solutions Private 

Limited, Wholly 

owned subsidiary 

and entity in which 

Director is 

interested 

Inter Company loans 

given to the wholly 

owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during 

the year INR 7,211 

MN 

 

Loan repaid during 

the year INR 7,155 

MN  

 

Loan outstanding at 

the end of the year 

(including accrued 

interest) INR 256.49 

MN 

 

Interest Income 

during the year INR 

56.59 MN 

February 

06, 2023 & 

May 29, 

2023 
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Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Duration of the 

Contracts/Arrang

ements/Transacti

on 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the value, 

if any 

(Amount in INR) 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

Samunnati 

Foundation, Wholly 

owned subsidiary 

Inter Company loans 

given to the wholly 

owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during 

the year INR 19.67 

MN 

 

Loan repaid during 

the year INR 5.82 MN  

 

Loan outstanding at 

the end of the year 

(including accrued 

interest) INR 15.68 

MN 

 

Interest Income 

during the year INR 

1.17 MN 

 

February 

06, 2023 & 

May 29, 

2023 

 

Samunnati Agri 

Innovations Lab 

Private Limited, 

Wholly owned 

subsidiary 

Inter Company loans 

given to the wholly 

owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during 

the year INR 298.80 

MN 

 

Loan repaid during 

the year INR 2.50 MN 

 

Loan outstanding at 

the end of the year 

(including accrued 

interest) INR 404.12 

MN 

 

Interest income 

during the year INR 

17.93 MN 

February 

06, 2023 & 

May 29, 

2023 

 

Samunnati 

Investment 

Management 

Services Private 

Limited, Wholly 

owned subsidiary 

and entity in which 

Director is 

interested 

Inter Company loans 

given to the wholly 

owned subsidiary 

12 months Loan granted during 

the year INR 1.20 MN 

 

Loan repaid during 

the year INR 1.00 MN 

 

Loan outstanding at 

the end of the year 

(including accrued 

February 

06, 2023 & 

May 29, 

2023 
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Name(s) of the 

related party and 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Duration of the 

Contracts/Arrang

ements/Transacti

on 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the value, 

if any 

(Amount in INR) 

Date of 

Approval by 

the Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advance

s, if any 

interest) INR 1.20 MN 

 

Interest income 

during the year INR 

0.12 MN 

 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

 

S/d-     S/d-   

Gurunath Neelamani   Anil Kumar S G 

Wholetime Director   Director & CEO  

DIN: 02799586    DIN: 01189011 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date: September 06, 2024 
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Annexure IV 

 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Activities 

 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company 

 

Samunnati goes beyond business to make a sustainable, positive social, economic and 

environmental impact on the lives of the people. The Company envisions sustainable and 

inclusive development of small holder farmers and the agriculture ecosystem as a whole. With 

the endeavour of equal prosperity to all, Samunnati as an agriculture ecosystem enabler strives 

for inclusive and sustainable development of small holder farmers with positive environmental, 

social and economic impact. 

 

The primary purpose of the Company’s CSR philosophy is to contribute to the development of 

socially and economically challenged communities of the country with specific focus on creating 

sustainable livelihoods, supporting rural development projects, promoting education and skill 

development, promoting environmental sustainability, and supporting innovations that largely 

benefit the agriculture ecosystem. 

 

The CSR activities of the Company are wheeled through various CSR entities including Samunnati 

Foundation. 

 

In line with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 

constituted the CSR Committee. The Company has put in place a Board approved Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) Policy which governs the CSR activities of the Company. 

 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:  

 

S. No. Name of the Member Designation 

Number of 

meetings of 

CSR 

Committee 

held during 

the year 

Number of 

meetings of CSR 

Committee 

attended during 

the year 

1. Mr. N. Srinivasan Chairman 

1 

1 

2. Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan Member - 

3. Mr. Anil Kumar S G Member 1 

 

a) Composition of CSR committee and CSR Policy approved by the Board are disclosed on the website 

of the Company and can be accessed at the following link: https://site.samunnati.com/csr/  

 

b) Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule 

(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 

applicable (attach the report): Not applicable  

 

c) Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set 

off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
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d) Average net profit (PBT) of the Company as per Section 135(5): NIL 

  

e) (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): NIL 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years: Nil 

                 (c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

          (d)   Total CSR obligation for the financial year: NIL 

 

f) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: NIL 

 

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year 

(in INR) 

Amount Unspent (in INR) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

Section 135(5) 

 
Amount Date of transfer Name of the 

Fund 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

NIL 

 

       (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sl. 

No. 

Name 

of the 

Project 

Item 

from the 

list of 

activities 

in 

Schedule 

VII to the 

Act 

Local 

area 

(Yes/No) 

Location of 

the project. 

Project 

duration 

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project 

(in INR) 

Amount 

spent in 

the 

current 

financial 

Year (in 

INR) 

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR 

Account for 

the project 

as per 

Section 

135(6) (in 

INR) 

Mode of 

Implementation 

- Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 

Implementation - 

Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

State District Name CSR 

Registration 

number 

NIL 

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 

applicable  

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – Not Applicable 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable – Not Applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year - Nil 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

 

 

56



 

 

g) a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

 

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 

year(s): Nil 

 

h) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil 

  

 

For Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited 

 

 

 

 

S/d-    S/d- 

Anil Kumar S G   Narasimhan Srinivasan 

Director & CEO   Director (Chairman of the CSR Committee 

DIN: 01189011   DIN: 01501266 

 

Place: Chennai 

Date: September 06, 2024 
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PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Samunnati
Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding
Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and
the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows statement for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as "the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March 2024, and their consolidated loss, consolidated
total comprehensive income, their consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements

as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. .

Tel +91 44 28112985 to SB • Fax +91 44 28112989* Email sands@pknndia'!i^^Svi^.Rln%§.in
PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP* KRD Gee Gee Crystal* No.91-92 7th Floor* Dr.Radhakrishnan Salai* Mylaporo* Chennai 600004

REGISTRATION NO. WITH ICAI - 003990S/S200018
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Key Audit Matter
Provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on
loans (Refer Note 6 and Note 25 to the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements)

Financial instruments, which include loans to
customers, represent a significant portion of the
total assets of the Holding Company. The
Holding Company has loans aggregating Rs.
13,473.96 million as at 31 March 2024. The
Holding Company has made a provision for
impairment loss aggregating Rs. 325.33 million
against the loans outstanding to Customers as at
the balance sheet date. Due to the significance
of the judgments used in both classification of
loans into various stages as well as the
computation of expected credit losses on such
financial assets as per Ind AS 109, this has been
considered as a key audit matter.

Management estimates impairment provision
using Expected Credit Loss model for the loan
exposure using criteria in accordance with Ind
AS 109 which also include considering the
impact of recent RBl's regulatory circulars.
Measurement of loan impairment involves
application of significant judgement by the
management. These include;

(a) Segmentation of the loan portfolio into
homogenous pool of borrowers;

(b) Identification of exposures where there is a
significant increase in credit risk ('SICR) and
those that are credit impaired;

(c) Determination of the probability of default for
each ofthe segments identified; and

How the matter was addressed
Read and assessed the Holding Company's
accounting policy for impairment of financial
assets and its compliance with Ind AS 109,
the governance framework approved by the
Board of Directors and moratorium pursuant
to the RBI circular and tested the
implementation of such policy on a sample
basis.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS 109.
Tested a sample of performing loans (stage
1) to assess whether any SICR or loss
indicators were present requiring them to be
classified under stage 2 or 3 or vice versa
along with additional considerations applied
by the Management for staging of loans as
SICR or default categories in view of
Company's policy on moratorium.

Tested the input data used for grouping and
staging of loan portfolio into various
categories and default buckets for
determining the Probability of Default (PD)
and Loss Given Default (LGD) rates. Also,
tallied the input data with the underlying
books of accounts and records.

Tested assumptions used by the
management in determining the overlay for
macro-economic factors.

Assessed and tested the inputs used in the
impairment computation (including the data
integrity of information extracted from the
Company's IT systems).

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed by
the Company in spreadsheets.

(d) Loss given default for various exposures
based on past trends / experience, management
estimates etc.,

Note 2.5 to the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements explains the various matters that the
management has considered for developing this
expected credit loss model. —

Assessed disclosures included in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in
respect of expected credit losses.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report
Thereon

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors
Dreoaration of the other information. The other information comprises l^he 'nformaton
included in the Holding Company's Directors report but does not include thecon|ol^ated

REGNNO
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financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. These reports are expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowlec^ge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated. When we read
the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated flnanciai in terms o the
requirements of the Act, that give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position
consolidated financial performance, consolidated statement of changes in
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
133 of the Act The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
ac—e with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that ^
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate in ernal financial
Lntrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated "nariaal
Statements .hat give atrue and fair view and are free from material
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing ^ ity
of each company to continue as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatedto go^^g concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respecWe
Management and Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated f'̂ anaa'
statements as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
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level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fina^ncial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to
provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting amaterial misstatennent resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances, "^^der section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of
Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of the consolidated financial statements and^
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue
as agoing concern. If we conclude that amaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the consoldated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify ou^^ nrauditors'
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our aud ors
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated f'nanaal
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial ^
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and Performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), ^sued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the ^ct. we give in the Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent

a) We'hav^e sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements. , . u

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by he GouP so
far as it appears from our examination of those books. Please refer to matters st^^^^^^
the Note 49 to the Consolidated financial statements and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and "9
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and he
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated

d) In TuTopinioJ!!The aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries as on 31 March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the directors of
the Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of
the Act and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit

q) With^respect\o adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated mIndia
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B. Our report

e)

f)
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expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial control over financial reporting of those companies, for reasons stated therein,

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us.

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ii Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts - Refer Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements in respect of such items as it relates to the Group.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India.

(a) The respective management of Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies)
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated mJnciia
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective management of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India have represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belie ,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf o the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us whose financial statements/
financial information have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material mis-statement.

V. The Group have not paid/declared any dividend during the financial year. Accordingly,
reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

iii.

IV.
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vi. Relying on the representations/ explanations from the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries and based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software and we did not come across any instance of such audit trail feature being
tampered with The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) for the third party
managed payroll processing software and also at the database level to log any direct
data changes in the accounting ERP system could not be verified.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under section 197(16).
Since the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are aprivate limited company, the provisionsorse^nTgrof^ Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting on
the compliance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.^^0S{^Q0018

V Kothandaraman
Partner

Membership No. 025973
UDIN; 24025973BKERHE3667

Place of Signature; Chennai
Date; 28 May 2024
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Annexure A

Referred to in paragraph 1on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our
report of even date to the members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation &Services
Private Limited ("the Holding Company") on the consolidated financial statements as of
and for the year ended 31 March 2024.

(i) As required by Paragraph (xxi) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (^ARO) there
have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO
reports of the companies incorporated in India included in the consolidated financial
statements except;

Sr.

No.

Name CIN Holding
Company /
Subsidiary
incorporated
in India

Clause number

of the CARO
report which is
qualified or
adverse

1 Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services
Private Limited

U65990TN2014PTC096252 Holding
Company

Clause 3(iii)(c),
3(iii)(d)

2

1 1 1 w • • • • •

Samunnati Agro Solutions
Private Limited

U74999TN2016PTC112925 Subsidiary Clause 3(ii)(b),
3(vii)(a)

As referred to in Note 1of the consolidated financial statements, above responses in respect
of clause 3(xxi) do not include comments in respect of Samunnati Foundation which is not in
scope and hence not included in consolidated financial statements.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants _
Firm's Registration NO.0039SOS 18

V Kothandaraman
Partner

Membership No. 025973
UDIN: 24025973BKERHE3667

Place of Signature; Chennai
Date; 28 May 2024

firmregnno
003S90S/S2000ie
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Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of
our report of even date on the consolidated financial statements of Samunnati Fmancial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation &Services Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company )as
of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company and all its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respec ive
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the (Suidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of Its business, including adherence to
the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standjds and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Ou
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understandmg of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of interna con rol based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls systenn over financial reporting of the
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detaH
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authonsations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenal nnisstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation o the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future penods are subject to the nsk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March
2024 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respec ive
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.0039^3/5:^0018

V Kothandarannan
Partner

Membership No. 025973
UDIN; 24025973BKERHE3667

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: 28 May 2024
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(AH amounts are in milliuns ofIndian Rupees (?). unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

ASSETS

Financial assets

a) Cash and cash equivalents
b) Bank balances other than (a) above
c) Trade receivables
d) Loans
e) Investments
f) Other financial assets

Non-flnancial assets
a) Inventories

b) Non-current tax assets (net)
c) Deferred tax assets (net)
d) Biological assets
e) Property, plant and equipment
0 Right of use assets
g) Intangible assets under development
h) Other intangible assets
i) Other non-fmancial assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities

Financial liabilities

a) Trade payables
- Total outstanding duesof micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Other payables
- Total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and
enterprises

Borrowings
(i) Debt securities
(ii) Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Other financial liabilities

b)

small

c)

d)

Note As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

3 1,605.81 1,247.45
4 903.21 421.01

5 4,280.87 2,846.82
6 13,148.63 10,153.51
7 141.62 11.92

8 241.72 59.90

20.321.86 14.740.61

9 844.21 1,056.56
10 262.03 354.45

11 753.86 824.05

12 0.43 0.59

12 114.15 139.68

12 11.42 32.64

12 46.45 22.92

12 860.96 869.85
13 288.69 441.42

2J52.20 3.742.16

23.504.06 18.482.77

14

659.22 301.82

9.86 57.61

15 5,994.16 5,075.53
16 9,880.58 7,963.48
17 129.01 158.60

16.672.83 13.557.04

18 71.74 51.28
19 387.49 294.37

4's9.23 345.65

20 22.74 21.25

21 6,349.26 4,558.83
6.372.00 4.580.08

23.S04.06 18.482.77

Non-flnancial liabilities

a) Provisions

b) Other non-financial liabilities

Equity
a) Share capital
b) Other equity

Total liabilities and equity

Summaryof material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral partof the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registnition No.:M3990S/S200018

^ •
V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.: 025973

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Di:
Samunnati Financial Intermedi

:0'55:s/s2ccfi'e

Dirgctor and CEO

DIN : 01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Arunkumar Sridharan

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7112

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Private Limited

Gurunath Neelamani

Whole-time Director

DIN :02799586

Place: Chen^i

Date: 28 2024

Subr

?ro(ip -^^O
amaniam

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Statement of consolidated profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

I Revenue from operations
(i) Interest income 22 1,975.67 1,745.41
(ii) Bad debts recovered 22 123.82 .

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 22 33.12 -

(iv) Sale of traded goods 22 22,850.24 16,885.84
(v) Sale of services 22 37.51 -

(vi) Other operating revenue 22 19.21 143.22

Total Revenue from Operations 25,039.57 18,774.47

II Other income 23 439.81 223.25

III Total income (I+II) 25,479.38 18,997.72

Expenses
(i) Finance costs 24 1,510.91 1,491.71
(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 25 158.37 1,308.96
(iii) Purchase of stock-in-trade 26 22,147.32 16,727.45
(iv) Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 27 305.14 (291.01)
(v) Employee benefit expenses 28 736.43 880.87

(vi) Depreciation and amortization 29 85.33 60.74

(vii) Other expenses 30 535.22 706.99

IV Total expenses 25,478.72 20,885.71

V Profit / (Loss) before tax (III-IV) 0.66 (1,887.99)

VI Tax expense 31
(i) Current tax 0.23 5.10
(ii) Deferred tax 79.53 (427.72)

79.76 (422.62)

VII Profit / (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (79.10) (1,465.37)

VIII Other comprehensive income (OCI)
(i) Itemsthat will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurementgain / (loss) on defined benefit plans (8.48) 0.94
- Income tax impact thereon 1.14 (0.21)

(ii) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gain / (Loss) on hedge accounting (32.68)
- Income tax impact thereon 31 8.22 .

Other comprehensive income (i)+(ii)+(ui) (31.80) 0.73

IX Total comprehensive income/(loss)for the year (VII+VIII) (110.90) (1,464.64)

X Earnings per equity share (facevalue110/- per equity share) 32

Basic (?) (35.07) (703.95)
Diluted (?) (35.07) (703.95)

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes forman integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Nox OQ3990S/S200018

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.: 025973

Place: Chermai

Date: 28 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Din

Samunnati Financial Intermediati^

SY Anil li^ditiar
Di)sctor and CEO
DIN : 01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Arunkumar Sridharan

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7112

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

cetPrivate Limited

Gurunath Neelamani

Whole-time Director

DIN :02799586

Place: Chennay
Date: 28 May2024

l^iVaniam
CFO

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Statement of consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AHanwunls are in millions ofIndian Rupees (?), unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

A. Operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Employee stock option expenses
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Income from mutual funds

Income from debt funds

Interest expenses
Interest expense on lease liability
Unwinding interest of debt component of OCRPS
MTM gain on external commercial borrowings
Net gain on fair value changes - CCD
Impairment on financial instruments

Provision no longer required written back
Impairment on trade receivables
Bad debts written off

Provision on inventory
Amortisation of origination costs of borrowings
Cash generated from operations beforeworkingcapital changes

Changes in working capital:
Loans

Other financial assets

Trade receivables

Other non-financial assets

Net movement in provisions
Other financial and non-financial liabilities

Inventories

Trade payables
Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)
Netcash (used in) / generated fromoperatingactivities (A)

B. Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from saleof property, plant andequipment
Movement in deposits with banks and financial institutions
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Interest income received on investments measured atamortised cost, FVTPL
Net cash (used in) / generated from investingactivities (B)

C. Financing activities
Issue of Compulsorilyconvertiblepreferenceshares
Issue of Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
Proceeds from debt securities

Repayment of debt securities
Repayment of principal portion of lease liability
Repayment of interest portion of lease liability
Proceeds from other than debt securities

Repayment of other than debt securities
Interest paid
Netcashgenerated from/ (used in) flnancing activities (C)

Net increase in cashand cashequivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oftheyear
Cashand cashequivalents at the endof the year

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

0.66 (1,887.99)

85.33 60.74

0.05 58.29

28.25 26.79

(3.06) 0.38

(30.81) (42.18)
- (1.31)

1,418.55 1,390.24

1.02 4.05

3.37 1.03

(32.68) (17.84)
(33.12) -

(687.94) 660.73

(48.73) -

10.19 72.51

848.74 651.56

(100.91) 83.61

87.97 97.42

1,546.88 1,158.03

(3,155.92) (404.12)
(181.82) 92.19

(1,444.24) 558.07

201.47 (197.48)
(16.27) (20.91)
50.92 90.89

313.24 (291.01)
309.65 (391.88)

(2,376.08) 593.78

92.19 (170.23)
(2,283.89) 423.55

(59.54) (116.83)
9.54 1.96

(482.20) 91.14

(15,685.41) (16,360.24)
15,588.83 16,540.69

30.81 43.49

(597.97) 200.21

1,505.79 800.00

417.87 400.00

4,210.58 1,235.00
(3,299.88) (1,454.31)

(11.62) (23.74)
(1.02) (4.05)

15,646.96 12,627.17
(13,775.42) (12,635.34)

(1,453.04) (1,488.69)
3,240.22 (543.96)

358.36 79.80

1,247.45 1,167.65
1,605.81 1,247.45
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Statement of consolidated cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in millions ofIndian Rupees (?), unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (also, refer note 3)
- Cash on hand

- Balances with banks in current accounts

- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

Total

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Year ended

31 March 2024

1,478.94

126.87

1,605.81

Year ended

31 March 2023

0.23

1,067.76

179.46

1,247.45

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 003

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.: 025973

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors (

Samunnati Financial Intermedia^

FIRMREGNNO

Jijjctor andCEO
DIN :01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Arunkumar Sridharan

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7112

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

ices Private Limited

Gurunath Neelamani

Whole-time Director

DIN :02799586

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

maniam

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

82



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Statement of Consolidated Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounls are inmillions ofIndian Rupees (^). unless otherwise stated)

A. Share capital

Particulars

Equity share capital
Compulsorily convertible preference shares

("CCPS")
Total

As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors

5.74 5.74 17.64 16.84 23.38 22.58

Restated balance ai the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Buyback of shares

5.74 5.74 17.64

1.50

16.84

0.80

23.38

1.50

22.58

0.80

Sub-total

Equity shares held under trust for employees under ESOP scheme
5.74

(2.14)

5.74

(2.14)

19.14 17.64 24.88

(2.14)

23J9

(2.14)
Balance at the end of the vear 3.60 19.14 17.64 22.74 21.25

B. Other equity

Particulars
Statutory

Reserve

Securities

Premium

Stock Options
Outstanding

Capital Redemption
Reserve

Equity Component
of Optionally

Convertible

Redeemable

Preference shares

(OCRPS)

Other

comprehensive
income

Retained Earnings Total

Balance as at 01 April 2022

Changes in accounting policy or prior period etrots (Refer Note 21)
40.59 5,755.45 262J2 0.07 (23.55)

23.55

5.67

1.69

(1,254.26)

(28.18)

4,786.29

(2.94)
Restated Balance as at 01 April 2022
Comprehensive income for the year
Premium on issue of shares

Equity Component of Debt Securities issued during the year
Employee stock options expense

40.59 5,755.45

799.06

262J2

58.29

0.07

382.77

7J6

0.73

(U82.44)

(1,465.37)

4,78335

(1,464.64)

799.06

382.77

58.29

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errcts
40.59 6,554.51 320.61 0.07 382.77 8.09 (2,747.81)

0.36

4,558.83

0.36

Restated Balance as at 31 March 2023

Comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to retained earnings
Premium on issue of shares

Equity component of debt securities issued during the year
Issue expenses for debt securities
Employee stock options expense

40.59

42.10

6,554.51

1,504.29

320.61

0.05

0.07 382.77

396.63

8.09

(31.80)
(2,747.45)

(79.10)

(42.10)

4,559.19

(110.90)

1,504.29

396.63

0.05

Balance as at 31 March 2024 82.69 8,058.80 320.66 0.07 779.40 (23.71) (2,868.65) 6^49.26

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes fom an integral part of the fmancial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAJ Firm Registration No.: 003990:

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.: 025973

Place: Chetmai

Date: 28 May 2024

HRUReCNNO

For and on behalf of the Board of Directo

Samunnati Financial Intermediation &

S

Dire&tSf and'C!

DIN :01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

.imited

Neelamani

lie-time Director

fD\N : 02799586

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Arunkumar Sridharan

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7l 12

Place; Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

n dIStiGfamaniam

up-CFO

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of consolidated material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
March 31, 2024
(All amounts arein millions ofIndian Rupees C?j, unless othenvise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited ("the Holding Company") (CIN;
U65990TN2014PTC096252) is aCompany limited by shares and incorporated on 23 June 2014 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and domiciled in India. The debt securities of the Holding
Company namely non-convertible debentures are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE"). The
Holding Company is engaged in extending credit to secured and unsecured loans to farmers, farmer
producer organizations, community-based organizations and Agri-enterprises.

The Holding Company had received the Certificate ofRegistration (Registration No. N-07.00815) dated
25 February 2016 from Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") to carry on the business of Non-Bankmg
Financial Company without accepting public deposits ("NBFC-ND"). The Holding Company
commenced active NBFI operations from the month of July 2016. During March 2019, the Holdmg
Company had crossed the total assets threshold of INR 500 crores and had become a Non-Deposit
Taking Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC-ND-SI"). The Holding
Company is classified under middle layer as per scale based framework applicable from 01 October
2022.

The Holding Company has four wholly owned subsidiaries and one step down subsidiary as at the year
end 31 March 2024.

The following are the details ofthesubsidiaries:

1. Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited ('Agro') which was incorporated on 14 October 2016,
and undertakes wholesale trading activities related to agricuUural inputs and commodities.

2 Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited ('SAIL') (Formerly called as Kamatan Farm Tech
Private Limited) - The Company has acquired 100% stake in Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab
Private Limited (Formerly called as Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited) ("KFTPL') through ashare
swap on 16 April 2021. Pursuant to the agreement the Holding Company has issued 67,624
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ('CCPS') to the equity shareholders ofKFTPL.

3. Samunnati Finance Private Limited ('SFPL) was incorporated on 22 September 2021 and is
registered under the Companies Act 2013 as acompany limited by shares.

4. Samunnati Foundation ('the Foundation') was incorporated on 09 March 2020 and is registered under
section 8of the Companies Act 2013 as acompany with limited liability. The mam objects of the
Company are to undertake social oriented programs, activities as deemed appropriate, referred to in
schedule VII to the Companies Act 2013, read with section 135 ofthe Act.

The following is the details ofthe step down subsidiary:

1 Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited ('SIMS') was incorporated on 08
March 2022 and is registered under the Companies Act 2013 as acompany limited by shares.

The Holding Company along with its Subsidiaries, shall hereinafter, be collectively referred to as 'the
Group'. *

♦Samunnati Foundation was consolidated to the group financial statements up to FY 2020-21. However,
the same has not been consolidated from the financial year 2021-22, as the intent of the inve^to|^
not considered to be commercial in nature so as to get any return on the investments.

firmbegnno
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of consolidated material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
March 31. 2024
(All amounts are inmillions ofIndian Rupees (^), unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of material accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Statement of compliance with Ind AS and basis for preparation and presentation of financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements ofthe Group have been prepared inaccordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended
and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), in confonnity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any
application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as
and when they are issued/applicable.

The Group has adopted Ind AS from April 01,2020, Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
Accounting Standard requires achange in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Holding Company Board ofDirectors
and authorised for issue on May 28, 2024.

b) Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and can affect
those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions within Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence ofan impairment ofthe transferred asset.

Samunnati Foundation ('the Foundation') is not for profit company hence the same has not been
consolidated.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR' or 'Rs.' or "?") which is
also the Group functional currency. Amounts less that the rounding offnorms adopted by the Group are
disclosed as 0. All amounts are rounded-oflf to the nearest millions upto two decimal places, unless
otherwise indicated.

2.3 Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end ofeach reporting period as explained
in the Accounting Policies set out below.

FIRMREGNNo.
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The financial statements are prepared on a 'going concern' basis using accrual concept except for the
cash flow information.

2.4 Measurement of fair value changes

Anumber ofthe Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement offair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has established policies and
procedures with respect to the measurement of fair values. Fair values are categorised into different
levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

2.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management of the Group has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application ofthe Group's accounting policies and the reported
amounts ofassets, liabilities, income, expenses and the disclosures ofcontmgent assets and liabilities.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have asignificant risk of causing amaterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were issued. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Following are areas that involved a higher degree of estimation and judgement or complexity in
determining the carrying amount ofsome assets and liabilities.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PFE)
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives ofdepreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and
economic obsolescence that may change the utilityof assets.

Income tax . ,
Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting
date to determine the amount ofdeferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognized, based uponjhe
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategjes^^&ii^;
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Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value offinancial instruments where active
market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum
use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with
observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is
not observable, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would
make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length
transaction at the reporting date.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method
The Holding Company recognizes interest income / expense using arate of return that represents the
best estimate ofaconstant rate ofreturn over the expected life ofthe loans given / taken. This estimation,
by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well as expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.

Impairment of financial assets for Loans
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses 'Expected Credit Loss' model (ECL), for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss.

Overview of the ExpectedCredit Loss (ECL) model
Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through aloss allowance for afinancial asset:

At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses ifthe credit risk on that financial instrumerit
has increased significantly since initial recognition. At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses, ifthe credit risk on afinancial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that resuh from all possible default events
overthe expected life of a financial asset.

12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result
from default events on financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

The Group performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether afinancial assets
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the change
in the risk ofadefault occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument is used instead of the
change inthe amount ofexpected credit losses.

For non-impaired financial assets (Stage 1and Stage 2):

• Stage 1is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced asignificant
increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. A12-month ECL provision is made for stage 1
financial assets. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial asset as at the date ofinitial recognition.

•Stage 2is comprised ofall non-impaired financial assets which have experienced asignificant increase^
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group recognizes lifetime ECL for stage 2financial assets.^:^^!v
In subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that th^ere^is

•:ot1 5200018)^
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no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to
recognizing 12 monthsECLprovision.

For impaired financial assets (Stage 3):

Financial assets are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the
estimated future cash flows ofa loan or a portfolio ofloans and receivables from trading activities. The
Group recognizes lifetime ECL for impaired financial assets.
The loan assets in the books of the Holding Company are segmented into homogenous product
categories to determine the historical PD/LGD as per similar risk profiles, this segmentation is subject
to regular review.

As part of the regular review, in line with changes in loan portfolio and their repayment pattern, the
Holding Company has revised the definition ofstages, asunder.

The loan portfolio are segmented into two broad categories i.e.. Farmer Collectives and Agri enterprises.

Name of the Pool

of loan assets
Stage

Loans Days Past Due
PPD)

w.e.fFY'23

Farmer Collectives

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Upto 60 Days
61 Days to 180 Days
More than 180 Days

Agri enterprises
Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Upto 60 Days
61 Days to 180 Days
More than 180 Days

The Group has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and
that default occurs when afinancial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3). The risk profiling is determined
for each business vertical indicated below based on historical and market trends and directions from
RBI including guidance for identification ofNPA in agricultural advances.

Estimation of Expected Credit Loss:

The mechanics ofthe ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) -The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
agiven time horizon. The Holding Company uses historical information to determine PD. Considering
the different categories of customers, the Holding Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into seven
pools. For each pool of loan assets, the PD is calculated using Incremental 30 DPD approach
considering fresh slippage using historical information. For receivables from trading activities, Agro's
management had calculated the PD using Incremental 30 DPD approach considering fresh sli^ag^
using historical information.
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Exposure atDefault (EAD) - The Exposure atDefault is an estimate ofthe exposure ata future default
date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments. Management had assumed that the outstanding
balance as at each reporting date (including interest and other components) as the exposure at default
for purpose of computing the ECL.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default isan estimate ofthe loss arising in the case where
a default occurs ata given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization ofany collateral.
To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Holding Company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as land, building, books debts, securities, letters
ofcredit/guarantees, etc. However, the fair value ofcollateral affects the calculation ofECL. The fair
value ofthe same is based on management judgements. Further the management ofthe subsidiary Agro
had considered the insured portion of receivable consists nil exposure at default.

Forward looking information - While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-
economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the
Group analyses ifthere is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, benchmark rates set
by the Reserve Bank ofIndia, inflation etc. with the estimate ofPD, LGD determined by the Group
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Group may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, ifany, are embedded in the methodology
to reflect such macroeconomic trends reasonably.

Impairment offinancial instruments for trade receivables from trading and allied activities

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses ifthe credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. Ifthe credit risk on afinancial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that results from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Group follows 'simplified approach' and
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. This impairment
allowance is computed based on historical credit loss experience and management assessment.

Impairment of non-financial assets (PPE)
The impairment assessment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable
amount of such assets. The assumptions used in computing the recoverable amount are based on
management judgement considering the timing offuture cash flows, discount rates and the risks specific
to the asset.

?^SA/V>
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Defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present value of
such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. Management believes
that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination ofthe discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, this obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities
The reliable measure of the estimates and judgements pertaining to litigations and the regulatory
proceedings in the ordinary course of the Group's business are disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have afinancial impact on the Group and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.6 Revenue recognition

a) Recognition of interest income on loans

The Holding Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Holding Company calculates interest income by
applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset
cures and is no longer credit impaired, the Holding Company reverts to calculating interest income on
a gross basis.

Additional interest and interest on trade advances, are recognized when they become measurable and
when it is not unreasonable to expect their ultimate collection.

b) Sale of goods

To detemiine whether to recognise revenue from contracts with customers, Agro and SAIL follows a5-
step process:

1 Identifyingthe contract with customer
2 Identifying the performance obligations
3 Determiningthe transaction price
4 Allocating the transaction price tothe performance obligations
5 Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products or services is recognized upon transfer of control ofpromised products
orservices to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange
for those products or services.
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, price concessions and incentives, ifany, as specified in the contract with the customer.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms ofpayment and excluding taxes and duty. Agro and SAIL has assessed its
revenue arrangements based on the substance ofthe transaction and business model against specific
criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent."

c) Interest income on investments

Interest income from investments is recognized when it is certain that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on atime
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost ofacquisition (including incidental expenses), less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Assets held for sale or disposals are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed
separately under other non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost ofPPE that are
not ready for its intended use at the reporting date.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight-line basis in accordance with the useful lives specified in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on apro-rata basis. Assets costing less than Rs.5,000 are fully
depreciated in theperiod of purchase.

Asset Classification Life in Years

Furniture and fittings 10

Office equipment 5

Computers and accessories 3

Vehicles 4-8

Leasehold improvements 5

PPE is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in other income / netted off from any
loss on disposal in the Statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets • i
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, it
any.

Intangible assets comprises ofcomputer software which is amortized over the estimated useful life. The
amortization period is lower of license period or 36 months which is based on management's estimates
of useful life. Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of
intangible assets over their estimated useful lives.

The intangible assets are amortised within three years.
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2.8 Foreign exchange transactions and translations

a) Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates between the reporting
currency and a foreign currency onthe transaction date.

b) Conversion

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates ofthe transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement ofsuch
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in Statement ofprofit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement ofprofit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the Statement ofprofit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Thus, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVTOCI are recognized in
other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in foreign
currency are not retranslated at reporting date.

2.9 Financial Instruments

a) Recognition and initial measurements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value ofthe
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in Statement of profit and loss.

b)Classifications and subsequent measurement offinancial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;

- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - debt instruments;

- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - equity instruments; and
- Fair Value ThroughProfit or Loss (FVTPL)

FIRMREGNNo
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Amortised cost

The Group's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at ahigher level
of aggregated portfolios being the level at which they are managed. The financial asset is held with the
objective to hold financial asset in order to collect contractual cash flows as per the contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, the Group measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade
receivables and other financial instruments at amortised cost.

FVTOCI - debt instruments

The Group measures its debt instruments at FVTOCI when the instrument is held within a business
model, the objective ofwhich is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset meet the SPPI test.

FVTOCI - equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the
Group's management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity instruments at FVTOCI,
when such instruments meet the definition ofEquity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments and are not
held for trading.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except ifand in the period
the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured atamortised cost using effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gam and loss on
derecognition is recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Debt investment at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to Statement of profit and loss. For equity investments, the Group makes an election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis to designate equity investments as measured at FVTOCI. These elected investments
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to Statement of profit and loss on disposal of the investments. These investments in equity are not held
for trading. Instead, they are held for strategic purpose. Dividend income received on such equity
investments are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments that are not designated as measured at FVTOCI are designated as measure^_^
FVTPL and subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.
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Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Netgains and losses, including any
interestor dividend income, are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

c) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification of debt and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by Group are recognized at the proceeds
received. Transaction costs ofan equity transaction are recognized as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as atFVTPL ifit is classified as held-for trading or it is aderivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in Statement of profit
and loss.

d) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognizes afinancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control of the financial asset.

Ifthe Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all ofthe risks and rewards ofthe transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in Statement ofprofit and loss.

e) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

FlRMRtGNNO
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i) Write offs
Financial assets are written off(either partially orinfull) when there isno realistic prospect ofrecovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that the borrower/customer does not have assets
orsources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected towrite
offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

2.10 Employee benefits

a) Short- term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. Aliability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid ifthe Group has apresent legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as aresult ofpast service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Group's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and employees state insurance is
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. The Group has no further obligation other than the
contributions made.

c) Gratuity
The Group's liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries, using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end ofthe reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Past
services are recognized at the earlier of the plan amendment / curtailment and recognition of related
restructuring costs/termination benefits.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance ofthe defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses
Remeasurement ofdefined benefit plans, comprising ofactuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets
excluding interest income are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with corresponding debit or
credit to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of
profit and loss inthe subsequent period.

d) Leave encashment/ compensated absences /sick leave
The Group provides for the encashment / availment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment / availment.
The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date on
the basisof an independent actuarial valuation.

e) Employee stock options
The fair value ofoptions granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employee
benefits expense with acorresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options. The total expense is recognized over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to v^
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the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise ofshare
options, the proceeds received are allocated to share capital up to the par value ofthe shares issued with
any excess beingrecorded as sharepremium.

2.11 Finance cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective
financial instruments measured at Amortised cost. Financial instruments include term loans, fixed
deposits mobilized, debt instruments, commercial papers and subordinated debts. Finance costs are
charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

2.12 Taxation - current tax and deferred tax
Income tax expense comprises ofcurrent tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement ofprofit
and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

a) Current tax
Current tax comprises amount oftax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year
determined in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect ofprevious years. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted bythe end ofthe reporting period.

b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the canying values ofassets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequence that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary difference could be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognized ifthe temporary difference arises from the initial recognition ofassets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

2.13 Impairment of assets other than financial assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at the end ofeach reporting
period, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount ofthe asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

Recoverable amount is the higher offair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing^
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax di

or
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that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an
asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or acash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount such that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined ifno impairment loss
had been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. The reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

2.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has apresent legal or constructive obligation as aresult ofa
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and
amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount ofthe outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions
are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value ofmoney
is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly withm the control ot
the Group; or „ r -n
•Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or areliable estimate ofthe amount of the obligation cannot be made.

In those cases, where the outflow ofeconomic resources as aresult of present obligations is considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from athird party with respect to
the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as aseparate asset. However, this asset may not
exceed the amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, the
related asset is disclosed.

2.15 Leases

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of acontract. Acontract is, or contains, a lease ifthe
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for aperiod of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use ofan identified asset,
the Group assesses whether:
(i) the contract involves the use ofan identified asset
(ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the pengdrf
the lease and ^
(iii) the Group has the right to direct the use ofthe asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end ofthe
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it isreasonably certain that they
will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount ofthe lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, ifnot readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country ofdomicile ofthese leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with acorresponding adjustment to the related right ofuse asset ifthe Group
changes its assessment ifwhether it will exercise an extension or atermination option.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques and drafts on hand,
balance with banks in current accounts and short-term deposits with an original maturity ofthree months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk ofchange invalue.

2.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the Group's earnings per share is the net profit for the period after
deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for
events, such as bonus shares, sub-division ofshares etc. that have changed the number ofequity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is divided by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period, considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

2.18 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and the net realizable value. Costs includes cos^
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to the present location and condid
of discounts and rebates and is determined on weighted average basis. Cost is determined O

FIRUREGNNC ^
IS20001B
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basis. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price ofinventories in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.19 Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in amanner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief Executive Officer ('CEO') of the Group has been
identified as the CODM as defined by Ind-AS 108 Operating Segments, who assesses the financial
performance and position ofthe Group and makes strategic decisions.

Operating segments identified by the Group comprises as under:
1. Financing - Providing loans to borrowers and securitisation ofsuch loans.
2. Trading and allied activities -Trading ofagricultural products and allied activities
3. Others

The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are also applied
to items ofrevenue and expenditure in individual segments. Revenue and expenses have been identified
to asegment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses
which relate to enterprises as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on a reasonable basis have
been disclosed as 'Unallocated', if any. Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and
liabilities in respective segments. Tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be
allocated to asegment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as 'Unallocated', ifany.

2.20 Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards
and are effective 1 April 2023.

Material changes are in relation to the following:

(i) - Disclosure ofaccounting policies —amendments to Ind AS 1.

(ii) - Definition ofaccounting estimates —amendments to Ind AS 8.
(iii) -Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from asingle transaction —amendments
to Ind AS 12.

The Company has evaluated the amendments and the impact is not material.

New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective: None

2.21 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements.
Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date ofmaterial size or nature are only disclosed.
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Note Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

3 Cash and cash equivalents
0.23Cash-on-hand -

Balances with banks

(i) In current account 1,478.94 1,067.76

(ii) in deposit account (with originalmaturityup to 3 months) 126.87 179.46

1.605.81 1,247.45

4 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposit account with banks -
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money 903.21 218.08

- with original maturity of morethan 3 monthsbut less than 12 months -
202.93

903.21 421.01

Details of balances withbanks to theextent heldas margin money or security against theborrowings, guarantees, othercommitments.

Maturity period of less than 12 months
196.05(i) Held as collateral against borrowings and securitisation transactions 874.87

874.87 196.05

Maturity period of more than 12 months
22.03(ii) Held as collateralagainstborrowingsand securitisationtransactions 28.34

28.34 22.03

Total 903.21 218.08

5 Trade receivables

Unsecured

Considered good 3,917.90 2,561.37

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (21.14) (14.87)

3,896.76 2,546.50

Having significant increase in credit risk 295.10 323.49

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (36.45) (42.00)

258.65 281.49

Credit impaired 337.66 221.56

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (212.20) (202.73)

125.46 18.83

4,280.87 2,846.82

(Refer Note 47 for ageingscheduleof trade receivables)

6 Loans

(A) Term Loans at amortised cost

To clients 13,458.24 11,166.77

To Samunnati Foundation 15.72 -

Total- Gross 13,473.96 11,166.77

Less : Impairment loss allowance (325.33) (1,013.26)

Total- Net 13,148.63 10,153.51

(B) Secured/ Unsecured break up

(i) Secured against tangible assets:
Gross 1,109.04 1,075.49 .

Less: Impairment loss allowances (57.25) (83.69)

Net 1,051.79 991.80

(ii) Secured against receivables:
Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowances
Net

(iii) Unsecured
Gross

Less: Impairment loss allowances
Net

Total (B) = (i) + (ii) + (ill)

12,364.92

(268.08)

12,096.84

13,148.63

firuregnno
S200018

10,091.28

(929.57)

9,161.71

10,153.51
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Note Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

(C) Loans in/ outside India

(i) Loans in India
(a) Public sector
(b) Others 13,473.96 11,166.77

Less : Impairment loss allowance

13,473.96

(325.33)

11,166.77

(1,013.26)

Total (i) 13,148.63 10,153.51

(ii) Loans outside India - -

Total (C) = (i) + (u) 13,148.63 10,153.51

Note; There is no loan asset measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL.

Summary of loans bv stage distribution
Gross Carrying

Amount

(A)

Impairment Loss

Allowance

(B)

Net Carrying
Amount

(A-B)

As at 31 March 2024 12,640.26
Stage 1- Considered good 677.77
Stage2 - Significant increase in creditrisk 155.93

126.43

66.65

132.25

12,513.83

611.12

23,68

Stage 3 - Credit impaired 13,473.96 325.33 13,148.63

As at 31 March 2023

Stage 1- Considered good 10,353.18
Stage 2 - Significant increase in creditrisk 154.61
Staee 3 - Credit impaired 658.98

347.21

31.28

634.77

10,005.97

123.33

24.21

11,166.77 1,013.26 10,153.51

7

(A)

Investments

Investments in equity shares carried at cost (Unquoted):
Samimnati Foundation

850,000 (previousyear: 850,000) equity shares of ?10 each

8.50 8.50

(B) Investments carried at amortised cost:

Investments in Pass thorugh certificates - Unquoted - 3.42

(C) Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Investments in Cumulative Convertible Debentures - Unquoted

Investment in Ecozen Solutions Private Limited

7,614 (previous year: Nil)0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs.6,566.82 each

Investment in Connedit Business Solutions Private Limited

509(previous year: Nil)0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs.lOeach

58.82

74.30

-

Total value of unquoted invesments 141.62 11.92

Note: No impairment loss has been provided on the above investments.

Investments in India

Investments outside India

141.62 11.92

141.62 11.92

8 Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits
Margin money held with financial institution
Employee advances
Interest accrued but not due on deposits
Insurance receivables

Other receivables

26.08

50.00

6.70

7.76

134.09

17.09

27.63

3.90

9.13

19.24

241.72 59.90

«This space has been intentionally left blank»
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12 Property, plant and equipment, right of use assets, intangible assets and Intangible assets under development

Q S/4a

REGN NO

Property, plant and equipment Biological

assets

Other intangible as sets Intangible

assets under

developmentParticulars
Freehold

land

Furniture Office

eauioment

Computers &
accessories

Vehicles
Leasehold

improvements

Plant &

Machinery
BuUding Total assets

Goodwill on

Consolidation

Computer

Software
ToUl

Gross block

Balance as at 01 April 2022
Additions

30.07

42.03

11.10

0.25

(0.33)

14.01

3.04

44.97

3.71

(4.83)

37.21

3.25

(4.66)

23.35 5.16

1.01

(1.22)

11.00

165.87

64.29

(11.04)

0.65 66.01

27.84

(1.67)

775.67 49.89

109.53

(49.71)

825.56

109.53

(49.71)

71.50

76.97

(125.55)

72.10 11.02 17.05 43.85 35.80 2335 4.95 11.00 219.12 0.65 92.18 775.67 109.71 88538 22.92

Additions

Assets written off

"

0.16

(0.13)

(3.40)

1.29

(0.44)

(1.31)

0.73

(0.49)

(0.28) (15.07)

0.59

(0.21)

(1.08)
-

2.77

(2.14)

(20.27) (0.10)

-

31.95

(0.33)

31.95

(0.33)

53.49

(29.96)

Balance as at 31 March 2024 72.10 7.65 16.59 43.81 20.73 23.73 3.87 11.00 199.48 0.55 92.18 775.67 141J3 917.00 46.45

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Balance as at 01 April 2022

Charge for ihe year

Disposals / adjustments

2.66

1.33

(0.13)

5.09

1.98

23.42

11.37

(4.59)

13.26

8.79

(2.43)

13.06

4.98

0.25

0.32

(0.04)

0.12

57.74

28.89

(7.19)

0.01

0.05

34.78

24.76
-

25.08

7.04

(16.59)

25.08

7.04

(16.59)

-

Balance as at 31 March 2023
. 3.86 7.07 30.20 19.62 18.04 0.53 0.12 79.44 0.06 59.54 - 15.53 15.53 -

Charge for the year
Assets written off

Disposals / adjustments
-

1.29

(0.01)

(1.70)

2.24

(0.22)

(0.71)

8.74

(0.43)

(0.35)

6.36

(13.32)

4.11

(0.33)

0.30

(0.26)

0.18 23.22

(0.92)

(16.41)

0.06 21.21

-

40.84

(0.33)

40.84

(0.33)

Balance as at 31 March 2024
_ 3.44 8J8 38.16 12.66 21.82 0.57 0.30 85J3 0.12 80.76 - 56.04 56.04 -

Net block

As at 31 March 2023 72.10 7.16 9.98 13.«5 16.18 5.31 4.42 10.88 139.68 0.59 32.64 775.67 94.18 869.85 22.92
i..ni M.rrhM24 72.10 4.21 8.21 5.65 8.07 1.91 3.30 10.70 114.15 0.43 11.42 775.67 85.29 860.96 46.45

Intangible Assets under Development ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2024

Amount in Intangible Assets for a period of

Intangible Assets under Development
Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3

years
Total

Projects in Progress 28.38 0.97 17.10 - 46.45

Projects temporarily suspended . - - -

ToUl 28J8 0.97 17.10 - 46.45

There isnoproject forwhich costexceeded thebudget or timeoverriin. There were noprojects which is temporarily suspended as at 31March 2024

Intangible Assets under Development ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2023

Amount in Intangible Assets for a period of

Intangible Assets under Development
Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3

years
Total

Projects in Progress 5.66 17.26 - 22.92

Projects temporarily suspended . - - -

ToUl 5.66 17.26 - - 22.92

There isnoproject forwhich costexceeded thebudget or time over run. There were noprojects which istemporarily suspended asat 31 March 2023
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Note Particulars

9 Inventories

At lower of cost or net realisable value

Stock in trade

Less: Provision for inventory

10 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net of provisions for tax)

11 Deferred tax assets (net)

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

855.17 1,160.32

(10.96) (103.76)

844.21 1,056.56

262.03 354.45

262.03 354.45

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets /
(liabilities);

Balance as at

01 April 2023

(Charge) / credit
to statement of

profit and loss

(Charge) /
credit to OCI

Balance as at

31 March 2024

Fixed assets

Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for Inventory

Impairment loss allowance
(Gains) and losses on Hedge Accounting
Carried forward losses

Others

Total

(15.14)

12.21

17.78

317.60

482.97

8.63

(5.08)

3.63

(17.78)
(172.34)

(1.48)

121.13

(7.61)

1.14

8.22

(20.22)
16.98

145.26

6.74

604.10

1.02

824.05 (79.53) 9.36 753.86

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets /
(liabilities):

Balance as at

01 April 2022

(Charge) / credit
to statement of

profit and loss

(Charge) /
credit to OCI

Balance as at

31 March 2023

Fixed assets (6.65) (8.49) -
(15.14)

Provisions for employee benefits 12.88 (0.46) (0.21) 12.21

Provision for Inventory -
17.78 -

17.78

Impairment loss allowance 176.81 140.79 -
317.60

Carried forward losses 209.57 273.40 -
482.97

Others 3.93 4.70 - 8.63

Total 396.54 427.72 (0-21) 824.05

«This space has been intentionally left blank»

103



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

13 Other non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 65.21 51.68

Advance paid to vendors 42.30 302.62

Balances with government authorities 181.18 85.39

Advances to employees -
1.73

288.69 441.42

14 Trade payables
i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -

ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 659.22 301.82

659.22 301.82

(Also refer note 48 for ageing of the trade payables).

Other Payables
i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -

-

ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 9.86 57.61

9.86 57.61

Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
(MSMED) Act, 2006 are as under

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year*
(b) The delayed payments of principal amountpaid beyond the appointeddate during the year
(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act
(d) Normal interest due and payable during the year, as per the agreed terms
(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid

♦There are no micro, small and medium enterprises to whomthe Groupowesdues which are outstanding for more than 45 days at
the Balance Sheet date, computed on unit wise basis.
The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basisof information availablewith
the Group.

Debt securities

At amortised cost

Non-convertible redeemable debentures 5,138.61 5,075.53

Commercial paper 855.55 -

5,994.16 5,075.53

Note: There are no debt securities measured at FVTPL or designated as FVTPL

Debt securities in India 2,059.54 598.21

Debt securities outside India 3,934.62 4,477.32

Total 5,994.16 5,075.53

(also, refer note 44 A)

Borrowings (other than debt securities)
At amortised cost

Term loans:

from banks 337.91 1,048.67

from other parties 6,528.02 5,141.00

Working capital loan 2,974.66 1,747.89

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 39.99 25.92

9,880.58 7,963.48

Note: There are no Borrowings measured at FVTPL or designated as FVTPL

Borrowings in India 8,029.00 7,231.42

Borrowings outside India 1,851.58 732.06

9,880.58 7,963.48

15

(also, refer note 44 B)
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Note Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

17 Other financialliabilities

Unamonised interest income - 1.61

Lease liability 12.64 34.91

Employee related payables 49.16 74.84

Provision for expenses -
1.25

Financial liability of compound fmancial instrument 39.48 18.26

MTM Cost on ECB Borrowing 26.77 8.00

Others 0.96 -

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings -
19.73

129.01 158.60

18 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 34)
Gratuity 38.09 25.07

Compensated absences 33.65 26.21

71.74 51.28

19 Other non-financial liabilities

Advance received from customers 260.34 236.75

Statutory dues payable 108.06 57.28

Income received in advance 19.09 -

Others - 0.34

387.49 294.37

«This space has been intentionally left blank»
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As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares Amount

As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares Amount

20 Share capital
Authorised share capital

Equity shares of ? 10 each 7,50,000 7.50 7,50,000 7.50

Preference shares of ? 10 each 23,00,000 23.00 23,00,000 23.00

Total 30.50 30.50

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

Equity shares of ? 10 each 5,73,861 5.74 5,73,861 5.74

Less: Equity shares heldundertrustforemployees under (2,13,523) (2,14) (2,13,523) (2.14)

ESOP scheme (also, refer note h) below
Compulsorily convertible preference sharesof ? 10 each 19,14,399 19.14 17,63,819 17.64

Total 22.74 21.25

Optionally convertible reedemable preference shares of ? 10 81,450 0.81 40,000 0.40

each (Refer note 17 & 21)
0.81 0.40

a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount outstanding
Issued, subscribed and paid-up

5.74Balance at the beginning of the year 5,73,861 5.74 5,73,861

Shares issued during the year - -
- "

Shares bought back during the year - - - -

5,73,861 5.74 5,73,861 5.74

Less: Equity shares held under trust for employees under (2,13,523) (2.14) (2,13,523) (2.14)
ESOP scheme (also, refer note 20 (h) below)
Balance at the end of the vear 3,60,338 3.60 3.60.338 3.60

b) Reconciliation of number of preference shares and amount outstanding
i) Compulsorily convertible preference shares

Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
Balance at the beginning of the year 17,63,819 17.64 16,83,819 1.68

Shares issued during the year 1,50,580 1.51 80,000 0.08

Balance at the end of the year 19.14,399 19.15 17,63,819 1.76

ii) Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:

Balance at the beginning of the year 40,000 0.40 -
-

Shares issued during the year 41,450 0.41 40,000 0.40

Balance at the end of the year 81,450 0.81 40,000 0.40

c) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Equity shares of 110 each
S G Anil Kumar 2,38,257 41.52%
Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 2,13,523 37.21%
Accel IndiaV (Mauritius) Ltd 75,733 13.20%

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of? 10 each
Elevar M-III

Accel India V (Mauritius) Ltd
ResponsAbility Agriculture I, SLP
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association ofAmerica
Accel Growth Fund V L.P

Elevar1-IV AIF represented by its TrusteeVistra ITCLIndia
ResponsAbilitySustainableFood - Asia II

Optionally convertible reedemable preference shares of ? 10 each
EE-Fl AIF 81,450 100.00%

2,38,257

2,13,523

75,733

42.00%

37.00%

13.00%

4,21,522 22.02% 4,21,522 23.90%

3,84,949 20.11% 3,84,949 21.82%

3,66,594 19.15% 3,66,594 20.78%

2,66,730 13.93% 2,66,730 15.12%

1,10,075 5.75% 1,10,075 6.24%

1,48,957 7.78% 1,48,957 8.45%

1,22,000 6.37% -
0.00%

40,000 100.00%

d) Equity shares held by promoters at the end of the year
31 March 2024

Promoter Name
Number of

shares

Percentage of
total shares

Percentage

change during
the vear

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 2,38,257 41.52% -
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31 March 2023

Promoter Name
Number of

shares

Percentage of

total shares

Percentage

change during

the year

Mr. Anil Kumar S G 2,38,257 41.52% -

e) There were no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way ofbonus
issues since incorporation of the Holding Company,

f) The Holding Company has acquired 100% stake in Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (•SAIL')(formerly known as
"Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited") through a share swap on April 16, 2021. Pursuant to theagreement theHolding Company has
issued 67,624 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ('CCPS') to theequity shareholders of SAIL.

g) Terms and rights attached to shares
i) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ? 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled toone vote per share. The Holding Company shall declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the
Board ofDirectors shall besubject to the approval ofthe shareholders inthe ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend
which can be approved by the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares
will beentitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution ofall preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ii) Terms and rights attached to Compulsorily convertible preferenceshares of ? 10each
The holding Company has issued Series Al, A2, A3, B, C, D, Dl and Pre-Series Eseries compulsorily convertible preference shares
having a face value ofRs. 10 per share. At the option of the holders, these shares, either in whole or inpart, may be converted into
equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 before the expiry of 19 years from the issuance of such compulsorily convertible preference shares.
Each holder of the compulsorily convertible preference shares is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend on each compulsorily
convertible preference shares is 0.01% per annum, subject to cash flow solvency, and such dividend shall be a preferred dividend. In
the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of compulsorily convertible preference shares shall have a preference
over other share holders of the Holding Company.

iii) Terms and rights attached to Optionallyconvertible reedemable preference shares of ? 10 each
The Holding Company has issued Pre-Series EOptionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("Pre-Series EOCRPS") having
a face value ofRs. 10 per share. At the option ofthe holders ofPre-Series EOCRPS, these shares, may beconverted into Pre-Series E
Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ("Pre-Series E CCPS"). The Pre-Series E OCRPS Conversion Ratio shall
initially be 1:1 and shall be subject to adjustments as per the terms ofissue ("Pre-Series EOCRPS Conversion Ratio"). The holders of
Pre-Series E OCRPS shall, at any time prior to 19 (nineteen) years from the date of issuance of the same, be entitled to call upon the
Holding Company to convert all (and not less than all) of the Pre-Series E OCRPS in accordance with the Pre-Series E OCRPS
Conversion Ratio by issuing a Notice to the Holding Company. The Pre-Series E OCRPS, ifnot converted earlier, shall automatically
convert into Pre-Series E CCPS at the thenapplicable conversion rate, (i) on the latest permissible dateprior to the issue of Shares to
the public in connection with the occurrence ofa Public Offer under Applicable Law, or(ii) onthe day following the completion of 19
years from the date of issuance of the same. The holders of Pre-Series E OCRPS shall not be entitled to attend meetings of
Shareholders of theHolding Company and will notbeentitled to any voting rights prior toconversion of thePre-Series E OCRPS into
Pre-Series E CCPS. Only so long as the Pre-Series E OCRPS have not been converted to Pre-Series E CCPS, the holder of the Pre-
Series E OCRPS shall be entitled to seek redemption of all or any of the Pre-Series E OCRPS at suchIRRand within suchtimelines,
as per the terms of issue.

Series Date
Amount of Equity shares post

conversion

Conversion of CCPS into equity
Series Al 25 Feb 2034 0.99

Series A2 25 Jul 2034 1.26

Series A3 31 Mar 2035 0.61

Series B 25 Feb 2036 2.76

Series C 27 Dec 2036 5.60

Series D 23 May 2038 4.94

Series Dl 15 Apr 2040 0.68

Pre-Series E lOOct 2041 0.70

Pre-Series E I2 0ct 2041 0.10

Pre-Series E 05 Apr 2042 1.34

Pre-Series E 27 March 2043 0.17

Conversion of OCRPS into equity

Pre-Series E OCRPS 30Nov2041 0.40

Pre-Series E OCRPS 27 March 2043 0.41

19.96
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h) The Holding Company has given an interest and collateral free loan to ESOP Trust to provide financial assistance for purchase of
equity sharesof the HoldingCompany under Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Holding Company has establishedthe ESOP Trust
to which the stockoptions issuable have been transferred. The HoldingCompany treats ESOP trust as its extensionand sharesheld by
ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares. Own equity instruments that are re-acquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and
deducted from Equity sharecapital (to the extentof facevalue) and from Otherequity(to the extentof premium on shares). Also, refer
note 33.

21 Other equity
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Statutory reserve 82.69 40.59

Securities premium 8,058.80 6,554.51

Employee stock options outstanding 320.66 320.61

Capital redemption reserve 0.07 0.07

Equity component ofOptionally Convertible Redeemable
779.40 382.77

Preference Shares (OCRPS)
Other comprehensive income (23.71) 8.09

Retained earnings* (Refer Note below) (2,868.65) (2,747.81)

6,349.26 4,558.83

Particulars

Statutory Reserve
Opening balance
Add : Transfer from retained earnings

Balance as at the end of the year

Securities Premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Premium on shares issued during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Employee stock options outstanding
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add : Additions during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Equity Component of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS)
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors
Issued during the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Other comprehensive income
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors
Add : Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Retained earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors
Add : Comprehensive income for the year
Less : Transfer to statutory reserve
Balance as at the end of the year

Total other equity

As at

March 31, 2024

40.59

42.10

82.69

6,554.51

1,504.29

8,058.80

320.61

0.05

320.66

0.07

0.07

382.77

396.63

779.40

8.09

(31.80)

("•71)

(2,747.81)

0.36

(79.10)

(42.10)
(2,868.65)

6,349.26

As at

March 31. 2023

40.59

40.59

5,755.45

799.06

6,554.51

262.32

58.29

320.61

0.07

0.07

(23.55)
23.55

382.77

382.77

5.67

1.69

0.73

8.09

(1,254.26)

(28.18)
(1,465.37)

(2,747.81)

4,558.83

♦Note: Samunnati Foundation was consolidated upto FY 2020-21. However, Samunnati Foundation has not been consolidated from
the FY 2021-22 as the intent of the investment is not commercial in nature so as to get any return on the investments. Consequently the
retained earnings impact of the FY 2020-21 amounting Rs. 1.13 million has been eliminated in the consolidation for FY 2021-22.
Regrouping with corrections have been carried out in the previous year pertaining to the FY 2021-22 in the equity component of
compound financial instruments, other comprehensive income and retained earnings.
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Description of the nature and purpose of other equity

Statutory reserve

Reserve fund is created as pertheterms of section 45-IC{l) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory reserve. Anamount
equal to 20% of the Holding Company's profits after tax is transferred to this reserve every year. This is a restricted reserve and any
appropriation from thisreserve canonlybemade afterpriorapproval from RBI.

Securities premium
Securities premium isused to record the premium on issue ofshares. This amount can beutilised in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2013.

Employee stock options outstanding
The employee stock options outstanding represents amount of reserve created by recognition of compensation cost at grant date fair
value onstock options vested but not exercised byemployees and unvested stock options in theStatement of profit and loss in respect
of equity-settled share options granted to the eligible employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries in pursuance of the
Employee Stock Option Plan.

Capital redemption reserve
Capital Redemption Reserve iscreated as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect ofthe shares bought back bythe
Holding Company.

Equity component of OCRPS
Represents Equity Component of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares, In accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Presentation, the equity component of OCRPS is classified separately from the liability component. The initial carrying
amount of the equity component is determined bydeducting the fair value of the liability component from the fair value of the entire
financial instrument.

Other comprehensive income
Represents remeasurement ofdefined benefit liability which comprises ofactuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included innet
interest on the net defined benefit liabilities and income tax impact thereon.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings or accumulated surplus/ (loss) represents total of all profits/ (losses) retained since Group's inception. Retained
earnings are credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, dividend pay-outs, transfers to General reserve or any such
other appropriations to specific reserves.

«This space has been intentionally left blank»

firuregnno

109



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions ofIndian Rupees (^), unlessotherwisestated)

22 Revenue from operations

a) Interest income on financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Loans

Investment in pass through certificates
Security deposits held with lenders
Fixed deposits

b) Bad debts recovery

c) Sale of traded goods

d) Sale of services

e) Other operating revenue

f) Net gain on fair value changes
Unrealised gain on fair value changes (FVTPL)

Total (a+b+c+d+e+f)

23 Other income

Literest income on delayed payment of dues by customers
Income from mutual fund investments

biterest income on Fixed deposits
Interest on income tax refund

Income from debt fund

Provision no longer required written back
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other income

24 Finance costs

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest expense on:

Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Debt securities

Lease liability
Unwinding interest of OCRPS
Other borrowing costs

25 Impairment on financial instruments
At amortised cost

Impairment of loans
Bad debts written off

Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

1,913.51 1,702.92

0.02 10.97

52.38 15.12

9.76 16.40

1,975.67 1,745.41

123.82

123.82

22,850.24 16,885.84

22,850.24 16,885.84

37.51

37.51

19.21 143.22

19.21 143.22

33.12

33.12

25,039.57 18,774.47

65.82 49.96

30.81 42.18

5.05 16.80

12.18 -

- 1.31

149.64 -

3.06 -

173.25 113.00

439.81 223.25

796.21 773.49

622.34 616.75

1.02 4.05

3.37 -

87.97 97.42

1,510.91 1,491.71

(687.94) 660.73

846.31 648.23

158.37 1,308.96
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Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

26 Purchases of stock-in-trade

Purchase of stock-in-trade 22,147.32 16,727.45

22,147.32 16,727.45

27 Changes in inventories of stock in trade
Opening stock 1,160.32 869.31

Closing stock 855.18 1,160.32

305.14 (291.01

28 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages (also, refer note 45) 649.57 741.20

Gratuity and leave encashmentexpenses (Also refer note 34) 28.25 26.79

Contribution to provident and other funds 26.22 31.29

Employee stock option expenses (also, refer note 33) 0.05 58.29

Staff welfare expenses 32.34 23.30

736.43 880.87

29 Depreciation & amortization
(Also, refer note 12)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 23.28 28.94

Amortisation of intangible assets 40.84 7.04

Depreciation on right of use assets 21.21 24.76

85.33 60.74

30 Other expenses
Legal and professional charges 192.21 179.64

Service fee expenses 6.22 18.45

Technology and communication expenses 66.60 39.08

Membership and subscription charges 20.82 15.42

Travelling and conveyance 67.75 70.40

Insurance 23.15 29.35

Payments to auditors 9.04 10.68

Repairs and maintenance - others 8.62 10.61

Rates and taxes 0.94 3.04

Rent 22.00 16.29

Impairment of trade receivables 10.19 72.51

Printing and stationery 5.64 3.79

Power and fuel 5.68 6.04

Sitting fees 3.27 2.65

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.38

Marketing expenses 26.76 12.45

Provision for Inventory - 83.61

Bad debts written off 2.44 3.33

Outsourced manpower 10.06 -

Other operating expenses 27.05 -

Miscellaneous expenses 26.78 129.27

535.22 706.99
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Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

31 Tax expenses

a) Income tax recognized in statement of profit and loss
Current tax:

In respect of current year
In respect of prior vears

0.23 0.07

5.03

0.23 5.10

Deferred tax:

In respect of current vearorigination andreversal of temporary differences 79.53 (427.72;

Total income tax recognized in statement of profit and loss 79.53 (427.72;

b) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income during the year:

(o.2i;Remeasurement of defined employee benefits 1.14

- Gain / (Loss) on hedee accounting 8.22 -

Total income tax recognized in other comprehensive income 9.36 (0.21

32 Earnings Per Share (EPS) after considering compulsorily convertible
preference shares
Net (loss) attributable to equity shareholders I in millions (Basic andDiluted)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing basic EPS (in
Weighted average number of CCPS used incomputing basic EPS (innumbers)
Total weighted average number of shares used in computing Basic EPS (in
Effect of potential dilutive equity shares (in numbers)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing diluted earnings per

Basic EPS (?) - face value of share ? 10 each
Diluted EPS (?) - face value of share ?10 each*

♦Due to loss incurred for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the potential equity shares are considered an
dilutive.

«This space has been intentionally left blank»

(79.10) (1,465.37
3,60,338 3,60,338

18,95,437 17,21,298

22,55,775 20,81,636

1,22,438 1,19,454

23,78,213 22,01,090

(35.07) (703.95

(35.07) (703.95

Q
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33 Employee share based payments
ESOP 2015 Scheme

a) On September 08, 2015 , the Board of Directors of the Holding Company approved and the Holding Company adopted the "Employees Stock Option Plat
2015" (the "Plan") under which not more than 62,500 shares of the Holding Company's equity shares was reserved for issuance to employees. In the Board
meeting dated January 28, 2017, December 20, 2017 and April 29, 2019 additional shares of6,794 (nos), 70,368 (nos) and 115,000 (nos) respectively were
added to the Plan, issued and allotted to ESOP Trust.

The options are to be granted to the eligible employees as per the eligibility criteria as determined by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Holding Company. The shart
options vestin a graded manner over a period of 1-4 vears andareexercisable within 2 months ofexercise event, failing which theoptions shall lapse.
On June 21, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company approved and the Holding Company adopted the " Amendment to the Employees Stocl
Option Plan 2015" ("The Plan"). The amendment pertains to vesting period, exercise and grant of options to new joiners. The options to be granted to th(
eligible employees as per the eligibility criteria as determined by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company. The share options vest ina graded mannei
over a period of1-4years and are exercisable within 2months ofexercise event, failing which the employees shall have tohold on till the next event arises. Oi
May 24, 2019, the Board ofDirectors of the Holding Company approved and the Holding Company adopted the "Employees Stock Option Plan 2019". Th(
amendment pertains to vesting period. Vesting of Options may now take place between three and four years in the manner, as may be decided by th(
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. On February 10, 2022 the Board approved the Employees Stock Option Plan 2022 to broaden the terms anc
conditions, including those on vesting, exercise, lapse, surrender, etc. and the same was approved by the Holding Company on March 07. 2022.

Duringthe currentyearboardof directors did not approve any ESOPto employees.

Particulars
No. of options as at

31 March 2024

Weighted
Average

Rate

No. of options as at
31 March 2023

Weighted

Average

Rate

Options outstanding at the beginningof the year 74,454 3,441 85,713 3,173

Granted during the year - -
- -

Exercised during the year - -
- -

Expired/ lapsed during the year (4,334) 11,224 (11,259)
-

Options outstanding at the end of the year 70,120 4,859 74,454 3,441

Options exercisable as at the end of the period 57,712 4,420 10,930 739

Theweighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding at theend oftheyear was 365 days (previous year 191 days).

b) The fair value ofthe options granted is determined on the date ofthe grant using the "Black-Scholes option pricing model" with the following assumptions, a
certified by an independent valuer.

Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-1

Fair market value of option on the date ofgrant 582.86 806,84 1,030.40 1,726.61 2,970.44 3,318.07 5,022.43 -

Exercise price range (weighted average) 10.00 319.00 618.00 1,484.45 3,203.50 7,500.00 13,059.77 0.0(

Expected volatility (%) 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 56.98% 56.98°/

Expected forfeiture percentageon each vestingdate - - - - - - - -

Expected option life (weighted average in years) 3.87 3.57 3.22 3.10 2.47 3.00 3.00 3.0(

Expected dividends yield - - • • • - • -

Risk free interest rate (%) 7.55% 6.85% 6.66% 7.62% 6.81% 5.86% 6.80% 6.80°/

Management Stock Option Scheme 2017
On December 20, 2017, the Boardof Directors of the HoldingCompanyapproved and the HoldingCompany adopted the "Management Stock Option Schem
2017" hereinafter referred as the "Scheme". Under the Scheme, 28,529 options were granted to the promoter (Anil Kumar SO- Director and CEO), vestin;
over 1 year from the date of the grant. On April 29, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company approved and the Holding Company adopted th
"Management Stock Option Scheme 2019". Under the revised Scheme, 45,000 options were granted to the promoter, vesting over 1 yearfrom the dateof th
grant. On the happening of any liquidity event as defined in the Scheme, the Nomination and remuneration committee has the discretion to provide cashles
exercise.

The weighted averageremaining contractual life for the stockoptionsoutstandingat the end of the yearwas 0 days(previous year: 0 days)

Particulars
No. of options as at

31 March 2024

Weighted

Average

Rate

No. of options as at

31 March 2023

Weighted

Average

Rate

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 45,000 2,902 45,000 2,902

Granted during the year - - - -

Exercised during the year - - - -

Expired/ lapsed during the year - - - -

Options outstanding at the end of the year 45,000 2,902 45,000 2,902

Options exercisable as at the end of the period 45,000 2,902 45,000 2,902

«This space has been intentionally left blank»

FIRMREGN NC
0039i»i9q7s(x)ie

113



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Allamounts are in millions ofIndian Rupees (^), unless otherwise stated)

The fair value oftheoptions granted isdetermined onthe date ofgrant using theBlack Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions as

Fair market value of option on the date of grant 2,939

Number of options granted 45,000

Exercise price range (weighted average) 3,753

Expected volatility (%) 60.29%

Expected forfeiture percentage on eachvesting date 0.00%

Expected option life (weightedaveragein years) 1

Expected dividends yield 0.00%

Risk free interest rate (%) 7.41%

Note: Since the MSOP shares issued on December 20, 2017 were vested before the date of transition to IND-AS, the Holding Company hasnot fair valued
such grants.Henceabovedisclosure is not presented for the same.

ESOP 2022 Scheme ^
The Holding Company has adopted the Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 duly approved by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Holdmg Company on 08 Septembei
2015, and by the members ofthe Holding Company on September 08, 2015 vide an ordinary resolution ; thereafter amended and adopted the Employee Stock
Option Plan 2019 duly approved by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Holding Company and the members ofthe Holding Company with effect from 24 May 2019 ;
further amended and adopted the Samunnati Employee Stock Option Plan 2022 duly approved bythe Board ofDirectors of the Holding Company and by the
membersof the Holding Companywith effectfrom 07 March 2022.

Under the newly amended scheme, the Holding Company granted 12,285 options to the existing employees ofthe Group, based oncommitments made during
FY 2022-23. Of the total grants made, 2689 options were granted with accelerated vesting of one year. These options were granted to existing Senioi
Management team in lieu ofa portion oftheir fixed compensation for the FY 2022-23 and were granted with effect from 01 April 2023 atanexercise price o1
FNR 10,000. The Holding Company also awarded 9,596 options to its new employees as partof their offer commitment with effect from 01 April 2023 at ar
exercise price of INR 10,000.

The Holding Company had, in line with the RBI Notification No. RBV2022-23/36 DOR.GOV.REC.No.29/18.10.002/2022-23 dated April 29, 2022 •
Guidelines onCompensation ofKey Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and Senior Management ofNon-Banking Finance Companies, putinplace a Compensation
Policy for theKMPs and Senior Management ofthe Group. As part ofthis framework, KMPs and other Senior Management identified asper the compensation
policy shall be eligible for ESOPs as part of their overall compensation. Under the new compensation framework, the Holding Company will decide on ths
number of performance-based options tobegranted under theESOP component andthese Options shall progressively vest over a period of3 years andbe alsc
subject to malus and claw back provisions. These shall be applicable from FY 2023-24.

No of

options as Weighted

Particulars at Average

31 March Rate

2024

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year - -

Granted during the year 12,285 10,000

Exercised during the year - -

Expired/ lapsed during the year (4,967) -

Options outstanding at the end of the year 7,318 10,000

Options exercisable as at the end of the year 4,121 10,000

The fair value of the options granted is determined on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions ai

Fair market value of option on the date of grant 9,958

Number of options granted 12,285

Exercise price range (weighted average) 10,000

Expected volatility (%) 55.57%

Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date 0.00%

Expected option life (weighted average in years) 4

Expected dividends yield 0.00%

Risk free interest rate (%) 7.32%

^This space has been intentionally left blank»

114



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Notesto the consolidatedfinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are inmillions ofIndian Rupees (?), unless otherwise stated)

34 Employee benefits

General description of defined benefit plans

taTcrorfance with applicable Indian laws, the Group provides for gratuity, adefined benefit retirement plan ("The Gratuity Plan") covering
eligible employees. The gratuity plan provides for alump sum payment to vested employees on retirement (subject to completion of five years
of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or termination of employment that are based on last drawn salary and tenure of
employment. The Group does not maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation towards gratuity liability.
Through its defined benefit plans the Group is exposed to anumber of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
Actuarial risk: Itis the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one ofthe following reasons:
Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in obhgation
at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption then the gratuity benefits will be
paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuanal
loss orgain depending on the relative values ofthe assumed salary growth and discount rate.
Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then the gratuity benefit
will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.
Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If
some ofsuch employees resign / retire from the Company there can be strain on the cash flows.
Market risk: Market risk is acollective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that has amaterial effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads
to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the government bonds
and hence the valuation ofhability isexposed tofluctuations in theyields asatthevaluation date.
Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to
the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the same will have to be recognized
immediately intheyear when any such amendment is effective.

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows

Particulars

I. Amount recognizedin the statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost

Net Interest cost

Total expensesincluded in employee benefitexpenses

n. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive income
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses:
Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising fi-om changes in
- Experience adjustments
Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income

m. Changes in the defined benefitobligation
Openingdefined benefitobligation
Current service cost

Interest expense
Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising from changes in -

- Experience adjustments
Benefits paid
(Disposals)/Acquisitions (Net)
Closingdefined benefitobligation

IV. Net defined benefit obligation
Defined benefit obligation
Current portion of the above
Non current portion of the above

V. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)
Within 1 year

1 to 5 years

More than 5 years

Year ended Year ended

8.35 8.45

2.60 1.70

10.95 10.15

8.48 (0.94)

8.48 (0.94)

25.07 20.39

8.35 8.45

2.60 1.70

8.48 (0.94)

(6.34) (0.91)

(0.07) (3.62)

38.09 25.07

As at As at

31 March 24 31 March 23

38.09 25.07

7.49 3.50

30.60 21.57

/S200016
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VI. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
Discount rate (p.a.)
Attrition rate

Rate of salary increase
In- service Morality rate

VII. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for input of significant assumptions on
defined benefit obligations are as follows

One percentage point increase in discount rate
One percentage pointdecrease in discountrate
Onepercentage point increase in salary growth rate
One percentage pointdecrease in salary growth rate

7.00% 7.20%

15.00% 15.00%

5%-15% 5%-15%

IAL2012-14Ult IAL2012-14Uh

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(0.67) (1.31)
2.03 1.47

2.06 1.49

(0.39) (1.37)

b) Compensated absences . • u e
The Group permits encashment of compensated absences accumulated by their employees on retirement, separation and dunng the course of
service. The liability in respect of the Group, for outstanding balance of privilege leave at the balance sheet date is determined and provided
on the basis of actuarial valuation provided by an independent actuary. The Group does not maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation
towards compensated absences.

Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences

Particulars

I. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
Discount rate (p.a.)

Rate of salary increase
Attrition rate over different age brackets

Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

7.00%

7.00%

5% - 15%

7.20%

7.00%

5%- 15%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, considers inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
suchas supply and demand in theemployment market.

II.

III.

Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss
Included under gratuityand leaveencashmentexpenses

Net defined benefit obligation
Defined benefit obligation
Current portion of the above
Non current portion of the above

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

17.30 16.64

As at Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

26.21

7.62

18.59

33.65

9.37

24.28

35 Capital management , . ^ u u m,.
The Group's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its shareholder. The
same is done through amix of either equity and/or convertible and/or combination of short term/long term debt as may be appropriate.
The Group determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and strategic investment plans. The

Net debt to equity ratio

Debt

Less: Cashandcashequivalents and otherbankbalances
Net debt

Total equity
Net debt to equity ratio (%)

«This space is intentionally leftblank»

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

15,874.74 13,039.01

(2,509.02) (1,668.46)

13^65.72 1U70.55

6,372.00

209.76%

4,580.08

248.26%

116



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Notes to tiie consolidated Tmanciaistatements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions ofIndian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

36 Leases

As a lessee
Particulars Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

37

a) Additions to right of use asset
leased premises

b) Carrying value of right of use asset
Rightof useassetas on theopening date
Additions during the year
Disposals/ deductions
Depreciation charge for the year
Balance as at the year end

c) Maturity analysis of lease liability
Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flows

Less than 1 year

One to five years

Total undiscounted lease liability

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position

d) Amounts recognized in Statement of profit or loss

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation charge for the year
Expenses relating to short-term leases

Contingent liabilities andcommitments (totheextent notprovided for)
Contingent liabilities

-

27.84

32.64 31.23

. 27.84

- (1.67)

(21.21) (24.76)

11.42 32.64

8.02 24.67

5.85 13.88

13.87 38.54

12.64 34.91

1.02 4.05

21.21 24.76

22.00 16.29

The"HXnyCompiny had received orders from Income Tax Assessing Officer (AO) pertaining to AY 2016-17, AY 2018-19 and AY 2020-21 wherein certain additions
were made under section 56, section 68 and section 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961. The Holding Company has obtained astay on collecuon of the demand provided
\ I -r«i r/-v Ka Ai-Pi-in<>rknc anri ac nrtt nflvnKIp under the nrovisions oflncoiTlC TsX Act, 1961.

As at 31 March 2024 AY 2016-17 AY 2018-19 AY 2020-21

Amount of demand

Ainount paid against stay

10.24

2.10

0.26 106.03

21.21

As at 31 March 2023 AY 2016-17 AY 2017-18 AY 2018-19

Amount of demand 10.24 0.26 106.03

21.21
Amount paid against stay 2.10

•

38 Corporate Social Responsibility
The Group has not incurred any expendiwre in the current year (Previous year: Nil).
Details of amount soent towards CSR activities:
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year isNil (previous year Nil)

b)
31 March 2023

For the veitr ended

31 March 2024
Particulars

In cash
Yet to be

paid in cash
Total In cash

Yet to be

paid in cash
Total

In construction/ acquisition of any asset
On other Durooses

-

"

_ . -

Rc^conciliation of movement in borrowings to cas h flows from flnancing activities

Particulars 31 March 2023
Interest

expenses#
Cash flows (net)

Interest

payments*

Amortisation of

loan origination
cost

31 March 2024

(i) Debt securities
(ii) Borrowings (otherthan debt securities)

5,075.53

7,963.48

622.34

796.21

910.70

1,871.54

(614.41)

(838.62) 87.97

5,994.16

9,880.58

Total 13,039.01 1,418.55 2,782.24 (1.453.03) 87.97 15,874.74

Particulars 31 March 2022
Interest

expenses#
Cash flows (net)

Interest

payments*

Amortisation of

loan origination
cost

31 March 2023

(i) Debt securities 5,294.84

8,017.28

616.75

773.49

(219.31)
(8.17)

(616.75)
(916.54) 97.42

5,075.53

7,963.48

Total 13J12.12 1.390.24 (227.48) (1.533.29) 97.42 13.039.01

# relatesto financing and operatingactivities
*interest payments in thenature ofoperating activities

«This spacehasbeenintentionally leftblank»
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The Holding Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Group
manages financial risk relating to the operations through internal risk reports which analyse exposure by degree and magnitude of risk. These nsks include ,credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk (including interest rate risk and other price risk). Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the management on a
continuous basis.

Credirrisk is the risk that the Group will incur aloss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group sexposure to
credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments, loan assets and other financial assets. The Group continuously momtors
defaults ofcustomers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into itscredit risk controls.

Bied"ot'busfn"renv*ironment in which the Group operates, adefault on afinancial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the
agreed time period as per contract. 'The Group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed for each clMS
of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Group has established acredit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. The Group assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the
assumptions, inputsand factors specific to the classof financial assets.
Tl,» r.r™in nrnvlHp.s for exnected credit loss based on the following:

Assets covered Nature Basis of expected credit loss

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), other bank balances, investments. Trade receivables -
considered good and other financialassets,

Low credit risk Life time expected credit loss

Loans- Considered good Low credit risk 12 month expected credit loss

Loans& Trade receivables - havingsignificantincreasein credit risk
Moderate credit

risk
Life time expected credit loss

I xians & Trade receivables - credit impaired — High credit risk Life time expected ciredit loss or tully

Finanrial assets (hat exDose the grouo to Credit risk

Particulars Nature
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Cashandcashequivalents (excluding cashon hand)
Bank balance other than above*

Trade receivables- considered good*
Trade receivables- having significant increase increditrisk•
Trade receivables- credit impaired*
Loans - considered good*
Loans - having significant increase in creditrisk*
Loans - credit impaired*
Investments

Other financial assets

Low credit risk

Low credit risk

Low credit risk

Moderate credit risk

High credit risk
Low credit risk

Moderate credit risk

High credit risk
Low credit risk

Low credit risk

1,605.81

903.21

3,917.90

295.10

337.66

12,640.26

677.77

155.93

141.62

241.72

1,247.45

421.01

2,561.37

323.49

221.56

10,353.18

154.61

658.98

11.92

59.90

(♦) These represent gross carrying values oftrade receivables &loans, without netting off impaument loss allowance.

Cr^dit^rist re'latTt^S'LT^^^ (excluding cash on hand) and bank deposits is managed by only investing in highly rated deposits of banks across the
country.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables is typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers. To manage the credit risk, the Group periodically ^sesses the financm
reliability of its customers, taking into account the financial condition, economic trends and histoncal payment pattern. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful
debts that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of the Group's trade receivables. Exposures to customers outstanding at the end ofeach reporting penod are
reviewed bythe Group todetermine incurred and expected credit losses.

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Allowance for the year

Less: Written off during the year

Year ended

31 March 2024

259.60

10.19

269.79

Year ended

31 March 2023

392,12

72.51

(205.03)

259.60
Balance at the end of the year

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, the Group has considered
the likelihood of increased credit risk and consequential default considering emerging situations. The Group closely monitors its customers and ^sesses conditions such
as change in payment terms, inability of the customer to pay etc. depending on severity of each case. Basis this assessment, the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2024 is considered adequate.

The Group closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems and appraisal process to assess the credit risk and define credit limits of
borrower thereby, limiting the credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for the counterparties. These processes include adetailed appraisal
methodology, identification of risks and suitable structunng and credit risk mitigation measures. The Group assesses increase in credit nsk on an ongoing basis for
amounts loan receivables that become past due and default isconsidered to have occurred when amounts receivable become 60 davs.

«This spacehas beenintentionally leftblank»
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The major guidelinesfor selection of the client includes:
1. The client's income and indebtedness levels must bewithin the prescribed guidelines ofReserve Bank ofIndia;
2. The clientmust possessthe requiredKYCdocuments
3.The client must beengaged insome form ofeconomic activity which ensures regular income;
4.Client must agree tofollow the rules and regulations ofthe organisation and . . j . u u i
5. Credit bureau check - In order to deal with the problem ofover extension ofcredit and indebtedness ofthe client, the organisation undertakes credit bureau checks
compulsorily for every client. The credit bureau check helps the organisation in identilying clients with poor repayment histories and multiple loans.
Credit risk exposure
(i)Expected credit losses for nnaocial asseU other than loans andtrade receivables

Particulars
Cash and cash

eauivalents

Other bank

balance
Investment!

Other flnancial

assets

As at 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount 1,605.81 903.21 141.62 241.72

Less: Expcctcd crcdit losses - - " "

Net carrying amount 1,605.81 903.21 141.62 241.72

As at 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount 1,247.45 421.01 11.92 59.90

Less: Expected credit losses -
- •

"

Net carrying amount 1.247.45 421.01 11.92 59.90

ii. Movementof carrying amount and expectedcredit lossfor loans
Definition of default: . i
The Holding Company has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases significantly smce mitial recognition when contractu^
payments are more than 30 days (Stage 2) and that default occurs when afinancial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3). The nsk profiling is determined for each
segmented loan portfolio indicated below based on historical and market trends and directions from RBI including guidance for identification of NPA in agricultural
advances.

Staee Loans Days past due (DPD)

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

Upto 60 days
61 days to 180 days
More than 180 days

Ar

A

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

12,640.26

677.77

155.93

10,353.18

154.61

658.98

Total 13.473.96 11,166.77

1analysis ofchanges inthegross carrying amount andthecorresponding ECL allow
. ot 11 Murrh inj4

nances is, as follows:

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross carrying value of opening balances
Nev^ assets originated during theyear, netted off
repayments andderecognised portfolio*
Transfer to stage 1
Transfer to stage 2
Transfer to stage 3
Amounts written off

10,353.18

2,808.29

35.10

(302.54)

(253.77)

154.61

351.37

(35.10)
302.54

(95.65)

658.98

(6.16)

349.42

(846.31)

Grnss carrvinp value of closing balances 12.640.26 677.77 155.93

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross carrying value of opening balances
Adjustments to opening balances duetochange in
definition of default

10,312.28 767.04

(75.36)

334.89

75.36

Revised grosscarrying valueof opening balances
Newassets originated during theyear, netted off
repayments andderecognised portfolio*
Transfer to stage 1
Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3
Amounts written off

10312.28

907.77

255.39

(224.89)
(891.74)

(5.63)

691.68

(441.69)

(254.83)
224.90

(65.41)
(0.04)

410.25

(65.29)

(0.56)
(0.01)

957.15

(642.56)

Gross carrving value of closing balances I0J53.18 154.61 658.98

FIRMREGNNO \s
OSIS200018
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Movement in expected credit loss of loans:
As at 31 March 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

ECL allowance - opening balances 347.21 31.28 634.77

Newassets originated during theyear, nettedoff (161.29) 1.16 319.04

repayments andderecognised portfolio
(16.17)Transfer to stage 1 16.17 "

Transfer to stage 2 (64.05) 64.05 -

Transfer to stage 3 (11.61) (13.67) 25.28

Amounts written off -
(846.84)

F.r*!. allowance - closing balances 126.43 66.65 132.25

A« at 31 March 2023

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Staee 3

ECL allowance - opening balances 29.48 43.03 280.02

Newassetsoriginated during theyear, netted off (0.55) (27.48) (44.57)
repayments andderecognised portfolio
Transfer to stage 1 0.64 (0.64) "

Transfer to stage 2 (13.99) 13.99 •

Transfer to stage 3 (608.66) (44.64) 653.31

Impact ofECL onexposures transfened between 945.92 47.07 388.57

stages during the year
Amounts written off (5.63) (0.05) (642.56)

ECL allowance - closing balances 347.21 31.28 634.77

62.88 millions respectively. (As at March 31, 2023: ?67.89 millions and (?83.06) millions respectively)
•Assets originated during the year has been presented on net basis i.e. the collections towards fresh loans has been netted off.
Other flnancial assets

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits, employee advances, deposits with financial institutions, payrnem receivable on
securitisation, interest strip assets and other receivables. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounu
continuously.

(b) Liquidity Risk Management: . ,. .j. ., , f

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity nsk by ensuring as far as
Dossible that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without mcumng unacceptable losses or
risk to the Group reputation. The Group maintains adequate reserves and banking facilities, and continuously monitors the forecast and actual cash flows by matching
maturing profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the approved risk management policy of the Group penodically. The Group believes that
the working capiuil (including banking limits not utilised) and its cash and cash equivalent are sufficient to meet its short and medium term requirements.

Refer Note 43 which details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The contractual maturity is based on
the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

(c) Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or the fiiture cash flows ofafinancial instrument will fluchiate because of changes in market factor. Such changes in the values
of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity, and other market changes. The Group is exposed to two types of market nsk as
follows:

InteTsri^rrisu's''the risk that the future cash flows ofafinancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group is subject to interest rate risk, principally because the Group lend to customers at fixed interest rates and for periods that may differ from the Group's fWiding
sources, while the boirowings are at both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods. The Group assess and manage the interest rate r^k by managing the
assets and liabilities. The Asset Liability Management Committee ensures that all significant mismatches, ifany, are being managed appropriately. The Group has Board
approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy for managing interest rate risk and policy for determining the interest rate to be charged on the loans given.

Thrsei^Wvity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the changes in market interest rates on bank and other borrowings. Below is the sensitivity of profit and
loss in interest rates.

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

Interest sensitivity*
Interest rates - increase by 0.50%
Interest rates - decrease by0.50%

33.76

(33.76)

20.34

(20.34)

' Holding all other variables constant

The'oroup exposure to price nsk is not material and it is primarily on account of investmem of temporary treasury surpluses in the highly liquid debt flinds for very short
durations. The Group has aboard approved policy of investing its surplus funds in highly rated debt mutual fiinds and other instruments having msignificant pnce nsk,
not beingequityfunds/ riskbearing instruments.

FIRMREGNNO
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Areasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencies at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 would have affected the
measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currency and affected Statement ofProfit and Loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is
perfotmed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial assets and financial liabilities outstanding as at the year end. This analysis assumes that all other

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2024

Yearer

31 Marcl

ided

1 2023

EUR USD EUR USD

Gain / Ooss) on Appreciation 1% appreciation in INR 0.41 0.01 0.11 -

Gain / (loss) on Depreciation 1% depreciation in INR (0.41) (o.on (0.11) -

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of afinancial instrument will fluctuate bccause of changes in foreign exchange rate. The Group is
exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is amismatch between the currencies in which revenues and purchases are denominated, and the fiinctional currency of
the Group The fiinctional currency of the Group is the Indian Rupee {?). The currency in which these transactions are primarily denominated are in Indian Rupee (?).

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Amount in EUR Amount in USD Amount in EUR Amount in USD

Financial assets

Trade receivables 0.45 0.01 0.12 -

41 Fair value measurements

42

As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Financial assets Carrying value Carrying value

Cash and cash equivalents 1,605.81 1,247.45

Other Bank Balances 903.21 421.01

Trade receivables 4,280.87 2,846.82

Loans 13,148.63 10,153.51

Investments 141.62 11.92

Other fmancial assets 241.72 59.90

20J21.86 14,740.61

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 659.22 301.82

Other payables 9.86 57.61

Debt securities 5,994.16 5,075.53

Borrowings (otherthandebtsecurities) 9,880.58 7,963.48

Other financial liabilities 129.01 158.60

16,672.83 13,557.04

The managemern assessed that fair value of above financial instruments measured at amortised cost approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

Pinanrlal instruments measured at fair value throuEh profit or loss

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Level 1

Fair value

Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Investments

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

133.12 133.12 133.12

b) Fair value measurement hierarchy . . ,j
The Group records certain fmancial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on arecurring basis. The Group determines fair values based on the price it would
receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most
advantageous market forthatassetor liability.

The guidance specifies ahierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to each measurement are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs
reflect market data obtained fi^m independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Group's assumptions about current market conditions. The fair value
hierarchy also reouires an entity to maximize the use ofobservable inouts and minimize the use ofunobservable innuts when measuring fair value.
The Group determines fair values ofits financial insmiments according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1-Valuation based on quoted market price: Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that the Group can access at
the measurement date. , „ •, • , • i
Level 2- Valuation using observable inputs: Financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted pnces for idenncal or similar
insUTiments ininactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.
Uvel 3-Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Financial instr\iments valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are
unobservable.

Operating segments

Operating fegmenu are reported in amanner consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief Executive Officer
('CEO') of the Group has been identified as the CODM as defined by Ind AS 108 Operating Segments, who assesses the financial performance and position of the
Group and makes strategicdecisions.

b) Operating Segment
Primary Segment (Business Segment) . . ^ j <•
The Group is organised primarily into two operating segments i.e a) Financing - Providing loans to Agri enterprises, community based organisations and farmer
producer organisations and securitisation of such loans b) Trading and allied activities -Trading of agricultural products and allied activities.
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Secondary Segment (Geographical Segment)
Since the business operations of the Group are primarily concentrated in India, the Group is considered to operate only in the domestic segmem and therefore there is no
reportable geographic segment.

c) Segment Revenue and Expenses
Revenue and expenses have been identified to asegment on the basis ofrelationship tooperating activities ofthe segment.

d) Segment Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments.
e) Accounting Policies j j
The accounting policies consistemly used in the preparation of the financial statements are also applied to items of revenue and expenditure mindividual segments.

For the Year ended 31 March 2024

Financing
Trading and

allied activities
Others Total

Total income

Cost of goods sold
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization
Employee benefit expenses
Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax expense
Profit/(loss) after tax

2,224.23

1,129.32

47.30

425.93

252.38

41.22

211.16

23,255.15

22,452.46

381.59

38.03

310.50

(251.23)
38.54

(289.77)

(0.49)

(0.49)

25,479.38

22,452.46

1,510.91

85.33

736.43

0.66

79.76

(79.10)

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Financing
Trading and

allied activities
Others Total

Total income

Cost of goods sold
Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization
Employee Benefit Expenses
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

Tax Expense
Profit/(Loss) after Tax

1,887.71

1,215.75

49.32

484.34

(1,444.50)
(313.51)

(1,130.99)

17,110.01

16,436.44

275.96

11.42

396.53

(443.49)

(109.11)
(334.38)

-

18,997.72

16,436.44

1,491.71

60.74

880.87

(1,887.99)
(422.62)

(1,465.37)

For the Year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Financing
Trading and

allied activities
Others Total

Segment Assets
Segment Liabilities

16,909.42

12,257.57

6,594.46

4,874.42

0.18

0.07

23,504.06

17,132.06

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Financing
Trading and

allied activities
Others Total

Segment Assets
Segment Liabilities

13,162.61

9,711.85

5,320.16

4,190.84 -

18,482.77

13,902.69
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43 Maturity analysis of asset and liabilities
The table below shows the maturity analysis ofassets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Within

12 months

After

12 months
Total

Within

12 months

After

12 months
Total

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances

Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

Other financial assets

1,605.81

874.87

4,280.87

10,785.74

133.12

215.64

28.34

2,362.89

8.50

26.08

1,605.81

903.21

4,280.87

13,148.63
141.62

241.72

1,247.45

304.28

2,846.82

5,404.23

3.42

37.53

116.73

4,749.28

8.50

22.37

1,247.45

421.01

2,846.82

10,153.51

11.92

59.90

17,896.05 2,425.81 20,321.86 9,843.73 4,896.88 14,740.61

Non- flnancial assets

Inventories

Non-current tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (net)

Property, plant and equipment
Biological Assets

Right of use assets
Intangible assets under development
Other intangible assets
Other non-financial assets

844.21

283.80

262.03

753.86

114.15

0.43

11.42

46.45

860.96

4.89

844.21

262.03

753.86

114.15

0.43

11.42

46.45

860.96

288.69

1,056.56

435.85

354.45

824.05

139.68

0.59

32.64

22.92

869.85

5.57

1,056.56

354.45

824.05

139.68

0.59

32.64

22.92

869.85

441.42

1,128.01 2,054.19 3,182.20 1,492.41 2,249.75 3,742.16

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables
Other payables
Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Other financial liabilities

659.22

9.86

3,683.69

7,433.52

56.18

2,310.47

2,447.06

72.83

659.22

9.86

5,994.16

9,880.58

129.01

306.21

57.61

2,080.15

6,413.33

128.84

(4.39)

2,995.38

1,550.15

29.76

301.82

57.61

5,075.53

7,963.48

158.60

11,842.48 4,830.35 16,672.83 8,986.14 4,570.90 13,557.04

Non- financial liabilities

Provisions

Other non-financial liabilities

16.86

383,42

54.88

4.07

71.74

387.49

11.12

294.03

40.16

0.34

51.28

294.37

400.28 58.95 459.23 305.15 40.50 345.65

«This spacehas been intentionally leftblank>^

FIRMREGNNO

123



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are inmillions ofIndian Rupees (i), unless otherwise slated)

44 Borrowing details

A. Debt securities as at 31 March 2024

Original maturity of loan
Face value

(amount)

Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures
10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

5,000

1,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

1,00,000

10,00,000

72 Months

72 Months

72 Months

60 months

60 months

48 Months

48 Months

36 Months

36 months

36 months

36 months

24 months

18 months

35 months

11 months

46 months

12 months

31 months

61 months

Commercial Paper

3 Months

3 Months

3 Months

3 Months

4 Months

5 Months

5,00,000

5,00,000

5,00,000

5,00,000

5,00,000

5,00,000

Date of

allotment

24-Sep-18
24-Sep-18
lO-Aug-22
20-Aug-20
26-Jul-21

15-Feb-22

15-Feb-22

31-Mar-21

05-Apr-21

06-Sep-21
28-Dec-21

20-Apr-23
18-Aug-23
Ol-Dec-23

12-Feb-24

20-Feb-24

26-Feb-24

28-Mar-24

15-Oct-22

15-Feb-24

19-Mar-24

22-Mar-24

27-Mar-24

19-Dec-23

19-Dec-23

Maturity

date

24-Sep-24
24-Sep-24
02-Aug-28
20-Aug-25
15-Jul-26

15-Feb-26

15-Feb-26

Ol-Apr-24
05-Apr-24
06-Sep-24
27-Dec-24

17-Apr-25
Ol-Feb-25

Ol-Oct-26

13-Jan-25

06-Dec-27

06-Mar-25

Ol-Oct-26

15-Oct-24

16-May-24
27-Jun-24

24-Jun-24

27-Jun-24

17-Apr-24
17-May-24

Rate of

interest

14.59%

12.67%

11.29%

13.05%

11.24%

14.71%

14.94%

12.30%

14.07%

12.07%

11.60%

14.25%

12.50%

11.00%

11.50%

13.73%

12.00%

11.00%

14.50%

12.25%

12.50%

12.50%

12.50%

12.50%

12.50%

Amount due

within one

year

150.33

300.66

9.45

0.00

352.24

78.46

78.45

363.43

316.09

245.71

125.92

36.16

147.06

106.45

125.67

8.10

252.52

68.97

62.50

150.00

250.00

175.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

3,703.15

♦The above amount is post considering the impact ofinterest paid in advance ofRs. 19.45 million for Commercial papers.
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Amount due

beyond one
year

585.00

0.05

0.03

222.75

222.75

214.38

183.87

750.60

131.03

2,310.47

Total

150.33

300.66

594.45

0.05

352.27

301.21

301.20

363.43

316.09

245.71

125.92

250.53

147.06

290.32

125.67

758.70

252.52

200.00

62.50

150.00

250.00

175.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

6,013.61

Security

details

Book debts
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Debt securities as at 31 March 2023

Original Maturity of Loan Face Value

Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures

72 Months

72 Months

72 Months

60 months

60 months

48 Months

36 Months

36 Months

36 Months

36 Months

36 Months

36 months

36 months

36 months

33 months

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

5,000

1,00,000

10,00,000

5,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,000

8,75,000

Date of

Allotment

24-Sep-18
24-Sep-18
10-Aug-22
20-Aug-20
26-Jul-21

15-Feb-22

17-Jun-20

19-Jun-20

17-JuI-20

15-Dec-20

31-Mar-21

05-Apr-21
06-Sep-21
28-Dec-21

25-Sep-20

Maturity Date

24-Sep-24
24-Sep-24

02-Aug-28
20-Aug-25
15-Jul-26

15-Feb-26

17-Jun-23

19-Jun-23

17-Jul-23

15-Dec-23

Ol-Apr-24
05-Apr-24
06-Sep-24
27-Dec-24

25-Jun-23

Rate of

Interest

12.06%

12.27%

10.75%

12.39%

10.70%

12.16%

12.75%

13.00%

12.00%

12.06%

12.30%

11.64%

10.85%

11.60%

12.40%
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Balance outstanding

Due within

one year

0.33

0.66

9.28

513.67

7.17

8.22

25.13

50.20

271.12

694.80

0.11

121.34

1.71

128.43

247.98

2,080.15

Due beyond

one year

150.00

300.00

585.00

0.05

345.00

594.00

354.00

300.00

244.00

123.33

2,995.38

Total

150.33

300.66

594.28

513.72

352.17

602.22

25.13

50.20

271.12

694.80

354.11

421.34

245.71

251.76

247.98

5,075.53

Security

Details

Book Debts
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B. Borrowings (other than debt securities) as at 31 March 2024

Due within one year Due beyond one year

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest No of
Amount

No of
Amount

instalments instalments

Monthly repayment of principal
15.20 0

36 Months 11.65% 3

36 Months 11.65% 4 20.80 0 "

25 Months 12.00% 11 36.89 0 •

24 Months 13.25% 12 151.32 0 "

18 Months 13.50% 9 79.41 0 -

24 Months 12.00% 12 50.39 6 25.00

30 Months 12.95% 12 178.20 12 177.25

24 Months 11.50% 12 124.03 8 89.77

24 Months 12.90% 12 142.17 11 147.08

13 Months 12.25% 12 99.97 0 -

13 Months 12.25% 8 13.44 0 -

13 Months 12.50% 11 174.40 1 15.83

16 Months 12.60% 1 61.46 0 -

16 Months 12.60% 3 102.23 0 -

91 Months 9.50% 9 37.52 0 -

91 Months 9.75% 4 18.38 2 9.17

Quarterly repayment of principal
37.83 036 months 11.50% 3 ~

40 months 11.60% 2 150.00 0 -

31 months 12.25% 4 125.00 1 31.25

15 months 12.95% 2 200.45 0 -

16 months 12.95% 2 180.11 0 "

Annual repayment of principal
75.52 1 73.58

48 months ECB - Note a) 10.91% 1

48 months ECB - Note a) 11.12% 1 45.31 1 44.15

Bullet Repayment of principal
10.66 1 332.64

37 months ECB - Note a) 11.18% 0

Half Yearly repayment of principal
0 3.39 8 624.00

67 months ECB - Note a) 12.50%

54 months ECB - Note a) 11.99% 1 78.81 7 547.35

24 months 5.25% 2 25.00 0 -

24 months 5.50% 1 50.00 1 50.00

^ months
i^xmonths

5.50%

4.50%

1

2

40.00

200.00

2

2

80.00

200.00

//•^
\cc FIRM NO l^ieidge Loan
CO

U-.
00396WKCOO IB

28 months 9.85% to 10.25% 377.44 -

/'/ 2,905.32 2,447.06

Total

15.20

20.80

36.89

151.32

79.41

75.39

355.45

213.80

289.25

99.97

13.44

190.23

61.46

102.23

37.52

27.55

37.83

150.00

156.25

200.45

180.11

149.10

89.46

343.30

627.39

626.15

25.00

100.00

120.00

400.00

377.44

5,352.38

Security details

Book debts and Cash Collateral
Book debts and Cash Collateral

Cash Collateral

Cash Collateral

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts and Cash Collateral
Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and corporate guarantee
of holding company
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Original maturity of loan Rate of interest
No of

instalments
Amount Security details

Bullet Repavment of principal

3 Months 13.00% 1 50.50 Book debts and Cash Collateral

Mnnthlv Renavment of Princioal

9 Months

9 Months

9 Months

9 Months

6 Months

12 Months

6 Months

7 Months

7 Months

6 Months

3 Months

12.75%

12.75%

12.75%

12.75%

12.50%

12.25%

12.60%

13.25%

13.00%

12.25%

12.75%

2

5

7

8

1

12

1

6

7

6

3

67.24

194.88

117.68

224.11

52.66

40.33

190.62

70.41

400.51

100.06

50.00

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Book Debts

Quarterly Repayment of principal
6 Months

6 Months

12.60%

12.90%

5

6

200.45

200.38

Book Debts

Book Debts

Pledge Loan

7 to 8 months 11.35% to 11.45% 181.75
Book debts and corporate

guarantee of holding company

Bill Discounting Facility
3 to 8 months 8.50% to 13.50% 1,468.88 Book debts

Factoring 12.50% Not Applicable 547.27 Book debts

III.OD backed bv FD 7.75% to 9.75% Not Applicable 412.14

4,569.87

Note:

a) ECB loan amount excludes forex restatement loss ofRs: 34.66 millions
b)The above amount excludes unamortised processing fees ofRs: 76.33 millions
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Borrowings(other than debt securities) as at 31 March 2023
l.Long Term

Original Maturity of Loan

Monthly repayment of principal
36 months

36 months

36 months

36 months

39 months

40 months

18 months

18 months

24 months

24 months

25 months

24 months

13 months

Quarterly repayment of principal
35 months

36 months

36 months

30 months

24 months

12 months

12 months

Annual repayment of principal
48 months

Bullet Repayment of principal
37 months

38 months

Half Yearly repayment of principal
24 months

24 months

Pledge Loan
13 to 20 months

Rate of

Interest

12.50%

11.80%

9.50%

14.50%

11.65%

11.65%

12.75%

12.25%

11.25%

10.60%

12.00%

13.25%

13.05%

11.75%

11.50%

9.75%

11.60%

14.50%

13.35%

13.75%

10.69%

11.18%

14.50%

5.25%

5.50%

7.75% to 8.75%

Balance outstanding

Security DetailsDue within one year Due beyond one year
TotalNo. of

Instalments
Amount

No. of

Instalments
Amount

6 38.77 0 38.77 Book debts

7 33.40 0 -
33.40 Book debts

12 50.00 9 37.50 87.50 Cash Collateral

1 5.30 0 - 5.30 Cash Collateral

12 67.20 3 15.20 82.40 Book debts and Cash Collateral

12 67.20 4 20.80 88.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

1

1

45.15 0 _ 45.15 Book debts

9.13 0 _ 9.13 Book debts

9 107.56 0 _ 107.56 Book debts

12 150.00 0 _ 150.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

12 36.18 11 36.60 72.78 Book debts

12

1

151.67 12 150.00 301.67 Book debts

11.19 0 -

11.19 Book debts

2 25.22 0
. 25.22 Book debts

4 50.77 3 37.50 88.27 Book debts

4 18.33 6 27.50 45.83 Book debts

4 300.00 2 150.00 450.00 Book debts

4 125.00 3 62.50 187.50 Book debts and corporate guarantee

2 75.44 9 _ 75.44 Book debts

2 176.01 0 -
176.01 Book debts

1 122.28 2 240.70 362.98 Book debts

0 10.56 1 358.43 368.99 Book debts

0 -
1 250.00 250.00 Book debts and corporate guarantee

2 25.00 2 25.00 50.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

1 50.00 3 150.00 200.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

464.41 -

464.41 Book debts and corporate guarantee

2,215.78 1361.73 3,777.50
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II.Short Term

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest
No of

instalments
Amount Security details

Bullet Reoavment of principal

12 months

12 months

12 months

9.30%

10.25%

11.00%

1

1

1

95.00

50.00

155.00

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

3 months 9.95% 1 500.00 Book debts and corporate

3 months 11.25% 1 50.00 guarantee of holding company

Monthlv Reoavment of Principal

12 months

12 months

14.50%

12.75%

1

5

9.16

417.71

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

12 months

6 months

6 months

6 months

12.70%

12.60%

13.40%

12.00%

6

3

4

6

113.33

201.38

201.12

601.51

First charge over all the current
Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Book debts and Cash Collateral

6 months

6 months

12.90%

11.60%

3

1

50.00

86.38 Book Debts and corporate

6 months 11.50% 6 500.00 guarantee Issuedby Holding

4 months 12.00% 3 150.00 company

3 months 12.25% 1 86.74

Pledpe IjOan

2 to 12 months 1 7.75to 8.75% 270.92 1 Book debts and corporate

Bill Discountine Facilitv

1 to 3 months 8.15 to 12.75% 365.57 Book debts

Factoring 7.85% to 10.05% Not Applicable 262.84

III.OD backed by FD 11.25% Not Applicable 50.12

4,216.79

Note:

a) The aboveamountexcludes unamortised processingfeesof Rs: 30.81 millions
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45 Related party disclosure

a> Names of related parties and relationship
Relationship Name of the related party

Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Director and CEO

Mr. Gurunath N - Director

Mr. Pravesh Sharma - Director of Subsidiary Company
Mr. Anuj VijayKumar Narang, Director of Subsidiary Company
Mr. Chittur Subramanian Ramakrishnan, Director of Subsidiary Company
Mr. Lalit Malik - CFO (Resigned w.e.f April 29, 2023)
Mr. Arunkumar Sridharan - Company Secretary
Mr.Suraj Vasudev Sharma-Company Secretary ofsubsidiary (w.e.f January 18, 2024)
Mr.Anand Subramaniam-CFO (w.e.f April 18, 2024)
Independent directors:
Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati
Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan

Mr. Thiyagarajan S , (Subsidiary Company)
Mr. Venkatesh Tagat (Resigned w.e.fSeptember 17, 2023 from Holding Company
but continued in Subsidiary Company)
Mr. Krishnan K (w.e.f 18 September 2023)
Mr. Hemendra Mathur, (Subsidiary Company)
Nominee directors:

Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan
Mr. Mahendran Balachandran

Mr. Akshay Dua
Ms. Rekha Unnithan(Resigned w.e.f November29, 2023)
Ms. Stephen Dongwon Lee (w.e.f November 30, 2023)

Key management personnel (KMP)

Related party transactions

Nature of transactions

Anil Kumar S G

Remuneration *

Gurunath N

Remuneration *

Anuj Vijay Kumar Narang
Remuneration *

Pravesh Sharma

Remuneration *

Salary deduction of Director (Loan recovery)

Mr. Lalit Malik

Remuneration *

Arunkumar Sridharan

Remuneration *

Sitting fees paid
Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati
Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan

Mr. Venkatesh Tagat
Mr. Krishnan K

Mr.Thiyagarajan
Mr. Hemendra Mathur

Year ended

31 March 2024

23.53

12.61

16.21

8.79

0.90

2.71

1.16

0.89

0.66

0.33

0.22

0.02

Year ended

31 March 2023

23.02

8.20

9.74

5.99

23.20

13.71

3.20

0.85

0.65

0.95

0.02

*The provision for gratuity and compensated absences is made on the basis ofactuarial valuation for all the employees of the Group
including the managerial personnel. Proportionate amount of gratuity and compensated absences is not included in the above disclosure
since the exact amount is not ascertainable.
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46 Additional Information on tne entities inciuaea in ine const iiuaieu iiiiaiieiai mmiciucuis

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 M arch 2023

Name of the entity in the Group

Net Assets i.e total

assets minus total

liabilities

As a percentage of
consolidated net assets

Net Assets i.e total

assets minus total

liabilities

As a percentage of
consolidated net assets

Parent / The Holding Company
Subsidiaries(Indian);

SamunnatiAgro SolutionsPrivate Limited
Samunnati Agri Innovations LabPrivateLimited (Formerly
"Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited")

Samunnati Finance Private Limited

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited

4,525.05

1,298.69

421.34

126.82

0.10

71.01%

20.38%

6.61%

1.99%

0.00%

3,425.20

1,147.25

(17.94)

25.33

0.24
A fon AO

74.78%

25.05%

-0.39%

0.55%

0.01%
t nnv.

6372.00

Year ended 31 March 2024

Name of the entity in the Group Share in profit or loss

As a percentage of
consolidated profit or

(loss)

Share in other

comprehensive income

As a percentage of
consolidated other

comprehensive income

Share in total

comprehensive income

As a percentage of
total comprehensive

income

Parent/ The Holding Company
Subsidiaries:

SamunnatiAgro SolutionsPrivate Limited
Samunnati Agri Innovations LabPrivateLimited (Formerly
"Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited")
Samunnati Finance Private Limited

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited

97.78

(103.06)

(74.62)
1.14

(0.34)

-123.62%

130.29%

94.34%

-1.44%

0.43%

(25.66)

(2.19)

(3.95)

/'II Qn\

80.69%

6.89%

12.42%

0.00%

0.00%

inn'/.

72.12

(105.25)

(78.57)
1.14

(0.34)

(110.90)

-65.03%

94.91%

70.85%

-1.03%

0.31%

100%

Year ended 31 March 2023

(79.10) 100% (Jl.oU) Iwu /O

Name of the entity in the Group Share in profit or loss

As a percentage of
consolidated profit or

(loss)

Share in other

comprehensive income

As a percentage of
consolidated other

comprehensive income

Share in total

comprehensive income

As a percentage of
total comprehensive

income

Parent/ The Holding Company
Subsidiaries:

Samuimati Agro Solutions Private Limited
Samunnati AgriInnovations LabPrivate Limited (Formerly
"Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited")

Samunnati Finance Private Limited

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited

(1,130.31)

(181.80)

(152.60)

0.20

(0.86)
(\ t7\

77.13%

12.41%

10.41%

-0.01%

0.06%

0.65

(0.06)

0.14

0.73

89.04%

-8.22%

19.18%

0.00%

0.00%

(1,129.66)

(181.86)

(152.46)
0.20

(0.86)
(1,464.64)

77.13%

12.42%

10.41%

-0.01%

0.06%
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47 Trade receivables ageing schedule
Outstandinc for followins period from due date of payment

Current

but not due
Less than 6

months

6 months -

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than

3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2024

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 3,286.79 274.41 - - - -
3,561.20

Undisputed Trade Receivables - whichhave
significant increase in credit risk

-

152.53 60.10 - - -
212.63

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - 359.63 0.27 161.89 67.00 188.04 776.83

DisputedTrade receivables - considered good - - - - - - -

Disputed Tradereceivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

. _ _ -

-

DisputedTrade receivables - credit impaired - - - -
- - -

Total 3,286.79 786.57 60.37 161.89 67.00 188.04 4,550.66

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(269.79)

Net Total
4,280.87

Current

but not due

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Less than 6

months

6 months -

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than

3 years

Total

As at 31 March 2023

Undisputed TradeReceivables - considered good 2,315.30 246.06 - - - -
2,561.36

Undisputed TradeReceivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

-
237.00 86.50 - -

-
323.50

Undisputed Tradereceivable - credit impaired - - -
86.27 6.38 128.91 221.56

Disputed Tradereceivables - considered good - - - - - -
-

DisputedTrade receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

- - - - - -
-

DisputedTrade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
-

Total 2315.30 483.06 86.50 86.27 6.38 128.91 3,106.42

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
(259.60;

Net Total
2,846.82

Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Not Due
Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than

3 years
Total

(i) MSME - - - - - -

fii^ Others 32.35 580.15 32.36 6.99 7.37 659.22

Ciii) Disouted dues - MSME - - - - -
-

fiv) Disouted dues - Others - - - - - -

Total 32.35 580.15 32.36 6.99 7.37 659.22

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Not Due
Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than

3 years
Total

(i) MSME - - - - - -

(ii) Others 3.47 277.53 8.05 8.54 4.23 301.82

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
-

fiv^ Disouted dues - Others - - - - -
-

Total 3.47 277.53 8.05 8.54 4.23 301.82

«This space has been intentionally leftblank>^
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions ofIndian Rupees (^). unless otherwise stated)

49 The Holding Company along with 2wholly owned subsidiaries and 1step down subsidiary has implemented cloud-based ERP from
April 01, 2023 and another wholly owned subsidiary has implemented cloud-based ERP from October 01, 2022. The cloud-based
ERP is on SaaS model. The cloud server is located outside India and service provider promises very high level ofserver uptime and
no data loss. As required by the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the back-up of the books of accounts shall be kept in servers
physically located in India on adaily basis. As the original application server is kept outside India, abackup of the books of accounts
needs to be taken on adaily basis and needs to be kept in servers in India for retrieval at any time. The Group has subscnbed for
certain functionality and the maintenance of the backup in India on adaily basis will be implemented from FY 2024-25.

50 Additional regulatory disclosures

a. The Group owns freehold land and the title deeds of the freehold land is held in the name of the Group.
b. The Group does not hold any investment property and hence the disclosure on fair valuation of investment property is not

applicable to the Group.

c. The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets and hence the
disclosure on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets is not applicable
to the Group.

d. The Group has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of book debts and cash collaterals. The
book debts are separately assigned to each borrower / financial institution and end use certificates are being filed with the
borrower / financial institutions.

e. No benami property are held by the Group and or no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

f. The Group has not been declared as awilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or any other lender.
g. The Group has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The Group has filed

the monthly statement of current assets with the banks and financials institutions and the following are the discrepancies

Name of Bank Month
Reported net
current assets

Actual net

current assets
Difference

HDFC Bank Jun-23 3,965.90 4,120.23 (154.33)

HDFC Bank Sep-23 3,684.30 3,739.29 (54.99)

HDFC Bank Dec-23 4,066.70 4,161.42 (94.72)

HDFC Bank Mar-24 4,558.00 4,402.46 155.54

ine UUICICIICC lUl UlC uiuuui iyicuvu.i.-r ..3 -

submission ofdata to the bank. The variances in the other months are due to non consideration ofadvance to suppliers while
submission to the Bank.

h. The Group has reviewed transactions to identify if there are any transactions with struck off companies. To the extent
information is available on struck offcompanies, no companies have been identified as struck offcompanies.

i. There is no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt / borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

j. The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on numberof Layers) Rules, 2017.

k. The Group has not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements and hence the disclosure on compliance with approved
scheme(s) of arrangements is not applicable to the Group.

1. Other than the transactions that are carried outaspart of Group's normal lending business:

A) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources oi
kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whethei
recorded in writing or otherwise) thatthe Intermediary shall -
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries)or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries,

EGNNO
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions ofIndian Rupees (?), unless otherwise stated)

B) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall -
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

m. There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during theyear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Also, there are nopreviously unrecorded income
and related assets.

n. TheGroup hasnot traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

51 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Codehas been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the
Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

52 The Holding Company has since issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 248 million on 09
May 2024. This Pre-Series E funding will beutilized bytheHolding Company towards expansion of its business.

53 Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform to the classification / disclosure
adopted in the current year.

As per our report of even date attached

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 003590S/S200018

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.: 025973

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Samunnati Financial Intermediatio^ry^j^rvices Private Limited

SCiAr

Director and CEO

DIN : 01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Arunkumar Sridharan

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7112

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Gurunath Neelamani

Whole-time Director

DIN :02799586

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

maniam

-CFO

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Samunnati Financial
Intermediation & Services Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
March 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "standalone financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit IWatters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed

Provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on loans
(Refer Note 5 and Note 25 to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements)

Financial instruments, which include loans to
customers, represent a significant portion of the total
assets of the Company. The Company has loans
aggregating Rs. 14,135.73 million as at 31 March
2024. The Company has made a provision for
impairment loss aggregating Rs. 325.33 million
against the loans outstanding to Customers as at the
balance sheet date. Due to the significance of the
judgments used in both classification of loans into

Read and assessed the Company's accounting
policy for impairment of financial assets and its
compliance with Ind AS 109 and RBI
regulations/circulars, the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors and tested the
implementation of such policy on a sample basis.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based
on their past-due status to check compliance with
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of
performing loans (stage 1) to assess whether any
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring
them to be classified under stage 2 or 3 or vice

Tel +91 44 28112985 to 88 • Fax +91 44 28112989. Email sands@pkfindia.inP^S^.^fflii^?
PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAMLLP# KRD Gee Gee Crystal# No.91-92 7th Floor. Dr.Radhakrishnan Salal* Mylapore. Chennai 600004

REGISTRATION NO. WITH ICAI - 003990S/S200018

flRMREGNNO
m3»os/s2;oo!8

135



various stages as well as the computation ofexpected
credit losses on such financial assets as per Ind AS
109, this has been considered as a key audit matter.

Management estimates impairment provision using
Expected Credit Loss model for the loan exposure
using criteria in accordance with Ind AS 109 which
also include considering the impact of RBI's
regulatory circulars. Measurement of loan impairment
involves application of significant judgement by the
management. These include:

(a) Segmentation of the loan portfolio into
homogenous pool of borrowers;

(b) Identification of exposures where there is a
significant increase in credit risk ('SICR') and those
that are credit impaired;

(c) Determination of the probability of default for each
of the segments identified; and

(d) Loss given default for various exposures based on
past trends / experience, management estimates etc.,

Note 2.5 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements explains the various matters that the
management has considered for developing this
expected credit loss model.

versa along with additional considerations applied
by the Management for staging ofloans as SICR
or default categories in view of Company's policy
on moratorium.

Tested the input data used for grouping and
staging of loan portfolio into various categories
and default buckets for determining the
Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given
Default (LGD) rates. Also, tallied the input data
with the underlying books of accounts and
records.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors.

Assessed and tested the inputs used in the
impairment computation (including the data
integrity of information extracted from the
Company's IT systems).

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. These reports are expected to be
made available to us after the date ofthis auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. When we read the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for Standalone Financial Statements
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters sta^d in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally t"^^
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and des^n, innplementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

Q &
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the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do
so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
asa whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks^and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or e
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
3\so responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal finan^
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability o
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists we are required to
draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the standalone
or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements
Including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with astatement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
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matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements _ . ^ u .u
1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far asit appears from our examination of those books. Please refer to the matters stated
in the Note 46 to the financial statements and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) o
the Act and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure B".

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us.

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 39 to the standalone
financial statements;

ii The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including denvative
contracts - Refer Note 15to the standalone financial statements;
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024; and

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ( Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropnate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

V. The Company has not paid/declared any dividend during the financial year. Accordingly,
reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

vi Relying on the representations/ explanations from the Company and based on our
examination which included test checks, the company has used an accouriting software for
maintaining its books of account which has afeature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software and we did not come across any instance of such audit trail feature being tampered
with The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) for the third party managed payroll
processing software and also at the database level to log any direct data changes in the
accounting ERP system could not be verified.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

Since the Company is a private limited company, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are
not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting on the compliance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act is not applicable.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registreti^n No.OO^^^^ZSl^

fi
V Kothandaraman
Partner

Membership No. 02_- _
UDIN: 24025973BKERHD1889

Place of Signature; Chennai
Date; May 28, 2024
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Annexure A

Referred to in paragraph 1on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of
even date to the members of Samunnati Financial Intermediation &Services Private Limited ("the
Company") on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024.

^^(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by ^ and
based on the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties including investment properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company as at Balance
Sheet date.

in respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and
disclosed as right of use assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements
are in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
or intangible assets during the year and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are ^^am^
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act,
1988 (45 of1988) and rules made thereunder.

a) The Company does not have any tangible inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the
Order are not applicable.

b) Based on our audit procedures &according to the information and explanation given to us the
Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees from banks or
financial institution on the basis of security of current assets and hence the question of filing quarterly
retums or statements by the company with such banks or financial institutions does not anse.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not made investments in, and granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties in respect of
which:

(a) The Company's principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(ii)
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(b) The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned loans and
advances in the nature of loans provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the Company's interest.

(c) in respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the Company, the schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Note 2.5 to the Standalone
Financial Statements explains the Company's accounting policy relating to impairment of financial
assets which include loan assets. In accordance with that policy, loan assets with balances as at 31
March 2024, aggregating Rs. 155.93 million were categorised as credit impaired fStage 3") and Rs.
677.77 million were categorised as those where the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition ("Stage 2"). Disclosures in respect of such loans have been provided in Note 5 to the
Standalone Financial Statements. Additionally, out of loans and advances in the nature of loans with
balances as at the year-end aggregating Rs. 13,302.03 million, where credit risk has not significantly
increased since initial recognition (categorised as"Stage 1"), delay in the repayment of interest and/or
principal in respect of loans aggregating to Rs. 722.29 million were also identified. In all other cases,
the repayment of principal and interest is regular. Having regard to the nature of the Company s
business and the volume of information involved, it is not practicable to provide an itemised list of loan
assets where delinquencies in the repayment of principal and interest have been identified.

(d) The total amount overdue for more than ninety days, in respect of loans and advances in the nature
of loans, as at the year-end is Rs. 334.82 million. Reasonable steps are being taken by the Company
for recovery of the principal and interest as stated in the applicable Regulations and Loan agreements.

(e) The Company's principal business is to give loans, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable.

(f) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment and hence the question of aggregate amount,
percentage thereof to the total loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters
related parties as defined in clause 76 of section 2of the Act does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to any director of the Company and hence
the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. The Company has complied
with the provisions ofSection 186as applicable.

(v) Based on our audit procedures &according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of the Act and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. No
order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any court or any other tribunal. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vi) The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under
sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vii)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Comipany examined
by us the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues as applicable
with the appropriate authorities.

FIRMREGNNO
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Name of the
Statute

Income Tax

Act, 1961

Income Tax

Act, 1961

Income Tax

Act, 1961

Income Tax

Act, 1961

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues were in arrears,
as at 31 IVIarch 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at 31 March
2024, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute,
except as stated below;

Nature of

the Dues

Income tax

and interest

Income tax

and interest

Income tax

and interest

Income tax

and interest

Amount

demanded

(Rs. in millions)

10.24

3.77

0.26

106.03

Amount paid
(Rs in millions)

2.10

0.80

21.21

Amount of

refund

adjusted*
(Rs in millions)

11.47

5.06

0.34

84.83

Period to

which

amount

relates

AY 2016-17

AY 2017-18

AY 2018-19

AY 2020-21

Forum where

dispute is
pending

Commissioner of
Income tax

(Appeals)
Commissioner of

Income tax

(Appeals)
Commissioner of

Income tax

(Appeals)
Commissioner of

Income tax

(Appeals)

*The Income Tax Department had adjusted the refunds of AY 2021-22 &AY 2022-23 against the demands
raised for AY 2016-17, AY 2017-18, AY 2018-19 and AY 2020-21.

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management,
no amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)

(a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or mpayment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution orgovernment orgovernment authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes,

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on f ^
obligations of its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
by us, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on P'̂ dge of securities held n^
subsidiahes. joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order
applicable to the Company.

(X)
(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/f^her public

Page 8 of 12
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offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made preferential
allotment or private placement of preference shares (fully or optionally convertible) during the year and
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and
the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(xi)

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the Act has been
filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government of India for the period covered by our audit.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received during the
year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not aNidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii)(a) to (c) ofthe Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details
of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

^ \a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(XV) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations giy^ to u^ ^
Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934) and the registration has been obtained.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations 9iven to us the
Company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with avalid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not aCore Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India and hence the questions of fulfilling criteria of a CIC, and in case the Company is an
exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to fulfill such criteria, do not anse. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(d) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, none
of the group companies are Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence the question of number of
CICs which are part of the Group does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. Nil in the financial year and Rs. 1,248.05 million in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is
not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date We however state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within aperiod of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(XX) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to spend the amount for corporate social responsibilities and Accordingly,
paragraph 3{xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.003990S/

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No. 025973
UDIN: 24025973BKERHD1889

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: May 28, 2024

firmregnno \2
C03990S/S2000ia
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Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) on 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report
of even date

Report on the internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) ofSub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Samunnati Financial Intermediation &Services Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the order y
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls w^h reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent aP '̂cable to an aud^
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financia
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
ACompany's intemal financial control with reference to financial statements is aprocess designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. ACompany s
intemal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

EGNNO
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Inherent Limitations ofInternal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls wi^th reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the intemal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.0039908^

V Kothandaraman
Partner

Membership No. 025973
UDIN; 24025973BKERHD1889

Place of Signature; Chennai
Date; May 28, 2024

^1 FIRUREGNNO
003990S/S2000ie
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024

(Allamounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, except sharedataand as statedotherwise)

Note
As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,143.12 935.83

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 653.90 218.08

Loans 5 13,810.40 10,448.04

Investments 6 3,409.56 2,679.90

Other financial assets 7 37.42 32.38

19,054.40 14,314.23

Non-nnancial assets

Current tax assets (net) 8 240.83 296.23

Deferred tax assets (net) 9 531.23 563.60

Property, plant and equipment 10 24.40 42.77

Right of use assets 10 4.07 13.61

Intangible assets under development 10 20.85 22,92

Other intangible assets 10 40.03 38,96

Other non-financial assets II 28.08 31.25

889.49 1,009.34

Total Assets 19,943.89 15,323.57

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial liabilities

Trade Payables 12

- Total outstandingdues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
-

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 25.88 46.97

small enterprises
Other Payables 12

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 9.86 4.39

small enterprises

Debt securities 13 5,733.75 5,075.53

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14 6,291.78 4,437.07

Other financial liabilities 15 94.76 89.07

12,156.03 9,653.02

Non-financial liabilities

Provisions 16 45.23 31.88

Other non-financial liabilities 17 53.87 37.21

99.10 69.09

Equity

Share capital 18 22.74 21.25

Other equity 19 7,666.02 5,580.21

7,688.76 5,601.46

Total liabilities and equity 19,943.89 15,323.57

Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes forman integralpart of the financialstatements.

As per our report of evendate attached

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP For andonbehalf ofthe Board ofDir^
Chartered Accountants Samunnati Financial IntermediaM!^ Servi^es^ivate Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.; 003990S/S200018

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.: 025973

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

0039505/S2C

[Anil
Director and CEO

DIN :01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Aft^nc^iArfavianiaiii
|p^FO

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Gurunath Neelamani

Whole-time Director

DIN :02799586

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

^runkumar Sridharan
Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7112

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in IndianRupees in millions, exceptshare data and as stated otherwise)

Note
Year ended Year ended

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue from operations

Interest income 20 2,036.00 1,884.03

Bad debts recovered 21 123.82 87.51

Net gain on fair value changes 22 33.12 -

Total revenue from operations 2,192.94 1,971.54

Other income 23 118.56 138.63

Total income 2311.50 2,110.17

Expenses

Finance costs 24 1,129.32 1,215.74

Impairment on financial instruments 25 158.37 1,370.72

Employee benefits expenses 26 425.93 481.47

Depreciation and amortization 27 47.30 49.32

Other expenses 28 299.09 290.29

Total expenses 2,060.01 3,407.54

Profit / (loss) before tax 251.49 (1,297.37)

Tax expense 29

Current tax -
5.03

Deferred tax 41.00 (318.60)

41.00 (313.57)

Profit / (loss) after tax for the year 210.49 (983.80)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurements of the defined benefit obligation (1.61) 0.88

Income tax relating to above items 0.41 (0.22)

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains and losses on Hedge Accounting (32.68) -

Income tax relating to above items 8.23 -

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (25.66) 0.66

Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 184.83 (983.14)

Earnings per equity share: after considering
Compulsorily convertible preference shares (face value Rs. 30

10/- per equity share)

Basic (Rs.) 93.31 (472.61)

Diluted (Rs.) 88.51 (472.61)

Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanyingnotes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 003990S/S200018

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.; 025973

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

FiRMREGM io

D359QS/S2C0313

For and on behalf of the Board of Dire

Samunnati Financial Intermediation

G Aiiif «tif«ar
Director and CEO

DIN :01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

ubrtmaniam

CFO

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

:e Limited

Gurunath Neelamani

Whole-time Director

DIN :02799586

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Arunkumar Sridharan

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F7112

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Statement of Audited Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions of IndianRupees (Rs.), unlessotherwise stated)

Particulars

A. Operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax

Adjustmentsfor:
Depreciation and amortization
Employee stock option expenses
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses
Loss/(Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Income from mutual funds

Income from debt funds

Interest expenses towards financing activities
Interest expense on lease liability
Unwinding interest of debt component of OCRPS
MTM gain booked on ECB loans
Fair Value Gain on CCD

Impairment on financial instruments

Bad debts written off

Amortisation of origination costs of borrowings

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes
Changes in working capital;
Loans

Other financial assets

Other non-financial assets

Net movement in provisions
Trade payables

Other Payables

Other financial and non-financial liabilities

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A)

B. Investing activities

Purchaseof property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Movement in capital advances

Movement in deposits with banks and financial institutions
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Interest income received on investments measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and at cost

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B)

C. Financing activities
Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
Issueof Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
Proceeds from debt securities

Repayment of debt securities
Repayment of principalportionof lease liability
Repaymentof interest portion of lease liability
Proceeds from borrowings other than debt securities
Repayment of borrowings otherthan debt securities
Interest paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

251.49 (1,297.37)

47.30 49.32

0.05 58.29

14.26 12.42

(0.50) (0.92)

(27.21) (35.66)

- (1.31)
1,057.24 1,137.39

0.98 1.72

3.37 1.03

18.77 8.00

(33.12) -

(687.94) 660.73

846.30 709.99

67.72 75.60

U07.22 2,676.60

1,558.71 1,379.23

(3,520.72) 662.50

(5.04) (8.05)

3.17 5.53

(2.52) (14.09)

(21.09) 5.09

5.47 (7.25)

(44.00) (21.55)

(2,026.03) 2,001.41

55.40 (125.37)

(1,970.63) 1,876.04

(30.65) (30.50)

12.75 1.96

(435.82) 60.87

(699.96) (17,155.16)

3.42 16,286.37

27.20 36,97

(1,123.05) (799.49)

1,505.79 800.00

417.87 399.99

3,770.58 585.00

(3,061.64) (810.80)

(9.71) (1.16)

(0.98) (1.72)

7,103.69 4,515.87

(5,316.70) (5,487.39)

(1,107.95) (1,130.88)

3,300.95 (1,131.09)

207.29 (54.54)

935.83 990.37

1,143.12 935.83
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Statement of Audited Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Allamountsare in millions of Indian Rupees (Rs.), unless otherwisestated)

Particulars

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
- Cash on hand

- Balances with banks in current accounts

-in deposit account (with original maturity up to 3 months)
Total

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Year ended

31 March 2024

1,143,12

1.143.12

Year ended

31 March 2023

935.83

935.83

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registnition No.: 0039908/8200018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Sei

V Kothandaraman

Partner

Membership No.: 025973

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

itector <

DIN :01189011

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

maniam

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

f^urunath Neelamani

Whole-time Director

DIN :02799586

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024

Arunkumar Sridharan

Company Secretary

Membership No.: F7112

Place: Chennai

Date: 28 May 2024
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (RsJ, unless olhemise stated)

A. Sharei-anital .

Particulars

Equity share capital
Compulsorily convertible

preference shares ("CCPS")
Total

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 5.74 5.74 17.64 16.84 23.38 22.58

Changes in Share Capital due to prior period errors
Issued during the year

"

; 1.50 0.80 1.50 0.80

Sub-total 5.74 5.74 19.14 17.64 24.88 23J8

Eauitv shares held under trust for employees under ESOP scheme (2.14) (2.14) - -
(2.14) (2.14)

Balance at the end of the vear 3.60 3.60 19.14 17.64 22.74 21.25

B. Other eauitv

Particulars
Statutory

Reserve

Securities

Premium

Stock Options
Outstanding

Capital

Redemption

Reserve

Equity Component
of Optionally

Convertible

Redeemable

Preference shares

(OCRPS)

Other

comprehensive

income

Retained

Earnings
Total

Balance as at 01 April 2022 40.59 5,755.45 262.32 0.07 -
5.07 (740.41) 5,323.09

Changes in accounting poUciesor prior period errors
Comprehensive income for the year
Premium on issue of shares

-

799.20

- -
-

0.66 (983.80) (983.14)

799.20

58.29

382.77
Employee stock options expense
Issued during the year

; ;
58.29

_ 382.77 - -

Balance as at 31 March 2023 40.59 6,554.65 320.61 0.07 382.77 5.73 (1,724.21) 5,580.21

Changes in accounting policies or prior period errors
Comprehensive income for the year
Premium on issue of shares

Transfer to statutory reserve 42.10

1,504.29

- -

-

(25.66) 210.49

(42.10)

184.83

1,504.29

0.05

396.64
Employee stock options expense
Issued dtu-ing the year

" •

0.05

_ 396:64 - -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 82.69 8,058.94 320.66 0.07 779.41 (19.93) (1,555.82) 7,666.02

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes forman integralpart of the fmancialstatements.
As per our report of even date attached

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summaryof standalone material accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions of IndianRupees ffj, unless otherwisestated)

1. Corporate information:
Samunnati Financial Intennediation & Services Private Limited ("the Company") (CIN:
U65990TN2014PTC096252) is a Company limited by shares and incorporated on 23 June 2014 under the
provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and domiciled in India. The debt securities ofthe Company namely non-
convertible debentures are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE"). The Company is engaged in
extending credit to secured and unsecured loans to farmers, farmer producer organizations, community-based
organizations and Agri-enterprises.

The Company had received the Certificate of Registration (Registration No. N-07.00815) dated 25 February
2016 from Reserve Bankof India("RBI")to carryon the business of Non-Banking Financial Company without
accepting public deposits ("NBFC-ND"). The company commenced active NBFI operations from the month of
July 2016. During March 2019, the Company had crossed the total assets threshold of INR 500 crores and had
become a Non-Deposit Taking Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC-ND-SI").
The Company isclassified under middle layer as perscale based framework applicable from 01 October 2022.

2. Summary of material accounting policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1. Statement of compliance with Ind AS and basis for preparation and presentation of financial
statements

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards aspertheCompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 asamended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guidance/ clarifications/
directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable.

The company has adopted Ind AS from April 01, 2020, Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting
Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

These standalone financial statements were approved by the Company's Board of Directorsand authorized for
issue on 28 May 2024.

2.2. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR' or 'Rs.') which is also the Company's
functional currency. Amounts lessthan the rounding off norms adopted by the Company are disclosed as 0. All
amountsare rounded-off to the nearest millions upto two decimal places, unless otherwise indicated.

2.3. Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basisexcept for certain financial instruments
which are measuredat fair values at the end of each reportingperiod as explained in the Accounting Policies set
out below.

The financial statements are preparedon a 'going concern' basis using accrual concept except for the cash flow
information.

2.4. Measurement of fair value changes

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has established policies and prwedures

I 0.
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of standalone material accounting policiesfor the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (?), unless otherwise stated)

with respect to the measurement of fair values. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included inLevel 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thatare notbased on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

2.5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Thekey assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were issued. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change dueto market changes or circumstances arising thatare beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Following areareas that involved a higher degree of estimation andjudgement or complexity indetermining the
carrying amount of some assets and liabilities.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active market
quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market
inputs andusesestimates andassumptions thatare,asfaras possible, consistent withobservable datathatmarket
participants would use in pricingthe instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its
best estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary from the
actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

Effective Interest (EIR) Method
The Company recognizes interest income/ expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature, requires an
element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life cycle of the instruments, as well as expected
changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credit Loss' model (ECL), for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair value through profit and loss.

Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
Expected Credit Loss, at each reporting date, is measured through a loss allowance for a financial asset:
At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses if the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

•z-
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Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of standalone material accounting policiesfor the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees (^), unless othenA/ise stated)

Lifetime expected credit losses means expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset.

12-month expected credit losses means the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on financial assets that are possiblewithin the 12months after the reporting date.

The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial assets credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making theassessment, the change in the risk of
a default occurring overthe expected lifeof the financial instrument is used instead of the change inthe amount
of expected credit losses.

For non-impaired financial assets (Stage 1 and Stage 2):

• Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a significant increase
incredit risk(SICR) since initial recognition. A 12-month ECL provision ismadefor stage 1financial assets.
In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
asset as at the date of initial recognition.

• Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial assets. In
subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then Company reverts to recognizing 12
months ECL provision.

For impaired financial assets (Stage 3):
Financial assets are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated future cash
flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Company recognizes lifetime ECL for impaired financial assets.

The loans are segmented intohomogenous product categories to determine the historical PD/LGD as per similar
risk profiles, this segmentation is subject to regular review.

As part of the regular review, in line with changes in loan portfolio and their repayment pattern, the Company
has revised the definition of stages, as under.

The loan portfolio are segmented into two broad categories i.e., Farmer Collectives and Agri enterprises.

Name of the Pool

of loan assets
Stage

Loans Days Past Due
(DPD)

w.e.fFY'23

Farmer Collectives

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Upto 60 Days

61 Days to 180 Days

More than 180 Days

Agri enterprises
Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Upto 60 Days

61 Days to 180 Days

More than 180 Days

The company has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments aremore than 30days(Stage 2)andthatdefault
occurs when a financial asset is 90 days past due (Stage 3).The risk profiling is determined for each business

fmREGt'l

154



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summaryof standalone material accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024
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vertical based on historical and market trends and directions from RBI including guidance for identification of
NPA in agricultural advances.

Estimation of Expected Credit Loss:

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Defauh is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon. The Company uses historical information to determine PD. Considering the different categories
of customers, loan type etc the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into five pools. For each pool of loan
assets, the PD is calculated using Incremental 30 DPD approach considering fresh slippage using historical
information.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,
considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and
interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued
interest from missed payments. Management had assumed thatthe outstanding balance as at each reporting date
(including interest and other components) as the exposure at default for purpose of computing the ECL.

LossGivenDefault (LGD)- The LossGivenDefaultis an estimateof the lossarising in the casewherea default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lenderwould expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral.

Tomitigate itscreditriskson financial assets, theCompany seeks to usecollateral, wherepossible. Thecollateral
comes in various fonns, such as land, building, books debts, securities, letters ofcredit/guarantees, etc. However,
the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. The fair value of the same is based on management
judgements.

Forward looking information - While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-
economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company
analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, benchmarkrates set by the Reserve
Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal
data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such
relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macroeconomic
trends reasonably.

Deflned benefit plans and other long term employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present value of such
obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that maydiffer fromactualdevelopments in future. Management believesthat the assumptions used
by the actuary in determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortalityrates and attrition rates are
reasonable. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, this obligation is highly
sensitiveto changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Income tax

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to
be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting date to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognized, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

FIRM REGN
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Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The rehable measure of the estimates andjudgements pertaining to litigations and the regulatory proceedings in
the ordinary course of the Company's business are disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact onthe Company and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.6. Revenue recognition

a) Recognition of interest income on loans

Interest income is recognized in Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method for all financial
instrumentsmeasured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVTOCI and debt instruments designated
at FVTPL. The 'effective interest method' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the
contract. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
asset.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets
other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the
effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and is no longer
credit impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

b) Interest income on investments

Interest income from investments is recognized when it is certain that the economic benefits will flow to the
company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

2.7. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses), less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Assets held for sale or disposals are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed separately
under other non-financial assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are not ready for its
intended use at the reporting date.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight-line basis in accordance with the useful lives specified in Schedule
11 to the Companies Act, 2013 on a pro-rata basis. Assets costing less than Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the
period of purchase.

Asset Classification Life in Years

Furniture and fittings 10

Office equipment 5

Computers and accessories 3

Vehicles 4-8

Leasehold improvements 5
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PPE is derecognized on disposal orwhen no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the net
carrying amount ofthe asset) is recognized in other income / netted offfrom any loss ondisposal in the Statement
of profitand loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

2.8. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets comprises of computer software which is amortized over the estimated useful life. The
amortization period is lower of license period or36months which isbased on management's estimates ofuseful
life. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets over
their estimated useful lives.

The Intangible assets are amortised within three years.

2.9. Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

2.10. Foreign exchange transactions and translations

a) Initial recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange ratesbetween the reporting currency
and a foreign currency on the transaction date.

b) Conversion
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated intothe functional currency usingthe exchange ratesat the dates
of thetransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of suchtransactions andfrom
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currenciesat year end exchange rates are
generally recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of
profitand loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement
of profit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as partof the fairvalue gain or loss. Thus, translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in profitor loss as
partof the fair value gainor loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments
classified as FVTOCI are recognized in othercomprehensive income. Non-monetary itemsthat are measured at
historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated at reporting date.

2.11. Financial Instruments

a) Recognition and initial measurements
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to theacquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
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liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in Statement of profitand loss.

b) Classifications and subsequent measurement of financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost;
- Fairvalue Through OtherComprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - debt instruments;
- Fair value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) - equity instruments; and
- Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Amortised cost

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of
aggregated portfolios being the level at which they are managed. The financial asset isheld with the objective to
hold financial asset in order to collect contractual cash flows as per the contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding. Accordingly, the Company measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and other financial
instruments at amortised cost.

FVTOCI - debt instruments

The Company measures its debt instruments at FVTOCI when the instrument is held within a business model,
the objective ofwhich isachieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and the
contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

FVTOCI - equity instruments
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the
Company's management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity instruments at FVTOCI, when
such instruments meetthedefinition of Equity under IndAS32 Financial Instruments andare notheld fortrading.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Companychanges its business model for managing financial assets.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interestmethod.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition is recognized in
Statement ofprofitand loss. Debtinvestment at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fairvalue. Interest income
under effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in Statement
of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Statementof profit and loss. For equity investments, the Companymakes
an election on an instrument-by-instrument basisto designate equity investments as measured at FVTOCI. These
elected investments are measured at fair valuewithgainsand lossesarisingfromchanges in fairvalue recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to Statement ofprofit and loss ondisposal of the investments. These investments inequity arenotheld for trading.
Instead, they are held for strategic purpose. Dividend income received onsuch equity investments are recognized
in Statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments that are not designated as measured at FVTOCI are designated as measured at FVTPL and
subsequent changes in fair valueare recognized in Statement of profitand loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including ^y interest
ordividend income, are recognized in Statement ofprofit and loss. NoN^tl
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c) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification of debt and equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets ofan entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by Company are recognized at the proceeds received. Transaction
costs of an equity transaction are recognizedas a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Otherfinancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost usingthe effective interestmethod. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gainor loss
on derecognition is also recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

d) Derecognition

Financial assets

TheCompany derecognizes a financial assetwhenthecontractual rights to the cashflows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows ina transaction inwhich substantially all of
the risksand rewards of ownership of the financial assetare transferred or in whichthe Companyneithertransfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial
asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

e) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

f) Write offs
Loansare written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against
such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.12. Employee benefits

a) Short- term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amountexpected to be paid if the Companyhas a present legalor constructive obligation to pay this amountas a
result ofpast service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. Y^\\
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b) Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and employees state insurance is
recognized in the Statement ofprofit and loss. The Company has no further obligation other than the contributions
made.

c) Gratuity
The Company's liability towards gratuity scheme is determined by independent actuaries, using the projected
unit credit method. The present value ofthe defined benefit obligation isdetermined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have terms approximating tothe terms ofthe related obligation. Past services are recognized at the earlier ofthe
plan amendment / curtailment and recognition of related restructuring costs/ termination benefits.

Thenet interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rateto the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense inthe Statement ofprofit and
loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains / losses, return on plan assets excluding
interest income are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss in the
subsequent period.

d) Leave encashment/ compensated absences/ sick leave.
The Company provides for theencashment / availment of leave with paysubject to certain rules. The employees
are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment / availment. The liability is
provided based onthenumber ofdays ofunutilized leave ateach balance sheet date onthe basis ofan independent
actuarial valuation.

e) Employee stock options
The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employee benefits
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. Thetotal amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options. The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received are allocated to share
capital up to the par value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share premium.

2.13. Finance cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective financial
instruments measured at Amortised cost. Financial instruments include term loans, fixed deposits mobilized,
debt instruments, commercial papers and subordinated debts. Finance costs arecharged to theStatement ofprofit
and loss.

2.14. Taxation - current tax and deferred tax

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and loss
except to theextent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in othercomprehensive income.

a) Current tax

Current tax comprises amount of taxpayable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year determined in
accordance withIncome TaxAct, 1961 andany adjustment to the tax payable or receivable inrespect of previous
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years. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying values ofassets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities and
assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected toapply in the period inwhich the liability issettled orthe
asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement ofdeferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequence that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference could be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction thataffects neither the taxable profit northe accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will beavailable to allow all orpart of the asset to berecovered.

2.15. Impairment of assets other than financial assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets at the end of each reporting
period, to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have impaired. Ifany such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from otherassets or group of assets.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimatedfuturecash flows are discountedto their presentvalue usinga pre-tax discount rate that reflectscurrent
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to beless than itscarrying amount, thecarrying amount oftheasset (orcash-generating unit) isreduced
to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of theasset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount such that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount thatwould have been determined ifno impairment loss had been recognized for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in Statement of
profit and loss.

2.16. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable thatanoutflow of economic resources will berequired from theCompany and amounts can
be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions are measured at the
estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at
the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for;
• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the

Company; or
• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation ora reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

161



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited
Summary of standalone material accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in millions ofIndian Rupees (€), unless otherwise stated)

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure ismade.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the
obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the
amount of the related provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow ofeconomic benefits is probable, the related asset
is disclosed.

2.17. Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period oftime in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identifiedasset
(ii) the Company has substantially all ofthe economic benefits from use ofthe asset through the period ofthe
lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of tlie lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements include theoptions to extend or terminate the lease before theend of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made ator prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates inthe country ofdomicile ofthese leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment tothe related right ofuse asset ifthe Company changes its assessment ifwhether it
will exercise an extension or a termination option.

2.18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inthe balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques and drafts on hand, balance with
banks in current accounts and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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2.19. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Earnings
considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting
preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
sub-division ofshares etc. that have changed the number ofequity shares outstanding, without a corresponding
change in resources. For the purpose ofcalculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders is divided by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period, considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number ofequity shares
thatcould have been issued upon conversion of alldilutive potential equity shares.

2.20. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Company is primarily engaged in financing agri businesses. The Company's
activity falls within a single primary business segment. The Company operates primarily in India and there is
no other geographical segment.

2.21. Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards and are effective
1 April 2023.

Material changes are in relation to the following:

(i) Disclosure of accounting policies — amendments to IndAS 1.
(ii) Definition of accounting estimates — amendments to IndAS 8.
(iii) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from asingle transaction —amendments to Ind AS 12.

The Company has evaluated the amendments and the impact is not material.

New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective: None

2.22. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence ofconditions that existed at the end ofthe
reporting period, the impact ofsuch events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after
the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

FIRMREGN.No,

/S200018
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Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

In current accounts
1,143.12 935.83

4 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money 653.90 218.08

653.90 218.08

Details of balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings

(i)

Maturity period of less than 12 months
Heldas collateral againstborrowings and securitization transactions 625.56 196.05

625.56 196.05

(ii)

Maturity period of more than 12 months
Held as collateralagainstborrowings and securitization transactions 28.34 22.03

28.34 22.03

653.90 218.08

5 Loans

(A) Term Loans at Amortised cost

Loans to Customers

Loans to Subsidiaries (refer note 43)

13,458.24

677.49

11,166.77

294.53

Less

Total Gross

: Impairment loss allowance
Total

14,135.73

(325.33)

11,461.30

(1,013.26)

13,810.40 10,448.04

(B) Secured / Unsecured Break-up

(i) Secured against tangible assets
Gross

Less: Impairment allowance

1,109.04

(57,25)

1,075.49

(83.69)

1,051.79 991.80

(ii) Secured against receivables

Gross
. _

Less; Impairment allowance

Unsecured

Gross

- -

(iii)
13,026.69 10,385.81

Less: Impairment allowance (268.08) (929.57)

12,758.61 9,456.24

Total (B) - (i) + (ii) + (iii) 13,810.40 10,448.04

(C) Loans in/ outside India

(i) Loans in India

(a) Public sector

(b) Others 14,135.73 11,461 30

14,135.73 11,461.30

Less : Impairment loss allowance
Total (i)

(325.33) (1,013.26)

13,810.40 10,448.04

(ii) Loans outside India

Less : Impairment loss allowance
Total (ii)

- -

- -

Total (C) = (i) + (ii) 13,810.40 10,448.04

Note: There is no loan asset measured at FVTOCI or FVTPL.

Summary of loans by stage distribution Gross Carrying

Amount

Impairment Loss
Allowance

Net Carrying
Amount

As at March 31, 2024

Stage I - Considered good
Stage 2 - Significant increase in credit risk
Stage 3 - Credit impaired
Total

13,302.03

677.77

155.93

126.43

6665

132.25

13,175.59

611.12

23.69

14,135.73 325.33 13,810.40

As at March 31, 2023

Stage 1 - Considered good
Stage 2 - Significant increase in credit risk
Stage 3 - Credit impaired
Total

10,647.71

154.61

658.98

11,461.30

347.21

31.28

634.77

1.013.26

9^^

10,300.50

123.33

24.21

10.448.04
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As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(A)

(i)

Particulars

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries carried at cost

In equitysharesof subsidiaries (Unquoted):
Investment in Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited
6,93,944 (previous year: 6,80,883) equity sharesof Rs 10each

Investment in Samunnati Agri Innovations LabPrivate Limited (formerly
knows as Kamatan Farmtech Private Limited )

2,53,44,844(previousyear:53,44,848) equitysharesof Rs.10each

Investment in Samunnati Finance Private Limited
1,25,00,000 (previousyear 25,00,000) equitysharesof Rs.lOeach

2,079.30

1,063.64

125.00

1,779.34

863.64

25.00

(B)

(i)

(C)

(i)

Investment In Samunnati Foundation

8,50,000 (previous year: 8,50,000) equity shares of Rs.lOeach

8.50 8.50

Investments carried at amortised cost;

Investments in Pass thorugh certificates - Unquoted -
3.42

Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Investments in Compulsorily Convertible Debentures - Unquoted

Investment in Ecozen Solutions Private Limited

7,614 (previous year; Nil) 0 01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ofRs6,566 82each
58.82 -

Investment in Connedit Business Solutions Private Limited
509 Inreviou.s vear Nlli 0 01% Comoulsorllv Convertible Debentures of Rs 10 each

74.30 •

Total value of unquoted invesments

Investments outside India

Investments in India

3,409.56 2,679.90

3,409,56 2,679.90

Total 3,409.56 2,679.90

Other financial assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits
Employee advances
Interest accrued but not due on deposits
Receivable from Group Company
Other receivables

9.93

5.35

20.23

1 91

10.32

3.90

0.06

18.10

Total 37.42 32.38

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net of provisions)
Total

240.83 296.23

240.83 296.23

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax 531.23 563.60

Total 531.23 563.60

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets / (liabilities):
Balance as at

April 01, 2023

(Charge) /

credit to

Statement of

profit and loss

(Charge)/credit to
OCI

Balance as at 31

March 2024

Fixed assets

Provisions for employee benefits
Impairment loss allowance
earned forward losses

(Gains) and losses on Hedge Accounting
Lease Liability

(1.10)

8.02

256.78

29626

3,64

(5.62)

2.95

(174.90)

140.50

(1.48)

(2.44)

0.41

8.22

(6.72)
11.38

81.88

436.76

6.74

1 20

Total 563.60 (41.00) 8.63 531.23

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets / (liabilities):
Balance as at

April 01, 2022

(Charge)/

credit to

Statement of

profit and loss

(Charge) / credit to
OCI

Balance as at 31

March 2023

Fixed assets

Provisions for employee benefits
Impairment loss allowance
Employee stock option expenses
Carried forward losses

Lease Liability

0,65

10.43

82 68

147.53

3.93

(1.75)

(2.19)

174.10

148 73

(0.29)

(0.22)

(1.10)
8.02

256.78

296.26

3.64

Total 245.22 318.60 (0.22) 563.60

FIRMREGN
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10 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Freehold Furniture and Office Computers Vehicles Leasehold Total Right of use Computer Intangible

land fixtures equipments and Improvements assets (ROU) software assets under

accessories development

Cost or Deemed cost

Balance as at 01 April 2022 2.31 8.31 12.15 34.99 28.66 22.37 108.79 28.64 49.28 27.68

Additions - 0.25 2.74 361 003 - 6.62 15.00 28.64 22 92

Disposals - (0.19) - (4.83) (267) - (7 69) (166) (16 59) (27 68)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 2.31 8.37 14.89 33.77 26.02 22.37 107.72 41.98 61.33 22.92

Additions - 0.16 1.29 0 72 - 0 59 276 - 20 37 2789

Disposals - (2.75) (1.24) (0.28) (11.91) (0 19) (16 36) - (0.28) (29.96)

Balance as at 31 March 2024 2.31 5.78 14.94 34.21 14.11 22.77 94.12 41.98 81.42 20.85

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2022 2.14 4.54 18.35 11.35 12.44 48.82 16.27 24.52 -

Additions 1.05 1 64 8 85 6.48 4.76 22 78 12 10 14.44 -

On disposals (0 12) - (4.59) (1 93) - (6.65) - (16 59) -

Balance as at 31 March 2023 3.07 6.18 22.61 15.90 17.20 64.95 28.37 22.37 -

Additions 1.04 1 91 7.09 4.43 3 99 18 46 9.54 19 30 -

On disposals / adjustments (1.38) (0.67) (0.35) (1098) (0.31) (13 69) - (0.28) -

Balance as at 31 March 2024 2.73 7.42 29.34 9.36 20.88 69.72 37.91 41.39 -

Net block

As at 31 March 2023 2.31 5.30 8.71 11.16 10.12 5.17 42.77 13.61 38.96 22.92

As at 31 March 2024 2.31 3.05 7.51 4.88 4.76 1.89 24.40 4.07 40.03 20.85

Intangible Assets under Development ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2024

Amount In Intangible Assets for a period of

Intangible Assets under

Development
Less titan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3

years
Total

Projects in Progress 2.78 0.97 17.10 . 20.85

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

Total 2.78 0.97 17.10 - 20.85

There is no project for which cost exceeded the budget or time over njn. There were no projects which is temporarily suspended as at 31 March 2024.

Intangible Assets under Development ageing Schedule as on 31 March 2023

Amount in Intangible Assets for a period of

Intangible Assets under
Development

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years
Total

Projects in Progress 5.66 17.26 - - 22.92

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

ToUl 5.66 17.26 - - 22.92

There is no project for which cost exceeded the budget or time over run. There were no projects which is temporarily suspended as at 31 March 2023.

166



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Notes to the standalone flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions,except share data and as stated otherwise)

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

22,54 19.59

2,66 7.88

2,88 3.78

28.08 31.25

25.88 46.97

25.88 46.97

9.86 4.39

12

I)
a)

b)

II)

a)

b)

Particulars

Other non-financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Prepaid expenses
Advance paid to Suppliers
Balances with government authorities
Total

Payables

Trade Payables
- Total outstandingdues of microenterprises and smallenterprises
- Totaloutstanding duesof creditors otherthanmicro enterprises andsmall enterprises

Total

Other Payables

- Total outstandingdues of microenterprises and smallenterprises
- Total outstanding duesof creditors otherthanmicro enterprises and smallenterprises

Total

(i) The classification ofthe suppliers under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ismade onthe basis ofinformation made
available to the Company

(ii)Disclosure requirement asrequired under Section 22 ofthe Micro, Small, &Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 isasfollows:

9.86 4.39

Particulars 31 March 24 31 March 23

i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid toeach supplier at the end ofeach accounting
year,

ii) Interest paid bytheCompany in terms of section 16of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act. 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

lii) Interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

iv) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
V) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest duesas
above are actually paid to the small enterprise

Trade Payables Ageing
Particulars

(i)MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

Trade Payables Ageing

Particulars

(i)MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Total

As at March 31, 2024

Unbilled Less than1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

15.65 10.23

1S.6S 10.23

As at March 31, 2023

Unbilled Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3years Total

3.47 43.00 0.41 0.09

3.47 43.00 0.41 0.09

25.88

25.88

46,97

46.97

13 Debt securities

At amotised cost

Secured:

Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures ( Refer note 33a ) 5,076.11 5,075,53

Commercial papers 657.64
-

Total 5,733.75 5,075.53

Debt securities In India 1,799.13 598,21

Debt securities outside India 3,934.62 4,477,32

Total 5,733.75 5,075.53

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

At amortised cost

(A) Term loans (secured) (Refer note 33b)
From banks - long term 273.90 1,048,67

From other parties 5,986.17 3,362,48

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 31.71 25,92

Total 6,291.78 4,437.07

Borrowings in India 4,440.20 3,705,01

Borrowings outside India 1,851,58 732,06

Total 6,291.78 4,437.07

14

Thereis nodefault as on 31 March 2024and31 March 2023 in repayment of borrowings andinterest in all the above categories of the borrowings,

-V £'•
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Particulars

15 Other financial liabilities

Lease liabilities

Employee related payables
Payable to subsidiaries
MTM Cost on ECB Borrowing

Liability component of OCRPS

16 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

17 Other non-financial liabilities

Statutory dues payable

Income Received in Advance

Car Deposits

«This space has been intentionally left blank»

As at

31 March 2024

4.75

23.76

26.77

39.48

94.76

24.69

20.54

45.23

34.77

19.10

53.87

c-r FIR!.

As at

31 March 2023

14.46

35.97

12.38

8.00

18.26

89.07

16.96

14.92

31.88

26.55

10.32

0.34

37.21
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No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

18 Share capital

Authorised

Equity shares of ? 10 each 7,50,000 7.50 7,50,000 7.50

Preference shares of ? 10 each 23.00,000 23.00 23,00,000 23.00

30.50 30.50

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

Fully paid-up

Equity shares of ? 10 each 5.73,861 5.74 5,73,861 5.74

Less: Equitysharesheldundertrust foremployees underESOPscheme (2,13.523) (2.14) (2,13,523) (2.14)
(refer note no 18(i))

Compulsonly convertible preference sharesof? 10each 19,14,399 19.14 17,63,819 17.64

22.74 21.24

Optionally convertible reedemable preference shares of ? 10each(Refernote 81,450 0 81 40,000 0.40
15 & 19)

0.81 0.40

a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares and amount outstanding
Issued, subscribed and paid-up

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,73,861 5.74 5,73,861 5.74

Shares issued dunng the year - - - -

Shares bought back during the year - - - -

5,73,861 5.74 5,73,861 5.74

Less: Equity shares held under trust for employeesunder ESOP scheme (2,13,523) (2.14) (2,13,523) (2.14)

Balance at the end of the year 3,60,338 3.60 3,60338 3.60

b) Reconciliation of number of Preference shares and amount outstanding

i) Compulsorily convertible preference shares
Issued, subscribed and paid-up;

Balance at the beginning of the year 17,63,819 17.64 16,83,819 16.84

Shares issued during the year 1,50,580 1.50 80,000 0.80

Balance at the end of the year 19,14,399 19.14 17,63,819 17.64

ii) Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:

Balance at the beginning of the year 40,000 0.40
- -

Shares issued dunng the year 41,450 0.41 40,000 0.40

Balance at the end of the year 81,450 0.81 40,000 0.40

c) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

S G Anil Kumar 2,38,257 41.52% 2,38,257 41.52%

Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust 2.13,523 37.21% 2,13,523 37.21%

Accel India V (Mauritius) Ltd 75,733 13.20% 75,733 13.20%

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each

Elevar M-Ill

Accel India V (Mauritius) Ltd

ResponsAbility Agriculture I, SLP

Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America

Accel Growth Fund V L P

Elevar I-IV AlF represented by its Trustee Vistra ITCL India Ltd
ResponsAbility Sustainable Food - Asia II

Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each
EE-FI AIF

d) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

4,21,522

3.84,949

3,66,594

2,66,730

1,10,075

1,48,957

1,22,000

81,450

22.02%

20 11%

19.15%

13.93%

5.75%

7.78%

6,37%

100.00%

4,21,522

3,84,949

3,66,594

2,66,730

1,10,075

1,48,957

40,000

23.90%

21.82%

20.78%

15.12%

6.24%

8.45%

0.00%

100.00%

31-Mar-24

Promoter Name Number of shares
Percentage of total

shares

Percentage change

during the year

Mr Anil Kumar S G 2,38,257 41.52% -
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31-Mar-23

Promoter Name Number of shares
Percentage of total

shares

Percentage change
during the year

Mr Anil Kumar S G 2,38,257 41.52%
-

g)

h)

There were no shares issued pursuant tocontract without payment being received incash, allotted as fully paid up by way ofbonus issues since incorporation
of the Company

The Company has acquired 100% stake in Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited ('SAIL'Xformerly known as "Kamatan Farm Tech Private
Limited") through a share swap on April 16, 2021 Pursuant to the agreement the Company has issued 67,624 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
('CCPS') to the equity shareholders of SAIL

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class ofequity shares having a face value ofRs, 10 per share. Each holder ofequity shares isentitled toone vote per share. The
Company shall declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders inthe ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend which can be approved by the Board ofDirectors. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution willbe in proportion to the number of equity sharesheldby the shareholders.

Terms and rights attached to preference shares
i) Compulsorily convertible preference shares

The Company has issued Series Al,A2, A3, B, C, D, D1 and Pre-Series Eseries compulsorily convertible preference shares having a face value ofRs. 10 per
share Atthe option ofthe holders, these shares, either inwhole orinpart, may beconverted into equity shares inthe ratio of 1:1 before the expiry of 19 years
from the issuance of such compulsorily convertible preference shares. Each holder of thecompulsorily convertible preference shares is entitled to onevote per
share Dividend oneach compulsorily convertible preference shares is0 01% per annum, subject tocash How solvency, and such dividend shall bea preferred
dividend In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of compulsorily convertible preference shares shall have a preference over other share
holders of the Company

ii) Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
The Company has issued Pre-Series EOptionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("Pre-Series EOCRPS") having a face value ofRs. 10 per share.
At the option of the holders of Pre-Senes E OCRPS, these shares, may be converted into Pre-Series E Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference
Shares("Pre-Series E CCPS"). The Pre-Series E OCRPS Conversion Ratio shall initially be 1:1 and shall be subject to adjustments as per the terms of issue
("Pre-Series E OCRPS Conversion Ratio") Theholders of Pre-Senes E OCRPS shall, at anytimepriorto 19(nineteen) years from the dateof issuance of the
same, be entitled to call upon the Company to convert all (and not less than all) of the Pre-Series E OCRPS in accordance with the Pre-Series E OCRPS
Conversion Ratio by issuing a Notice to the Company. ThePre-Series E OCflPS, if not converted earlier, shall automatically convert intoPre-Series E CCPS
at theapplicable conversion rate, (i)onthe latest permissible date prior to the issue of Shares to thepublic inconnection with theoccurrence of a Public Offer
under Applicable Law, or (ii)on theday following thecompletion of 19years from thedate of issuance of thesame. Theholders ofPre-Series E OCRPS shall
not beentitled to attend meetings of Shareholders of the Company and willnot beentitled to anyvoting rights pnor to conversion of the Pre-Series E OCRPS
into Pre-Series E CCPS Onlyso longas the Pre-Series E OCRPS havenot beenconverted to Pre-Series E CCPS, the holderof the Pre-Series E OCRPSshall
be entitledto seek redemption of all or anyof the Pre-Series E OCRPSat such IRRand withinsuchtimelines, as per the termsof issue.

Terms of conversion to equity

Amount of Equity

Series shares post
Date conversion

Conversion of CCPS into equity

Series A1 25 Feb 2034 0.99

Series A2 25 Jul 2034 1.26

Series A3 31 Mar 2035 0.61

Series B 25 Feb 2036 2.76

Series C 27 Dec 2036 5.60

Series D 23 May 2038 4.94

Series D1 15 Apr 2040 0.68

Pre-Series E I0 0ct2041 0 70

Pre-Series E I2 0ct2041 0.10

Pre-Series E 05 Apr 2042 1 34

Pre-Series E 27 Mar 2043 0.17

Conversion of OCRPS into equity

Pre-Series E 30 Nov 2041 0.40

Pre-Senes E 27 Mar 2043 0.41

19.96

i) The Company has given an interest and collateral free loan to Samunnati Employee Stock Option Plan Welfare Trust ("ESOP Trust") to provide financial
assistance for purchase of equity sharesof the Company underEmployee Stock Option Scheme. The Company has established the ESOP Trust to whichthe
stock options issuable have been transferred The Company treats ESOP tmst as its extension and shares held by ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares.
Own equity instruments that are re-acquired (treasury shares)are recognised at cost and deducted from Equitysharecapital(to the extent of face value)and
from Other equity (to the extent of premium on shares). (Also refer note 31).
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As at As at
Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Statutory Reserve

Opening balance 40.59 40 59

Add : Transfer from retained earnings 42.10 -

Balance as at the end of the year 82.69 40.59

Securities Premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year 6,554.65 5,755,45

Premium on shares issued during the year 1,504.29 799 20

Balance as at the end of the year 8,058.94 6,554.65

Employee stock options outstanding
Balance as at the beginning of the year 320.61 262.32

Additions during the year 0.05 58.29

Balance as at the end of the year 320.66 320.61

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 0.07 0.07

Add : Additions during the year - -

Less : Adjustments during the year - -

Balance as at the end of the year 0.07 0.07

Equity Component of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 382.77

-

Issued dunng the year 396 64 382.77

Balance as at the end of the year 779.41 382.77

Other comprehensive income

Balance as at the beginning of the year 5.73 5.07

Add : Other comprehensive Income for the year (25.66) 0.66

Balance as at the end of the year (19.93) 5.73

Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year (1,724.21) (740.41)

Add : Comprehensive income for the year 210.49 (983.80)

Less: Transfer to statutory reserve (42.10) -

Balance as at the end of the year (1,555.82) (1,724.21)

Total other equity 7,666.02 5,580.21

Description of the nature and purpose of other equity

Statutory reserve

Reserve fund is createdas per the termsof section45-IC(l) of the Reserve Bankof IndiaAct, 1934as a statutory reserve. An amountequalto 20% of profits
after tax is transferred to this reserve every year This is a restricted reserve and any appropriation from this reserve can only be made after prior approval from
RBI

Impairment Reserve

The excess provision held on the date of transition as per IRAC norms of the Reserve Bank of India are held separately as impairment reserve as per RBI
circular.

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares This amount can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2013

Employee stock options outstanding
The employee stock options outstanding represents amount of reserve created by recognition of compensation cost at grant date fair value on stock options
vested but not exercised by employees and unvested stock options in the Statement of profit and loss in respect of equity-settled share options granted to the
eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries m pursuance of the Employee Stock Option Plan.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve is created as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the shares bought back by the Company.

Other comprehensive income

Represents remeasurementof defined benefit liabilitywhich comprises of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liabilities and income tax impact thereon

Retained earnings

Retained earnings or accumulated surplus/ (loss) represents total of all profits/ (losses) retained since Company's inception Retained earnings are credited
with current year profits, reduced by losses,if any,dividendpay-outs, transfersto General reserveor any such other appropriations to specific reserves.

Equity component of OCRPS

Represents Equity Component of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares, In accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation,
the equity componentof OCRPS is classifiedseparately from the liability component. The initial carryingamount of the equity component is determinedby
deducting the fair value of the liabilitycomponent from the fair value of the entire financial instrument.
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Note Particulars
Year ended

31 Mar 2024

Year ended

31 Mar 2023

20 Interest income

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on receivables from financing activity 1,912.34 1,702.9

Income from investment in Pass Through Certificates 0.02 10.9

Interest income on fixed deposits 9.76 16.4

Interest income on security deposits held with Lenders 38.07 15.1

On loan to subsidiary ( refer note no 43b ) 75.81 138.6

2,036.00 1,884.0

21 Bad debts recovered

Recovery of defaults in loan serviced 123.82 87.5

123.82 87.5

22 Net gain on fair value changes
Unrealised Gain on Fair Value Changes (FVTPL) 33.12 -

33.12 -

23 Other income

Income from share of expenses 17.28 2L5

Income from Debt fund investments - 1.3

Income from mutual fund investments 27.21 35.€

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 2.20 O.S

Interest on income tax refund 10.67 -

Other income 61.21 19.7

118.56 i38.e

24

25

Finance costs

At financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings

- term loans from banks 82.76 198.3

- cash credits and overdraft from banks 3.23 0.1

- term loans from others 397.92 322.1

Interest expense on Debentures 573.34 616.'/

Other borrowing costs 67.72 75.6

Unwinding interest of OCRPS 3.37 l.C

Interest expenses on lease liabilities 0.98 1."

1,129.32 1,215."!

Impairment on financial instruments

At amortised cost

Impairment loss allowance on loans (687.94) 660.7

Loans written off 846.31 709.9

158.37
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Note Particulars
Year ended

31 Mar 2024

Year ended

31 Mar 2023

26 Employee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Employee stock option expenses ( refer note no 31 )
Gratuity and leave encashment expenses ( refer note no 32 )
Staff welfare expenses

27 Depreciation and amortization
( Refer Note 10 )

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

28 Other expenses

372.92

15.93

0.05

14.26

22.77

425.93

18.46

9.54

19.30

47.30

380.0

15.2

58.2'

12.4

15.4

481.4

22.7

\2.V

14.4

49.3

Legal and professional charges 122.61 119.9

Service fee expenses 6.02 5.9

Technology and communication expenses 46.86 39.0

Membership and subscription charges 19.82 15.4

Travelling and conveyance 43.37 38.8

Insurance 1.52 1.9

Auditors remmuneration* 6.38 7.4

Repairs and maintenance - others 6.09 8.3

Rates and taxes 0.50 0.7

Rent 13.57 7.8

Printing and stationery 4.83 3.7

Power and fuel 4.04 4.3

Sitting fees 2.68 2.2

Marketing expenses 8.89 4.7

CSR Contribution - 7.8

Miscellaneous expenses 11.91 22.0

asBss

299.09 290.2

*Payments to auditors

Statutory audit 3.44 3.4

Limited review 1.65 1.5

Tax audif^ 0.22 0.4

Certification 0.20 0.2

Others 0.34 1.0

Out of pocket expenses 0.03 0.0

GST 0.50 0.8

Total 6.38 7.4

^(Previous year includes tax audit fees for FY 21-22 & 22-23)

«This space has been intentionaily left blank»
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Note Particulars
Year ended

31 Mar 2024

Year ended

31 Mar 2023

29 Income tax

a) Income tax recognized in statement of profit and loss
Current tax

In respect of current year
In respect of prior years

-

5.0

5.0

Deferred tax:

In respectof current year origination and reversal of temporary differences 41.00 (318.6

Total 41.00 (313.S

b) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
during the year:

Remeasurement of defined employee benefits 8.63 (0.2

Total income tax recognized in other comprehensive income 8.63 (0.2

30 Earnings Per Share (EPS) after considering compulsorily convertible preference shares:

Net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity shareholders Rs. in millions (Basic and
Diluted)

210.49 (983.8

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing basic EPS (in
numbers)

Weighted average number of CCPS used in computing basic EPS (in numbers)

3,60,338

18,95,437

3,60,33

17,21,29

Total weighted average number of shares used in computing Basic EPS (in
numbers)

Effect of potential dilutive equity shares (in numbers)
Weighted average number of equityshares used in computingdiluted earningsper
share (in numbers)

22,55,775

1,22,438

23,78,213

20,81,63

1,19,45

22,01,09

Basic EPS (Rs.) - face value of share Rs.lO each

Diluted EPS (Rs.) - face value of share Rs.IO each*

93.31

88.51

(472.6

(472.6

*Due to loss incurred for the year ended 31 March 2023, the potential equity shares are considered anti dilutive.

«This space has been intentionally left blank»
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31 Employee share based payments

ESOP 2015 Scheme

a) On September 08, 2015 , the Board ofDirectors approved and the Company adopted the "Employees Stock Option Plan 2015" (the "Plan") under which not more than 62,500 shares of
the Company's equity shares was reserved for issuance toemployees. In the Board meeting dated January 28, 2017, December 20, 2017 and April 29, 2019 additional shares of6,794
(nos), 70,368 (nos)and 115,000 (nos) respectively were added to thePlan, issued andallotted to ESOP Trust.

The opuons are to be granted to the eUgible employees as per the eligibihty criteria as determined by the Board ofDirectors. The share options vest in agraded manner over aperiod of1-
4 years andareexercisable within 2 months ofexercise event, failing which theoptions shall lapse.

On June 21, 2018, the Board of Duectors approved and the Company adopted the " Amendment tothe Employees Stock Option Plan 2015" (The Plan") The amendment pertains to
vesting period, exercise and grant ofoptions to new joiners The options to be granted to the eligible employees as per the ehgibility criteria as determined by the Board ofDirectors. The
share options vest inagraded manner over aperiod of1-4 years and are exercisable within 2months ofexercise event, failing which the employees shall have tohold ontill the next event
arises On May 24, 2019, the Board ofDirectors approved and the Company adopted the "Employees Stock Option Plan 2019" The amendment pertains tovesting period Vesting of
Options may now take place between three and four years in the manner, as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. On February 10, 2022 the Board approved
the Employees Stock Option Plan 2022 tobroaden the terms and conditions, includmg those onvesting, exercise, lapse, surrender, etc and the same was approved by the Company on
March 07, 2022

During die current yearboardof du-eaors did notapprove anyESOPto employees

Particulars

No of opHons
as at

31 March

2024

Weighted

Average Rate

No of options as
at

31 March 2023

Weighted
Average

Rate

Options outstanding at the beginningof the year 74,454 3.441 85,713 3.173

Granted during the year - - - -

Exercised during the year - • - -

Expired/ lapsed during the year (4,334) 11,224 (11.259)
•

Options outstanding at the end of the year 70,120 4,859 74,454 3,441

Options exercisable as at the end of the year 57,712 4,420 10,930 739

The weighted average remaining contractual life forthestock options outstanding attheend oftheyear was 365 days (previous year 191 days).

b) The fair value ofthe oprions granted isdetemiined on the dale ofthe grant using the "Black-Scholes option pricing model" with the following assumptions, ascertified by an independent

Particulars FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23

Fair market value of option on the date of grant 582.86 806.84 1,030.40 1,726.61 2,970.44 3,318.07 5,022.43
-

Exercise price range (weighted average) 10.00 319.00 618.00 1,484.45 3,203.50 7,500.00 13,059.77
-

Expected volatility {%) 60.29% 60.29% 60,29% 60.29% 60.29% 60.29% 56.98% 56.98%

Expected forfeiture percentageon each vestingdate - - - - - - - -

Expected option life (weighted average m years) 3.87 3.57 3.22 3.10 2.47 3.00 3.00 3.00

Expected dividends yield - - - - - - - *

Risk free interest rate {%) 7.55% 6.85% 6.66% 7.62% 6.81% 5.86% 6.80% 6.80%

Management Stock Option Scheme 2017

On December 20, 2017, die Board of Directors approved and dieCompany adopted flic "Management Stock Option Scheme 2017" hereitufter referred as the"Scheme". Under the
Scheme, 28,529 options were granted tothe promoter (Anil Kumar S G- Duector and CEO), vesting over 1year from the date ofthe grant. On April 29, 2019, the Board ofDirectors
approved and the Company adopted the "Management Stock Option Scheme 2019" Under the revised Scheme, 45,000 options were granted tothe promoter, vesting over 1year from the
dateof thegrant. Onthehappening ofany liquidity event asdefmed intheScheme, theNomination andremuneration committee hasthediscretion to provide cashless exercise.

Theweighted average remaining contractual lifeforthestock options outstanding at theendof dieyearwas0 days( previous year: 0 days)

Particulan

No of options

as at

31 March

2024

Weighted

Average Rate

No. of options as

at

31 March 2023

Weighted

Average

Rate

Options outstanding at the begmningof the year 45,000 2902 45,000 2,902

Granted during the year - - - -

Exercised during the year - - - -

Expired/ lapsed during the year - - - -

Options outstanding at the end of the year 45,000 2,902 45.000 2,902

Options exercisable as at the end of the period 45,000 2,902 45,000 2,902

The fair value oftheoptions granted isdetermined onthe date ofgrant using theBlack Scholes option pricing model widi thefollowing assumptions ascertified byanindependent
Fau market value of option on the dale of grant 2.939

Number of options granted 45,000

Exercise pnce range (weighted average) 3,753

Expected volatility {%) 60.29%

Expeaed forfeiture percwitage on each vesting date 0.00%

Expected option life (weighted average in years) 1

Expected dividends yield 0.00%

Risk free interest rate (%) 7.41%

Note; Smcedie MSOP shares issued on December 20,2017werevested beforethe dateof transition to IND-AS, the Company hasnot fairvalued suchgrants. Henceabovedisclosure is
not presented for the same,

ESOP 2022 Scheme

The Company has adopted die Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 duly approved by the Board ofDirectors ofSamunnati Financial Intermediation &Services Private Limited ("Company
")on08September 201 5 , and by die members ofthe Company onSeptember 08, 2015 vide anordinary resolution ; diereafter amended and adopted the Employee Stock Option Plan
2019 duly approved by die Board ofDirectors ofthe Company and the members ofdie Company widi effect from 24May 2019 ; further amended and adopted the Samunnati Employee
Stock Option Plan 2022 duly approved by dieBoard ofDirectors ofdieCompany and bydiemembers ofdieCompany widi effect from 07March 2022.
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Under the newly amended scheme, the Company granted 12.285 options tothe existing employees ofthe Company, based oncommitments made during FY 2022-23. Ofthe total grants
made. 2689 options were granted with accelerated vesting ofone year. These options were granted toexisting Senior Management team in lieu ofaportion oftheir fixed compensation
for the FY 2022-23 and were granted with effect from 01 April 2023 atan exercise price ofINR 10,000. The Company also awarded 9.596 options toitsnew employees aspart oftheir
offer commitmentwith effect from 01 April2023 at an exerciseprice of INR 10.000.

The Company had. in line with the RBI Norification No. RBI/2022-23/36 DOR.GOV.REC.No.29/18.10,002/2022-23 dated April 29. 2022 - Guidelines on Compensation of Key
Managenal Personnel (KMPs) and Senior Management ofNon-Banking Finance Companies, put in place aCompensation Policy for the KMPs and Senior Management ofthe Company.
As part ofthis framework, KMPs and other Senior Management identified as per the compensation policy shall be eligible for ESOPs aspart oftheir overall compensation. Under the new
compensalion framework, the Company will decide on the number ofperfonnance-based options to be granted under the ESOP component and these Options shall progressively vest
over a period of3 years and bealso subject tomalus and claw back provisions. These shall beapplicable from FY 2023-24.

Particulars

No of options

as at

31 March

2024

Weighted

Average Rate

Options outstanding at the beginningof the year - -

Granted during the year 12,285 10,000

Exercised during the year • -

Expired/ lapsed during the year (4,967)
-

Options outstanding at the end of the year 7,318 10,000

Options exercisable as at the end of the year 4,121 10,000

The fair value ofthe options granted is determined on the date ofgrant using the Black Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions as certified by an independent
valuer.

Fair market value of option on the date of grant 9,958

Number of options granted 12,285

Exercise price range (weighted average) 10,000

Expected volatility {%) 55,57%

Expected forfeiture percentageon each vestingdate 0.00%

Expected option life (weightedaverage in years) 4

Expected dividends yield 0.00%

Risk free interest rale (%) 7.32%

«This space has been inientionallyleft blank»
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32 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions, determined asa specified percentage of employee salaries, mrespect of qualifying employees towards provident
fund, which is a defined contribution plan TheCompany has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

In accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("The Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees The gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement (subject tocompletion of five years ofcontinuous
employment), death, incapacitation ortermination ofemployment that are based onlast dravm salary and tenure ofemployment. The Company does not
maintainany plan assetsto fund its obligation towardsgratuity liability

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to risks such as Actuarial risk. Liquidity risk. Market risk. Legislative risk. These arediscussed as
follows:

Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that arehigher than theassumed salary escalation will result into an increase inobligation at a rate
that is higher than expected

Variability in mortality rates: Ifactual mortality rates arehigher than assumed mortality rate assumption then thegratuity benefits will bepaid earlier
than expected. Since there is nocondition of vesting onthedeath benefit, theacceleration ofcash flow will lead to anactuarial loss or gain depending
on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates arehigher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then thegratuity benefit will bepaid
earlierthan expected. The impact of this willdepend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher inhierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some ofsuch
employees resign / retire from the Companytherecan be strain on the cash flows

Market risk: Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that hasa material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to
decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the government bonds and hence
the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date

Legislative risk: Legislative risk is therisk of increase in theplan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets dueto change in the legislation/regulation.
Thegovernment may amend thePayment ofGratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring thecompanies to pay higher benefits to theemployees. Thiswill directly
affect thepresent value of thedefined benefit obligation andthesame will have to berecognized immediately in theyear when anysuchamendment is
effective.

Details of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation are as follows
Year ended Year ended

L Amount recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current service cost 5.04 3.94

Net Interest cost 1.69 1 21

Total expenses included in employee benefit expenses 6.73 5.15

Year ended Year ended

M. Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive income March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Remeasurement (gains)/ losses:

Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in
- Experience adjustments 1.61 (0.88)

Total amount recognized in other comprehensive income 1.61 (0.88)

As at As at

III. Changes in the defined benefit obligation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 1696 17.21

Current service cost 5.04 3.94

Interest expense 1.69 1.21

Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising from changes in -
- Acquisitions 3.66

- Experience adjustments 1.61 (0.88)

- Disposals -
(4.00)

Benefits paid (4.27) (0.52)

24.69 16.96Closing defined benefit obligation
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IV. Net defined benefit obligation
Defined benefit obligation

Current portion of the above

Non current portion of the above

V. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undisconnted)
Within 1 year

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Years

Years 6-10

Years 11-15

Years 15+

VI. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

Discount rate (p a.)

Attrition rate

Rate of salary increase

In- service Morality rate

VII. Quantitative sensitivity analysis for input of significant assumptions on defined
benefit obligations are as follows

One percentage point increase in discount rate
One percentage point decrease in discount rate
One percentage point increase in salary growth rate
One percentage point decrease in salary growth rate
Ten percentage point increase in attrition rate

Ten percentage point decrease in attrition rate

b) Compensated absences

The company permits encashment of compensated absences accumulated by their employees on retirement, separation and during the course of
service. The liability in respect of the Company, for outstanding balanceof privilege leave at the balancesheet date is determined and provided on
the basis of actuarial valuation provided by an independent actuary The company does not maintain any plan assets to fund its obligation towards
compensated absences

Actuarial assumptions for compensated absences

I. Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

Discount rate (p a )

Rate of salary increase

Attrition rate over different age brackets

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

24.69 16.96

5.43 3.37

19.26 13.59

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

5.43 3.37

2.84 1.86

2.62 2.05

2.87 2.17

2.85 1.94

11.05 8.06

5.00 3.40

408 3.08

As at

March 31, 2024

700%

15 00%

7.00%

IAL2012-l4Uh

Year ended

As at

March 31, 2023

7.20%

15.00%

7.00%

lAL2012-14Ult

Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(1.11) (0.79)

1.22 0.87

1.23 0.87

(1.14) (0.81)

(0.23) (0.18)

0.23 0.18

Year ended

March 3M024

7.00%

7.00%

15.00%

Year ended

March 31, 2023

7.20%

7.00%

15.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, considers inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market

II. Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss
Included under gratuity and leave encashment expenses

III Net defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation

Current portion of the above

Non current portion of the above

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

7.53 7.27

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

20.54 14.92

590 4.41

14.64 10.51
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33 Details of security, repaymentterms and applicable interest rates on debt securitiesand borrowings
a) Debt securities

Original

maturity of loan

Face value

(amount)

Date of

allotment

Maturity
date

Rate of

interest

Amount due

within one year*

Amount due

beyond one
year

Total*
Security
details

Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures

72 Months 10,00,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 14.59% 150.33 - 150.33

72 Months 10,00,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.67% 300 66 -
300.66

72 Months 10,00,000 lO-Aug-22 02-Aug-28 11.29% 945 585.00 594.45

60 months 5,000 20-Aug-20 20-Aug-25 13 05% 0.00 005 0.05

60 months 1,00,000 26-Jul-21 15-Jul-26 11.24% 352.24 0.03 352.27

48 Months 10,00,000 15-Feb-22 15-Feb-26 14.71% 78.46 222.75 301.21

48 Months 10,00,000 15-Feb-22 15-Feb-26 14.94% 78.45 222.75 301.20

36 Months 10,00,000 31-Mar-21 Ol-Apr-24 12.30% 363.43 -
363.43

36 months 10,00,000 05-Apr-21 05-Apr-24 14.07% 31609 -
316.09

Book debts
36 months 10,00,000 06-Sep-21 06-Sep-24 12.07% 245.71 -

245.71

36 months 1,00,000 28-Dec-21 27-Dec-24 11 60% 125.92 -
125.92

24 months 10,00,000 20-Apr-23 17-Apr-25 14.25% 36.16 214.38 250.53

18 months 1,00,000 18-Aug-23 Ol-Feb-25 12 50% 147.06
-

147.06

35 months 1,00,000 Ol-Dec-23 Ol-Oct-26 11.00% 106.45 183.87 290.32

11 months 1,00,000 12-Feb-24 13-Jan-25 11.50% 125.67 -
125.67

46 months 1,00,000 20-Feb-24 06-Dec-27 13.73% 8.10 750.60 758.70

12 months 1,00,000 26-Feb-24 06-Mar-25 12.00% 252.52 - 252.52

31 months 1,00,000 28-Mar-24 Ol-Oct-26 11.00% 68.97 131.03 200.00

Commercial Papers

3 Months 5,00,000 l5-Feb-24 16-May-24 12.25% 15000 - 150 00

3 Months 5,00,000 19-Mar-24 27-Jun-24 12 50% 250 00 -
250.00

3 Months 5,00,000 22-Mar-24 24-Jun-24 12.50% 175.00 - 175.00

3 Months 5,00,000 27-Mar-24 27-Jun-24 12.50% 100.00 - 100.00

3,440.67 2,310.46 5,751.13

•The aboveamount is postconsidering the impact of interest paid in advance of Rs 17.38 million forCommercial papers.

Original Face value Date of Maturity Rate of Amount due
Amount due

beyond one
year

Total
Security

maturity of loan (amount) allotment date interest within one year details

Non Convertible Redeemable Debentures

72 Months 10,00,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.06% 0.33 150.00 150.33

72 Months 10,00,000 24-Sep-18 24-Sep-24 12.27% 0.66 300.00 300.66

72 Months 10,00,000 lO-Aug-22 02-Aug-28 1075% 928 585.00 594.28

60 months 5,000 20-Aug-20 20-Aug-25 12.39% 513.67 005 513.72

60 months 1,00,000 26-Jul-21 15-Jul-26 10.70% 7.17 345.00 352.17

48 Months 10,00.000 15-Feb-22 15-Feb-26 12.16% 8.22 594.00 602.22

36 Months 5,00,000 l7-Jun-20 17-Jun-23 12.75% 25 13 - 25.13

36 Months 10,00,000 19-Jun-20 19-Jun-23 13.00% 50.20 - 50.20 Book debts

36 Months 10,00,000 17-Jul-20 17-Jul-23 12.00% 271.12 - 271 12

36 Months 10,00,000 15-Dec-20 15-Dec-23 12.06% 694.80 - 694.80

36 Months 10,00,000 31-Mar-21 Ol-Apr-24 12 30% 0.11 354 00 354.1 1

36 months 10,00,000 05-Apr-21 05-Apr-24 11.64% 121 34 300.00 421.34

36 months 10,00,000 06-Sep-21 06-Sep-24 10.85% 1 71 244.00 245.71

36 months 1,00,000 28-Dec-21 27-Dec-24 11.60% 128.43 123.33 251.76

33 months 8,75,000 25-Sep-20 25-Jun-23 12.40% 247.98 - 247.98

2,080.15 2,995.38 5,075.53

^This space has been intentionally left blank>>

^IRMREGN
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33 DeUib of security, repayment terms and applicable interest rates on debt securities and borrowings

b) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

For balances outstanding as at 31 March 2024

Due within1one year Due beyond one year

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest No of
Amount

No of
Amount

Total Security detaiU

instalments instalments

Monthly repayment of principal
36 Months 11.65% 3 15.20 0 15.20 Book debts and Cash Collateral

36 Months 11.65% 4 20.80 0 20 80 Book debts and Cash Collateral

25 Months 12 00% 11 3689 0 36 89 Book debts

24 Months 13.25% 12 151.32 0 151.32 Book debts

18 Months 13,50% 79.41 0 7941 Book debts

24 Months 12 00% 12 50.39 6 25.00 75 39 Book debts md Cash Collateral

30 Months 1295% 12 178.20 12 177.25 355 45 Book debts

24 Months 11 50% 12 12403 8 89 77 21380 Book debts

24 Months 12 90% 12 142 17 It 147.08 289 25 Book debts

13 Months 12.25% 12 99 97 0 - 99 97 Book debts

13 Months 12.25% 8 13.44 0 . 1344 Book debts

13 Months 12.50% 11 174.40 1 15.83 190.23 Book debts

Quarterly repayment of principal

36 months 11 50% 3 37.83 0 37 83 Book debts

40 months II 60% 2 150 00 0 - 150 00 Book debts

31 months 1225% 4 125,(K) 1 3125 15625 Bnok debts

Annual repayment of principal

48 months ECB ♦ Nole a) 10,91% I 75.52 1 73.58 149 10 Book debts

48 months ECB - Note a) 11 12% 1 45 31 1 44 15 89 46 Book debts

Bullet Repayment of principal
37 months ECB - Note a) n 18% 0 1066 1 332.64 343 30 Book debts

Half Yearly repayment of prioctpal
67 months ECB - Note a) 1250% 0 3 42 8 624.00 627 42 Book debts

54 months ECB - Note a) 11 99% 1 78.81 7 547.35 626 15 Book debts and Cash Collateral

24 months 5.25% 2 25.00 0 25 00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

24 months 5.50% I 50.00 1 50 00 100 00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

24 months 5.50% 1 40.00 2 80.00 120 00 Book debts aid Cash Colialeral

24 months 4.50% 2 200 00 2 200,00 400 00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

IW.76 2,437 43«S.65

II. Shorl-tenn

Orifinal maturity oflOMi Rate interest
No of

inatafancnta
Amount

Bullet Repayment of principal

3 Months 11 13.00% 11 1 11 50.50 11
Monthly Repayment of Principal

9 Months 1275% 2 67.24

9 Months 12.75% 5 194 88

9 Months 12.75% 7 117 68

9 Months 12.75% 8 224 11

6 Months 12.50% 1 52.66

12 Months 12.25% 12 40.33

6 Months

7 Months

12.60%

13.25%

1

6

190.62

70.41
Book debts

7 Months 13.00% 7 400.51

6 Months 12.25% 6 100 06

3 Months 12.75% 3 50.00

Quarteiiy

6 Months < 12.60% 5 200.45

6 Months 12.90% 6 200.38

l^9^2

a) ECB loan amount excludes forex restatement loss orRs; 34.66 millioas
b) The above acnount excludes uiusnortised processing fees of Rs: 68.35 millioiis

FIRUREGN
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For balances outstanding as al March Ji, 2023

Due within1one year Due beyond one year

Rate of interest No of

insUbnents
Amount

No of

instahnents
Amoimt

Total Security details

Monthly repayment of principal
36 months 1250% 6 38 77 0 38 77 Book debts

36 months II 80% 7 33 40 0 - 33 40 Book debts

39 months 11 65% 12 67.20 3 15.20 8240 Book debts aid Cash Collateral

40 months 11 65% 12 67.20 4 20 80 88.00 Book debts and Cash Coilaieral

18 months 12.75% I 45 15 0 45 15 Book debts

18 months 12.25% I 9 13 0 9 13 Book debts

24 months 11.25% 9 107.56 0 . 107 56 Book debts

24 months 10.60% 12 15000 0 - 150 00 Book debts aid Cash Collateral

25 months 12.00% 12 36.18 11 3660 72 79 Book debts

24 months 13.25% 12 151 67 12 150.00 301 67 Book debts

13 months 13 05% 1 11 19 0 - II 19 Book debts

Quarterly repayment of principal

35 months 11 75% 2 25.22 0 25 22 Book debts

36 months 11 50% 4 50.77 3 37 50 88 27 Book debts

30 months 11 60% 4 300 00 2 150 00 450 00 Book debts

12 months 13 35% 2 75.44 9 75.44 Book debts

12 months 13.75% 2 176.01 0 - 17601 Book debts

Annual repayment of principal
48 months 10.69% 1 122.28 2 240.70 362.98 Book debts

Bullet Repayment of principal
37 months 11 18% 0 10.56 1 358,43 368 99 Book debts

24 months 5.25% 2 25,00 2 25,00 50.00 Book debts and Cash Collateral

24 months 5.50% 1 50.00 3 150 00 200.03 Book debts sid Cash Collateral

1352.73 1,184.23 2,737.00

11. Short-term

Original maturity of loan Rate of interest
No of

instalments
Amoimt Security dctaib

Bullet Reoavment of Drincipal

12 months

12 months

12 months

9.30%

10.25%

11.00%

1

1

1

95 00

50 00

155.00

Book debts and Cash Collateral

Monthly Repavmeot of Principal

6 months

6 months

12 months

6 months

12 months

12.60%

13 40%

12.75%

12.00%

14.50%

3

4

5

6

1

201.38

201.12

417.71

601.51

9.16

Book debts and Cash Collateral

IILOD backed bv FD Not Applicable

1,730.88

Note

a) The above amount excludes unamoitised processing fees of Rs: 30.il| miUions

003sm/s2000is
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34 Fair value measurement

34.1 Financial instruments by category

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Carrying value Carrying value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,143.12 935 83

Other bank balances 653.90 218.08

Loans 13.81040 10,448 04

Investments 3,276.44 2,679 90

Other financial assets 3742 32 38

18,921.28 14,314.23

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 25 88 46.97

Other payables 9.86 4.39

Debt securities 5,733 75 5,075.53

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 6,291 78 4,437.07

Other financial liabilities 94.76 89.07

12,156.03 9,653.03

The management assessed that fair value of above financial instruments measured at amortised cost approximate totheir carrying amounts largely due
to the shon-lerm maturities of these instruments

b) Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at 31 March 2024

Financial assets

Investments 133.12 133.12 - 133.12

As at 31 March 2023

Financial assets

Investments - ....

34.2 Fair value measurement hierarchy

The Company records certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair valueon a recurrmg basis The Company determines fair values basedon
the price it would receive to sellan asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability

The guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to each measurement are observable or unobservable.
Observableinputs reflectmarketdata obtainedfrom independent sources,while unobservable inputs reflect the Company's assumptionsabout current
market conditions The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measunng fair value

The Company determines fair valuesof its financial instruments according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1 - Valuation based on quoted market price: Financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that the
Company can access at the measurement date
Level 2- Valuation using observable inputs: Financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.
Level 3 - Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Financial instruments valued using valuation techniques
where one or more significant inputs are unobservable

35 Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversightof the Company's risk management framework. The
Company manages financial risk relating to the operations through internal risk reports which analyse exposure by degree and magnitude of risk.
These risks include market risk (including interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and exposure
limits is reviewed by the management on a continuous basis.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The
Company's exposureto credit risk is influenced mainlyby cash and cash equivalents,other bank balances, investments, loan assetsand other financial
assets The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk
controls.
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(b) Credit risk management

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make
payments within the agreed time period as per contract. The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal
credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company has established a credit quality review
process to provide early identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. The
Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on theassumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of
financial assets.

The Company providesfor expected credit lossbasedon thefollowing.

.\ssets covered Nature Basis of expected credit loss

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), other bank
Low credit risk

balances, investments and other financial assets

Loans Low credit risk 12 month expected credit loss

Loans Moderate credit risk Life time expected credit loss

Loans High credit risk
Life time expected credit loss or fully

provided for

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk
As at As at

Particulars Nature
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) Low credit risk 1,143.12 935.83

Bank balance other than above Low credit risk 653.90 218.08

Loans* Low credit risk 13,302.03 10,647 71

Loans* Moderate credit risk 677.77 154.61

Loans* High credit risk 155.93 65898

Investments Low credit risk 3,409.56 2,679.90

Other financial assets Low credit risk 37.42 32.38

(*) These represent gross carrying valuesof loans, without netting off impairment loss allowance

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) and bank deposits is managed by only investing in highly rated deposits of
banks across the country

Other financial assets

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits, employee advances, deposits with financial institutions, payment
receivableon securitisation, intereststrip assets and other receivables Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managedby monitoring the
recoverability of such amounts continuously

Loans

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems and appraisal process to assess the credit risk and
define credit limits of borrower, thereby, limiting the credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for the counterparties.
These processes include a detailed appraisal methodology, identification of risks and suitable structuring and credit risk mitigation measures The
Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts loan receivables that become past due and default is considered to have
occurred when amounts receivable become 60 days

The major guidelines for selection of the client includes;
I The client's income and indebtedness levels must be within the prescribed guidelines of Reserve Bank of India;
2. The client must possess the required KYC documents

3 The client must be engaged in some form of economic activity which ensures regular income;
4. Client must agree to follow the rules and regulations of the organisation and
5 Credit bureau check - In order to deal with the problem of over extension of credit and indebtednessof the client, the organisation undertakes credit
bureau checks compulsorily for every client. The credit bureau check helps the organisation in identifying clientswith poor repayment histories and
multiple loans

Credit risk exposure

(i) Expected credit losses for Tinancial assets other than loans
The Companyhavenot madeexpected credit losses for financial assetsother than loans.

Particulars
Cash and cash Other bank

Investments
Other financial

equivalents balance assets

As at 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount 1,143 12 653 90 3,409.56 37.42

Less: Expected credit losses - - - -

Net carrying amount 1,143.12 653.90 3,409.56 37.42
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Particulars
Cash and cash

equivalents

Other bank

balance
Investments

Other financial

assets

As at 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount

Less: Expected credit losses

935 83 218.08 2,679 90 32 38

Net carrying amount 935.83 218.08 2,679.90 32.38

(ii) Movement of carrying amount and expected credit loss for loans

Definition of default:

The company has rebutted the presumption prescribed under Ind AS 109 that the credit risk increases significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments aremore than 30days (Stage 2)and that default occurs when a financial asset is90days past due (Stage 3) Therisk profiling
is determined for eachsegmented loan portfolio mdicated below based on historical and market trends and directions from RBI including guidance
for identification of NPA in agricultural advances

Stage Loans Days past due (DPD)

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Upto 60 days

61 days to 180 days

More than 180 days

Credit Quality of Loan Assets

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2024

As at

March 31, 2023

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

13,302.03

677.77

155.93

10,647.71

154.61

658 98

Total 14,135.73 11,461.30

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances is, as follows;

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross carrying value of opening balances
New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and derecognised

Transfer to stage 1

Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3

Amounts written off

10,647.71

3,175.53

35.10

(302.54)

(253.77)

15461

351.37

(35.10)

302.54

(95.65)

658.98

(6.16)

349.42

(846.31)

Gross carrying value of closing balances 13,302.03 677.77 155.93

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Gross carrying value of opening balances

Adjustments to opening balances due to change in definition of default

11,731 86 767.04

(75.36)

334.89

142.79

Revised gross carrying value of opening balances
New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and derecognised

portfolio*

Transfer to stage 1

Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3

Amounts written off

11,731 86

(217.28)

255.39

(224.89)

(891 74)

(5.63)

691.68

(441.69)

(254.83)

224.90

(65.41)

(0.04)

477.68

(65.29)

(0.56)

(0.01)

957.15

(709.99)

Gross carrying value of closing balances 10,647.71 154.61 658.98

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3

ECL allowance - opening balances
New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and derecognised

portfolio*

Transfer to stage 1
Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3

Amounts written off

347.21

(161.29)

16.17

(64.05)

(11.61)

31 28

1.16

(16.17)

64.05

(13.67)

634.77

318.51

25.28

(846.31)

ECL allowance - closing balances 126.43 66.65 132.25
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As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

ECL allowance - opening balances 29.48 43.03 280.02

New assets originated during the year, netted off repayments and derecognised (0.55) (27.48) (44.57)
portfolio*

T ransfer to stage 1 0.64 (0.64)
-

Transfer to stage 2 (13.99) 13.99 -

Transfer to stage 3 (608 66) (44.64) 653.31

Impact of ECL on exposures transferred between stagesduring the year 945 92 47.07 388.57

Amounts written off (5.63) (0.05) (64256)

ECL allowance - closing balances 347.21 31.28 634.77

If the probability of default and loss given default increases or decrease by 100 basis point the expected credit loss will increase or decrease by Rs.
85 06 millions and Rs.(62.88) millions respectively (As at 31 March 2023: Rs.67 89 millions and Rs. (83.06)millions respectively).

♦Assets origmated during theyear hasbeen presented onnetbasis i e thecollections towards fresh loans hasbeen netted off

(c) Liquidity Risk Management;

Liquidity risk refers tothe risk that the Company cannot meet itsfinancial obligations asthey become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation. TheCompany maintains adequate reserves and banking facilities, and
continuously monitors theforecast and actual cash flows by matching maturing profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities inaccordance with
the approved risk management policy of theCompany periodically. TheCompany believes that the working capital (including banking limits not
utilised) and its cash and cash equivalentare sufficient to meet its short and medium term requirements.

Refer Note 33(a), 33(b) and 42 which details theCompany's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities withagreed repayment periods.
The contractual maturity is basedon the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay

(d) Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factor Such
changes in the values of financial insU-uments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity, andothermarket changes TheCompany
is exposed to two types of market risk as follows:

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company is subject to interest raterisk, principally because the Company lend to customers at fixed interest rates andfor periods that may differ
from our funding sources, while the borrowings are at both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods The Company assess and manage
the interestrate risk by managing the assetsand liabilities The Asset LiabilityManagement Committee ensuresthat all significantmismatches, if any,
are being managed appropriately The Company has Board approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy for managing interest rate risk and
policy for determining the interest rate to be charged on the loans given

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the changes in market interest rates on bank and other borrowings Below is the
sensitivity of profit and loss in interest rates.

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2024

Year ended

March 31, 2023

Interest sensitivity*

Interest rates - increase by 0.50% 22.54 4.59

Interest rates - decrease by 0 50% (22.54) (4.59)

* Holding all other variables constant

Price Risk

The Company's exposure to pricerisk is not material and it is primarily on accountof investment of temporary treasury surpluses in the highly liquid
debt funds for very short durations. The Company has a board approved policy of investing its surplus funds in highly rated debt mutual funds and
other instruments having insignificant price risk, not being equity funds/ risk bearing instruments

Foreign currency risk

The Companydoes not haveany unhedged foreign currencyexposureand hencedoes not have any foreigncurrencyrisk.

a &. S/l/y

FIRMREGN. No
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36 Capital management
The Company's capital managementobjectivesare
- to ensure the Company's ability to contmue as a going concern
- to comply withexternally imposed capital requirement and maintain strongcredit ratings
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

The Company's capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital soas to create value for its shareholders. The same is
done through a mix ofeither equity and/or convertible and/or combination ofshort term/long term debt as may beappropriate.

The Company determines the amount ofcapital required onthebasis ofoperations, capital expenditure and strategic investment plans. The capital
structure is monitored on the basis of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio

38

As at As at

Net debt to equity ratio March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Debt 12,025.53 9,512.60

Less: Cash and bank balances & other bank balances (1,797.02) (1,153 91)

Net debt 10,228.51 8,358.69

Total equity 7.688.76 5,601.46

Net debt to equity ratio (%) 133.03% 149.22%

Leases

As a lessee

a) Additions to right of use asset Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023

Leased premises -
15 00

b) Carrying value of right of use asset As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Right of use asset as on the opening date 13 61 12.37

Additions during the year -
15.00

Deletions during the year -
(166)

Depreciation charge for the year (954) (1210)
Balance as at the year end 4.07 13.61

c) Maturity analysis of lease liability
Contractual Undiscounted Cash Flows

Less than 1 year 3.88 10.71

One to five years 1 22 5.10

Total undiscounted lease liability 5.10 15.81

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 4.75 14.46

d) Amounts recognizcd in Statement of profit or loss Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest on lease liabilities 0.98 1.73

Depreciation charge for the year 9.54 12.10

Expenses relating to short-term leases 13.57 7.82

Operating segments
The Company has only one business segmentand geographical segment, since it is only into the business of loan financing and operates only within
India. Therefore, reporting under Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', is not applicable for its financial statements.

39 Contingent liabilities

Claims against the company not aciuiowledged as debts :
The Company had received orders from Income Tax Assessing Officer (AO) pertaining to AY 2016-17, AY 18-19 and AY 20-21 wherein certain
additions were made under section 56, section 68 and section 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company has obtained a stay on collection of the
demand provided below The Companyconsiders the claims to be erroneous and as not payable under the provisionsof Income Tax Act, 1961.

As at March 31. 2024

AY 2016-17 AY 2018-19 AY 2020-21

Amount of demand 10.24 0.26 106.03

Amount paid against stay 2.10 - 21.21

As at March 31. 2023

AY 2016-17 AY 2018-19 AY 2020-21

Amount of demand 10.24 0.26 106.03

Amount paid against stay 2.10 -
21.21
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40 Corporate Social Responsibility
TheCompany hasnot incurred any expenditure in thecurrent year (Previous year: Nil).

Details of amount spent towards CSR activities ;
a) Gross amount required tobespent bytheCompany during theyear isNil(previous year: Nil)

b) For the vear ended

Particulars
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023

In cash
Yet to be

paid in cash
Total In cash

Yet to be

paid in cash
Total

In construction/ acquisition
of any asset
On other ourooses

"

;
Rernnriliutinn nf movement in borrowings to cash flows from financing activities

Particulars March 31,2023 Cash flows (net)
Exchange

difference

Amortisation of

loan origination
March 31, 2024

Debt securities

Borrowines (other than debt securities)

5,075.53

4.437.07

658.22

1.786.99

-

67,72

5,733 75

6.291 78

Total 9,512.60 2,445.21 -
67.72 12,025.53

Particulars March 31, 2022 Cash flows (net)
Exchange

difference

Amortisation of

loan origination
March 31, 2023

Debt securities

Borrowines (other than debt securities)

5,301.33

5,300.64

(225.80)

(949.47) 45.10 40.80

5,075.53

4.437.07

Total 10,601.97 (1,175,27) 45.10 40.80 9,512,60

<This space has been mteniionally left blank>
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42 Maturity analysis of asset and liabilities

The table below shows thematurity analysis of assets andliabilities according to when they areexpected to berecovered or settled.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Within After
Tnfal

Within After
Total

12 months 12 months
1 oiai

12 months 12 months

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,143 12 - 1,143.12 935.83
-

935.83

Other bank balances 625 56 28.34 653.90 196 05 22.03 218 08

Loans 11,447 51 2,362 89 13,81040 5,69876 4,74928 10,448.04

Investments 133,12 3,276.44 3,409.56 3 42 2,676.48 2,679 90

Other financial assets 27.48 993 37 42 27.31 507 32 38

13,376.80 5,677.60 19,054.40 6,861.37 7,452.86 14,314.23

Non- financial assets

Current tax assets (net) - 240.83 240.83 - 296.23 296.23

Deferred tax assets (net) - 531.23 531.23 - 563.60 563.60

Property, plant and equipment - 24.40 24.40 -
42.77 42.77

Right of use assets - 4.07 4.07 - 13.61 13.61

Intangible assets under development - 20.85 20.85 - 22.92 22.92

Other intangible assets - 4003 40.03 -
38.96 38.96

Other non-financial assets 2318 4.90 28.08 25.70 5.55 31.25

23.18 866.30 889.48 25.70 983.64 1,009.34

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 25.88 -
25.88 46 97

-
46.97

Other payables 9.86 - 986 4.39 4.39

Debt securities 3,423.29 2,310.46 5,733.75 2,080.15 2,995.38 5,075.53

Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 3,882.40 2,409.38 6,291.78 3,26443 1,172.64 4,43707

Other financial liabilities 27.64 67.12 94 76 59.06 3001 89.07

7,369.07 4,786.96 12,156.03 5,455.00 4,198.03 9,653.03

Non- financial liabilities

Provisions 11.33 33 90 45.23 778 24.10 31.88

Other non-financial liabilities 49.80 4.07 53.87 36.87 0.34 37.21

61.13 37.97 99.10 44.65 24.44 69.09

This space has been intentionally left blank>

188



Samunnati Financial Intermediation & Services Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Allamounis are in millions ofIndianRupees (Rs.). unless otherwise staled)
43 Related party disclosures
a) Names of related parties and relationship

Relationship

Wholly owned subsidiaries

Step-down subsidiary

Key management personnel (KMP)

Entity in which KMP has significant influence

Name of the related party

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited
Samunnati Foundation

Samunnati Finance Private Limited

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited
Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited
Executive Director

Mr. Anil Kumar S G - Director and CEO

Mr. Gurunath Neelamani - Whole-time Director

KMP

Mr. Anand Subramannian - CFO (w.e. f 18 April 2024)

Mr. Lalit Malik - CFO (w.e.f 22 April 2022 to 29 May 2023)
Mr. Arunkumar Sridharan - Company Secretary (w.e.f. October 31, 2023)
Independent directors:

Mr. Narasimhan Srmivasan

Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati

Mr. Venkatesh Tagat (till 17 September 2023)

Mr. Krishnan K (w.e.f 18 September 2023)

Nominee directors;

Ms. Jyotsna Krishnan

Mr. Mahendran Balachandran

Mr. Akshay Dua

Ms. Rekha Unnithan (Resigned w.e.f from November 29, 2023)
Ms. Stephen Dongwon Lee(w.e.f November 30, 2023)
Samunnati ESOP Welfare Trust

b) Related party transactions

Nature of transactions
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited
Loans given 7,211.00 4,265.00

Loans repaid 7,155.00 5,465.00

Interest income on loans 56.59 133.04

Corporate guarantee provided / (withdrawn) (186.69) 2,199.23

Investment in equity shares (Non-current mvestments) 299.96 999.24

Income from subsidiary for shared services 17.28 21.49

Salaries and wages (deputation charges) 20.79 2.87

Samunnati Foundation

Investment in share capital - -

Loan repaid 5.82

Interest income 1.17

Loans given 19.67 1.10

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited
Investment in equity shares 200.00 50.00

Loans given 298.80 155.00

Loans repaid 2.50 69.75

Interest income 17.93 5.57

Samunnati Finance Private Limited

Investment in equity shares 100.00 -

Reimbursement of expenses - -

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited

Loans given 1.20 1.00

Loans repaid 1.00 -

Interest income 0.12 0,01

Mr. Anil Kumar S G

Remuneration * 23.53 23.02
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Nature of transactions
Year ended

March 31, 2024

Year ended

March 31, 2023

Mr. Gurunath Neelamani

Remuneration * 12.61 8.20

Mr. Arunkumar Sridharan

Remuneration * 2.71 3.20

Mr. Lalit Malik

Remuneration * -
1.98

Sitting fees paid
0.85Mr. Sunil Satyapal Gulati 1,16

Mr. Narasimhan Srinivasan 0.89 0.65

Mr Venkatesh Tagat 0.31 0.55

Mr. Krishnan K 0.33 -

* The provision for gramity and compensated absences is made on the basis of actuarial valuation for all the employees of the Company,
including the managerial personnel. Proportionate amount of gratuity and compensated absences is not included in the above disclosure,
since the exact amount is not ascertainable.

c) Balances at the end of the year

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024

As at

March 31, 2023

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited
Loans and advances (including mterest accrued)
Corporate guarantee provided by Company towards borrowings
Deputation cost payable

Other receivables

256.49

2,612.31

7.59

200.01

2,799.00

0.59

7.63

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited

Loans and advances (including interest accrued)

Deputation cost payable
Other receivables

404.12

0.01

1.56

92.41

17.80

Samunnati Foundation

Loans and advances (including interest accrued)
Other receivables

15.68

10.58

1.10

12.73

Samunnati Finance Private Limited

Other receivables 0.50 0.08

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited

Loans and advances (mcluding interest accrued) 1.20 1.01

<<77i« space has been intentionally left blank>>
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44 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, (asamended) issued bytheRBI

Liabilities side:

Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial
' ^company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures

-Secured

-Unsecured

(b)Deferred credits
(c)Term loans

(d)Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e)Commercial paper

(0 Public deposits
(g)Cash credit

Assets side:

As at

31 March 2024

Amount

outstanding

As at

31 March 2024

Amount overdue

4,950.44

125.67

6291.78

657.64

As at

31 March 2024

Amount

outstanding

2 ) Break up of loans and advances includingbills receivable(receivable from financing activity)
(a)Secured 1.05179
(b) Unsecured - includes loans to subsidiary 12,758.61

3 ) Break up of leased assetsand stockon hire and other assetscountingtowards AFCactivities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assets on hire

(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(,b) Loans other than (a) above

4 ) Break-up of Investments

Current Investments

Quoted

(i) Shares

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

(v) Pass through certificates

Unquoted

(i) Shares

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

(v) Pass through certificates

Long term investments

Quoted

(i) Shares

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

As at

31 March 2023

Amount

outstanding

5075.53

As at

31 March 2023

Amount overdue

4437.07

As at

31 March 2023

Amount

outstanding

991.80

9,456.24

3.42
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Unquoted

(i) Shares

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

(V) Investment in securitized assets

5 ) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in 2 (a) and (b) above ;

As at

31 March 2024

Amount

outstanding

3,276,44

133.12

As at

31 March 2023

Amount

outstanding

2,676.48

Category Secured Unsecured Total

1) Related parties

(a) Subsidiaries 677,49 677.49

(b) Companies m the same group - -

(c) Other related parties -
-

2) Other than related parties 1,051 79 12,081,12 13,13291

Total 1,051.79 12,758.61 13,810.40

As at 31 March 2023

Category Secured Unsecured Total

1) Related parties

(a) Subsidiaries 294,53 294.53

(b) Companies in the same group - -

(c) Other related parties - -

2) Other than related parties 991 80 9,161,71 10,153.51

Total 991.80 9,456.24 10,448.04

6 ) Investor group-wiseclassification of all investments(current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

As at 31 March 2024

Market value/
Book Value

Category (Net of Provisions)
Break up or fair

value or NAV

1) Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries 3,409.56 Not applicable

(b) Companies in the same group - -

(c) Other related parties - -

2) Other than related parties 0.00 0.00

Total 3,409.56 0.00

As at 31 March 2023

Market value/
Book Value

Category
(Net of Provisions)

Break up or fair

value or NAV

1) Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries 2,676.48 Not applicable

(b) Companies in the same group - -

(c) Other related parties - -

2) Other than related parties 3.42 3.42

Total 2,679.90 3.42

As at As at
7 ) Other Information

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties - -

(b) Other than related parties 334.82 681.06

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties - -

(b) Other than related parties 172.43 40.85

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
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S ) Capital to Risk Asset Ratio ('CRAR'):

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

CRAR (percent) 23.25% 20,18%

CRAR - Tier I Capital (percent) 17.63% 14.81%

CRAR - Tier II Capital (percent) 5.62% 5,37%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital - -

Amount rai.sed bv issue of oeroetual debt instruments - -

1 Investments
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Value of Investments

(i) Gross value of investments

(a) In India 3,409.56 2,679.90

(b) Outside India -
-

(ii) Provisions for impairment

(a) In India - •

(b) Outside India - •

(lii) Net value of investments
(a) In India 3,409 56 2,679.90

(b) Outside India " "

As at As at
Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Movementof provisionsheld towards depreciationon investments
(I) Opening Balance
(ii) Add : Provisions made durmg the year
(iii) Less: Write-off/write-back of excess provisions during the year
(IV) ClosmgBalance

10 ) Derivatives

1) Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS) (also includes currency interest rate swaps)

Particulars

The notional principal of swap agreements
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under
the agreements

Collateral required by the Company upon entering into swaps
Concentration of credit risk arismg from the swaps

The fair value of the swap book Asset / (Liability)

The above instrument is for hedging the External Commercial Borrowing in foreign currency

ii) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
The Company hasnotentered into any exchange traded derivative. TheCompany is notcarrying outany activity of providing Derivative cover to third
parties

iii) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
TheCompany hasa Treasury Risk Management Policy approved bythe Assets Liability Committee andtheBoard. Thispolicy provides the framework for
managing various risks including interest rate risk andcurrency risk Thepolicy provides foruseof derivative instruments in managing the risks

Quantitative Disclosures:

Foreign currency non-repatriate loans availed:

Particulars

(i) Derivatives (Notional principal amount) for Hedging

(li) Market to Market position

(a) Asset (+) Estimated gain
(b) Liability (-) Estimated loss

(iii) Credit exposure

(iv) Unhedged exposure

As at

31 March 2024

1,817.63

(26.77)

As at

31 March 2024

Currency

Derivatives

1,817.63

(26.77)

As at

31 March 2023

685,82

(8.00)

As at

31 March 2023

Currency

Derivatives

685.82

(8.00)

GN. No 13=-
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11 ) Disclosure related to securitisation
Durins the year, the Company has not transferred any loansthroughsecuritisation.

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2024

Year ended

31 March 2023

SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions
1. Number ofSPVs sponsored by theNBFC for securitisation transactions ason thedate ofthebalance sheet
2 Total amountof securitised assetsas per booksof the SPVssponsoredas on the date of the balancesheet
3.Total amount ofexposures retained bytheNBFC to comply with minimum retention requirement ('MRR')

Off-balance sheet exposures

First loss

Others

On-balance sheet exposures

First loss {cash collateral)

Others (credit enhancement)

Amount of exposures to securitisationtransactionsother than MRR
Off-balance sheet exposures

Exposure to own securitizations
First loss

Others

Exposure to third party
securitisations

First loss

Others

Exposure to third party
securitisations

First loss

Others ;

12 ) Details of flnancial assets sold to securitisation/reconstruction companies for asset reconstruction
The Company has not sold financial assets tosecuritisation/reconstruction companies for asset reconstruction inthe current and previous year.

13 ) Details of assignment transactions undertaken
There were no assets sold through assignmenttransactionsduring the current and previous year

14 ) Details of non-performing flnancial assets purchased or sold
The Company has notpurchased or soldanynonperforming financial assetsdunng thecurrentand previous year

Thisspace has been inleniionally left blank>
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15 ) Assetliability management maturity pattern of certain itemsof assetsand liabilities

Maturity pattern
Assets Liabilities

Advances Investments Deposits Total Borrowings*

1 to 7 days 97055 - 0 10 970 65 851.7!

8 to 14 days 524.94 - -
524,94 20.85

14 days to 1 month 1,944.39 - 300.00 2,244.39 267.76

1 - 2 months 2,283.58 . - 2,283 58 716.35

2 - 3 months 1,702 92 . 080 1,703.72 1,192 11

3 - 6 months 2,245.68 . - 2,245 68 2,586.04

6-12 months 1,973.81 - 239.17 2,212.98 1,588 99

1 - 3 years 1,807.16 - 113.83 1,920.98 3,451.12

3 - 5 years 593 02 133.12 -
726 14 1,297.24

> 5 years 89.67 - - 89.67 -

Total 14,135.73 133.12 653.90 14,922.75 11,972.16

♦Borrowingsdoes not include unamortized processing fees, interest accrued, mark tomargins on external commercial borrowings and interest paid on
commercial papers

Maturity pattern
Assets Liabilities

Advances Investments Deposits Total Borrowings*

1 to 7 days 616.73 9.95 626.68 194.22

8 to 14 days 388 86 2.17 391.03 9.13

14 days to 1 month 716 57 2.41 718.98 400 98

1 - 2 months 2,601.89 1.01 2.60 2,605.50 405.14

2-3 months 1,342 41 8649 1,428 90 580.33

3-6 months 1,515 09 1 13 1,516.22 2,521.12

6-12 months 1,634.52 93.77 1,728.29 1,252.90

1 - 3 years 1,349.61 22.03 1,371.64 3,59453

3-5 years 1,113 81 . 1,113.81 584.98

> 5 years 181.81 - 181.81 006

Total 11,461.30 3.42 218.14 11,682.86 9,543.39

♦Borrowingsdoes not include unamortized processing

Note:

i) Amounts overdue agamst standard assets are considered under 1 to 7 days bucket.
ii) Amounts overdue agamst non-performingassets are considered under 3 to 5 years bucket

16 ) Exposure to real estate sector
The Company does not have any direct exposures to real estate sector.

17 ) Exposure to capital market
The Company doesnothaveanyexposure to capital market as at 31 March2024and 31 March 2023.

18 ) Details of financing of parent company products
This disclosure is not applicableas the Company does not have any holding / parent company.

19 ) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded
The Company hasnotexceeded Single Borrower Limit(SGL)nor has exceeded the Group Borrower Limit(GBL).

20 ) Advances against intangible securities
The Company has not given any advances agamst the rights, licenses, authorisations, etc,

21 ) Registration obtained from other financial regulators
During the year Company has not obtained any approvals from other financial regulators.

22 ) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
As per Regulation 60(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Company had inadvertently delayed intimating the record date for interest
paymentof NCDs BSE has levied a fineof INR 11,800(incl tax) for non compliance(one day delayed filing).

23 ) Related party transactions
Refer note 43 for Related party transactions.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Instrument
Name of the

rating agency

Amount rated

(in millions)

Rating

assigned

Amount rated

(in millions)

Rating

assigned

Non Convertible Debentures CARE 450.00 BBS 450.00 BBB (stable)

Term loans (Long Term rating) CRISIL 3,000.00 BBB Stable 3,000.00 BBB (stable)

Term loans (Short Term rating) CRISIL 3,000.00 A2 Reaffirmed 3,000.00 A2

Commercial Paper CRJSIL 1,500.00 A2 400.00 A2

Non Convertible Debentures ( Short Term ) CRISIL 350.00 A2 350.00 A2

Non Convertible Debentures ( Long Term ) CRISIL 6,00500 BBB Stable 5,835.00 BBB (stable)
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25 ) Provisions and contingencies (shown under the head expenditure in Statementof profitand loss)

26 )

Particulars

Provision for depreciation on investments
Provision towards NPA

Provision made towards income tax

Provision for standard assets

Provision fordepreciation andamortisation on property, plant andequipment, rightof
use assets and other intangible assets
Provision for employee benefits (Gratuity and compensated absences)

Draw down from reserves

ReferStatementof Changesin Equityfor details relatingto draw down from reserves.

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2024 March 2023

162.39

162.94

47.30

14.26

321.58

5.03

339.15

49.32

12.42

27 ) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

ii.

Particulars

Concentration of advances

Total advances totwenty largest borrowers 3019 59 2,945,93
Percentage ofadvances totwenty largest borrowers tototal advances oftheNBFC 21 86% 28.20%

Concentration of exposures (undrawn limits not considered)
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers* 5,631.90 5,744.93
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to total exposure of the 34.29% 43.37%
NBFC on borrowers/ customers*

♦The totalexposure includes thecorporate guarantee givento the subsidiary company ReferNote43.

iii. Concentration of exposures
Total exposures totop four NPA accounts 146.45 217.58

iv. Sector-wise NPAs

Sector wise exposure and NPA is disclosed. Refer Note 45(3).

V. Movement of NPAs

Particulars
Year ended 31

March 2024

Year ended 31

March 2023

A Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.25% 0.39%
B Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening balance 681.06 473.92
b) Additions duringtheyear 831.67 891.86
c) Reductions during theyear 331.59 36.48
d) Write-offduringtheyear 846.31 648.23
e) Closing balance 334.82 681.06

C Movement of Net NPAs

a) Opening balance 40.85 172.86
b) Additions duringtheyear 748.92 40.80
c) Reductions duringthe year 617.34 172.82
d) Closingbalance 172.43 40.85

D Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 640.21 301.06
b) Provisions made during the year 82.75 851.06
c) Utilisation during the year 433.44 417.07
d) Write-back of excess provisions 127.12 94.84
e) Closingbalance 162.39 640.21

vi. Overseas assets

The Company does not have any overseasassets as at 31 March 2024 and March 31, 2023

28 ) There are no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 that are required to be consolidated

29 ) Customer complaints*

Particulars

i) No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
ii) No of complaints received during the year
iii) No. of complaints redressed during the year
iv) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year
*Based on the information available with the management and relied upon by the auditors

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2024 March 2023

30

28

2

FIRMREGN.No

22

22
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30 ) Public Disclosure on Liquidity risk Management

(i) Funding Concentration based onsignificant Counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

As at 31 March 2024

S.No.
Number of Significant

Counterparties
Amount

% of Total

borrowings

% of Total

liabilities

1 22 11,346 84 94.36% 92.43%

As at 31 March 2023

S.No.
Number of Significant

Counterparties
Amount

% of Total

borrowings

% of Total

liabilities

1 22 9,330.51 98.09% 95.97%

(ii) Top 20large deposits as at 31 March2024 and 31 March2023 (amountin
millions and % of Total Deposits)

(iii) Top 10borrowings( amount in millions and % of Total Borrowings)

As at 31 March 2024

Amount % of Total Borrowings

8,103 19 67.38%

As at 31 March 2023

Amount % of Total Borrowings

6,748.12 70.94%

(iv) Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product

As at 31 March 2024

S.No. Name of the instrument Amount
% of Total

liabilities

1 Cash credit - 0.00%

2 Commercial paper 657 64 547%

3 Non convertible debentures 5,076 11 4221%

4 Overdraft facilities - 0.00%

5 Short-term Loans 1,959 82 16.30%

6 Long-term loans 4,331.96 36.02%

Total 12,025.53 100.00%

As at 31 March 2023

S.No. Name of the instrument Amount
% of Total

liabilities

1 Cash credit - 0.00%

2 Commercial paper - 000%

3 Non convertible debentures 5,075.53 53 36%

4 Overdraft facilities - 0.00%

5 Short-term Loans 1,730.88 18 20%

6 Long-term loans 2,706.19 28.45%

Total 9,512.60 100.00%

Nil

A"'significant instrument/product" isdefined asa single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount
to more than 1% of the liabilities of the Company Total liabilitieshas been computedas Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve&
Surplus and computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines

(v) Stock Ratios

As at 31 March 2024

S.No Particulars % of Public funds
% of Total

liabilities

®/o of Total

assets

a

Commercial Paper as a % of total public funds, total liabilities
and total assets

5.47% 5.37% 3.30%

b

Non-convertible debentures (Original Maturity less than 1 year)
as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets Not applicable

Not

applicable
Not

applicable

c

Short Term Liabilities as a % of total public funds, total liabilities
and total assets

61.79% 60.63% 37.26%
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S.No Particulars % of Public funds
% of Total

liabilities

% of Total

assets

a

Commercial Paper as a % of total public funds, total liabilities
and total assets

Not applicable
Not

applicable

Not

applicable

b

Non-convertible debentures (Onginal Maturity less than 1 year)
as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets Not applicable

Not

applicable
Not

applicable

c

Short Term Liabilities as a % of total public funds, total liabilities
and total assets

57.81% 56.57% 35.89%

(vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity risk management

Nature of risk:

a) Liquidity risk arises from mismatches inthetiming of cash flows andloan collection defaults
b) Funding risk arises from:
i) Inability to raise mcremental borrowings to fund business requirement or repayment obligations
ii) When assets cannot be funded at the expected term resulting in cashflow mismatches
iii) Volatilemarketconditions impacting sourcingof funds from banks and moneymarkets

Measurement, monitoring and management of risk
Liquidity and funding risk is measured by
i) Identification of gaps in the structural and dynamic liquidity statements
ii)Assessment of incremental borrowings required formeeting therepayment obligation as well astheCompany's business plan in line with
prevailing market conditions

Monitored by:

i)assessment of thegap between visibility of funds and thenear term liabilities given current liquidity conditions andevolving regulatory
directions for NBFCs

ii) a constant calibration of sources of funds m linewithemerging marketconditions in banking and money markets
iii) periodic reviews by Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) relating totheliquidity position and stress tests assuming varied 'whatir scenarios
and comparingprobable gaps with the liquidity buffers maintained by the Company.

Managed by:

TheCompany's treasury team under theguidance of ALCO through various means like liquidity buffers, sourcing of long term funds, positive
asset liability mismatch, keeping stfongpipeline of sanctions and approvals frombanksand assignment of loans.

Executive governance structure- Management level Asset Liability Committee (ALCO): The Company's ALCO monitors Asset Liability
mismatches to ensure that there are no imbalances or excessive concentrations on either side of the Balance Sheet. The Company continuously
monitors liquidity in themarket. Asa partof itsAsset-Liability Management (ALM) strategy, theCompany maintains a liquidity buffermanaged
byan active investment to reduce this risk Ason31 March 2024, theCompany hasliquidity of Rs. 1143.12 millions. TheCompany maintains a
judicious mixof borrowings from banks, Agri Development Institutes, NBFCs and otherimpact investors and continues to diversify its sources
of borrowings This strategy of balancing varied sources of funds has helped the Company to maintain a healthy asset liability position and
contain interestrate movements. Duringthe financialyear 2023-24, the weightedaveragecost of borrowings movedup by 19 basis pointsdespite
volatile market conditions The Company continues to evaluate new sources of borrowing by way of new routes of funding like Commercial
Papers, NCDs, Market Linked Debentures,Special Liquidity Schemes of RBI etc.

<-'This space has been intentionally left blank> ~-
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Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

Asset

classification

as per

Ind AS 109

Gross Carrying

Amount as per Ind

AS

Loss Allowances

(Provisions) as

required under Ind
AS 109

Net Carrying

Amount

Provisions required
as per IRACP

norms

Difference between Ind

AS 109 provisions and
IRACP norms

Remarks

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=<4H6)

Performing assets

Standard
Stage 1 13,302.03 126.43 13,175.59 50.17 76.26 0-60 days

Stage 2 498.87 36.50 462.37 1.92 34.58 60 - 90 days

Subtotal 13,800.90 162.93 13,637.97 52.08 110.85

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 2 178.90 30.15 148.75 16.18 13.97 90- 180 days

Substandard Stage 3 155.92 132.25 23.68 15.21 117.04 More than 180 days

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3

1 to 3 years Stage 3

More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -

Subtotal for doubtful . - - - -

Loss Stage 3 - - - - -

Subtotal for NPA 334.82 162.39 172.43 31.39 131.00

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments,
etc. which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not
covered under current Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Stage 1 . - - - -

Stage 2 . . - - -

Stage 3
- - - - -

Subtotal - - - - -

Total

Stage 1 13,302.03 126.43 13,175.59 50.17 76.26

Stage 2 677.77 66.65 611.12 18.10 48.55

Stage 3 155.92 132.25 23.68 15.21 117.04

Total 14,135.73 325.33 13,810.40 83.48 241.85
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45 Additional disclosure pursuant to circular RBl/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated 19 April 2022 on
additional disclosures in fmancial statementsw.r.t. 'ScaleBasedRegulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework' for NBFCs

Section I

A) Exposure

1) Exposure to real estate sector
TheCompany does nothave any direct exposures to real estate sector.

2) Exposure to capital market
There isno exposure tocapital markets ason31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

3) Sectoral Exposure

Sectors

Current Year Previous Year

Total Exposure

(includes on

balance sheet

and off-balance

sheet exposure)

(Rs. Million)

Gross NPAs

(Rs. Million)

Percentage of

Gross NPAs to

total exposure in
that sector

Total Exposure
(includes on

balance sheet

and off-balance

sheet exposure)

(Rs. Million)

Gross NPAs

(Rs. Million)

Percentage of

Gross NPAs to

total exposure in
that sector

1. Agriculture and
Allied Activities

10,727.72 255.18 2.38% 7,915.80 340.14 4.30%

2. Industry 460.96 0.42 0.09% 478.57 -
0.00%

3. Services 1,349.91 12.04 0.89% 1,826.77 208.68 11.42%

4. Personal Loans 1,597.13 67.18 4.21% 1,240.15 132.24 10.66%

Intra-group exposures

Total amount of intra-eroiip exposures

Name of Group company
Loans Given

(Outstanding)

Investment in

Equity

Corporate

Guarantees

Samunnati Agro Solutions Private Limited 256.49 2,079.30 2,612.31

Samunnati Agri Innovations Lab Private Limited (tormerly
known as "Kamatan Farm Tech Private Limited")

404.12 1,063.64
-

Samunnati Foundation 15.68 8.50 -

Samunnati Finance Private Limited - 125.00 -

Samunnati Investment Management Services Private Limited 1.20 - -

677.49 3,276.44 2,612.31

jj) Total amount oftop 20 intra-group exposures (includes loans to subsidiaries,
investment in subsidianes and corporate guarantees given)

Percentage of mtra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on
iii) borrowers/customers (includes loans to subsidiaries, investment in subsidiaries and

corporate guarantees given)

Amount (Rs)

6,566.24

33%

5) Unhedged foreign currency exposure
The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure and hence does not have any foreign currency risk,

B) Related Party Disclosure
Refer note 43 for Related party disclosures.

C) Disclosure of complaints

1)Summaryinformation on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from theOffices ofOmbudsman

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaintspendingat beginningof the year - -

2, Number of complaints received during the year 30 22

3. Number of complaints disposed during the year 28 22

3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -

4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 2 -

FIRMREGN.No
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Particulars I Current Year Previous Year

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman

5. Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC
from Office of Ombudsman

5.00 3.00

5.1. Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC
by Office of Ombudsman

3.00 -

5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through
conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of
Ombudsman

- -

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards
by Officeof Ombudsman against the NBFC

- -

6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time
(other than those appealed)

- -

2) Top five grounds of complaints receivedby the NBFCs from customers

Grounds of complaints,

(i.e. complaints relating
to)

Number of

complaints

pending at the
beginning of the

year

Number of

complaints

received during

the year

% increase/

decrease in the

number of

complaints

received over the

previous year

Number of

complaints
pending at the
end of the year

Of 5, number of

complaints

pending beyond
30 days

1 2 3 4 5 6

Current Year

Loans and advances - 30 36.36 % increase 2 2

Total . 30 36.36 % increase 2 2

Previous Year

Loans and advances - 22 120 % increase - -

Total - 22 120 % increase - -

Section 11

A) Breach of covenant

There have been some breach of financial covenants during the year, however the Company has not classified any of its borrowings as
immediately due during the yeardue to such breach of covenants since the management is confident that there will not be any recall of such
loans based on their discussion with lenders.

45) The disclosures as required by the Master Direction - Monitoringof frauds in NBFCs issued by RBIdated September29,2016
During the year ended 31 March 2024, no fraud by the customer have been reported by the Company.

•' Thisspace has been intentionally left blank»
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45) (i) (a) Disclosures under Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as
Updated for the year ended 31 March 2024

Type of Restructuring Other than CDR and SME Debt Restructuring

Asset Classification details Standard Sub-standard Doubtful Loss Total

Restructured assets as on

01 April 2023

No of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

600

180 03

78,91

5 00

101 51

111.44

11 00

281 54

190.35

Fresh restructuring dunng the year

No.of borrowers

Amount Outstanding
Provision there on

616.00

1464

0.46

-

616.00

1464

0.46

Upgradations to restructured standard category during theyear
No.of borrowers

Amount Outstanding
Provision there on

- -
- -

Restructured standard advances which cease to attract higher
provisioning and/ or additional risk weight at theendofthe
financial year and henceneednotbe shov^ias restructured
standard advances at the beginning of the next financial year

No.of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

- - - -

Downgradation of restructured accounts duringthe year
No.of borrowers

Amount Outstanding - -
- -

45.78 -

45.78

Closure/Write off restructured accounts during the year
No.of borrowers 69.00

116 16

2.00

72,85 ;
71.00

189.01

Restructured accounts as on 31 March 2024

No.of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

553 00

124 29

22 73

300

28.66

13 81

-

556.00

152.95

36,54

DOR STR.REC 11/21 04 048/2021-22 dated 5 May 2021

(a) Disclosures under Systemically Importanl Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 201«, at
updated fortheyearended 31March 2023

Type of Restructuring

Asset Oassiflcation details

Restructured assets as on

01 April 2022

Fresh restructuring during the year

Upgradations to restructured standard category duringthe year

Restructured standard advances which cease to attract higher
provisioning and / or additional riskweightat the end of the
financialyear and hence need not be shownas restructured
standard advances at the beginning of the next financial year

Dov/ngradation of restructuredaccountsdunng the year

Recoveries during the year

Closure/Write off restructured accounts during the year

Restructured accounts as on 31 March 2023

No of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

No. of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

No of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

No.of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

No of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

No of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

No of borrowers

Amount Outstanding

Provision there on

Other than CDR and SME Debt Restructuring

Standard

13 00

350 39

35.69

2.00

92.09

600

180.03

78.91

Sulvstandard

2.00

23,24

4.09

2.00

5.00

101.51

111.44

Doubtful Loss

represents one time restructuring in accordance with notification no RBl/2020-21/16 EXDR No BP BC/3/21.04 048/2020-21 dated 6August 2020 and RBI/2021-22/31

Total

15.00

373.63

39.78

58.00

4.00

92.09

11.00

281.54

190.35
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46 The Company has implemented cloud-based ERP from April 01, 2023 which isonSaaS model. The cloud server is located outside
India and service provider promises very high level of server uptime and no data loss. As required by the Companies (Accounts)
Rules. 2014. the back-up of the books of accounts shall be kept in servers physically located in India on a daily basis. As the
original application server is kept outside India, a backup of the books of accounts needs to be taken on a daily basis and needs to
be kept in servers in India for retrieval at any time. The Company has subscribed for certain functionality and the maintenance of
the backup in Indiaon a daily basiswill be implemented from FY 2024-25.

47 Additional regulatory disclosures
a. The Company owns freehold land and thetitle deeds of the freehold land is held inthename of theCompany.

b. The Company does not hold any investment property and hence the disclosure on fair valuation of investment property is
not applicable to the Company.

c. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets and
hence the disclosure on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets is
not applicable to the Company.

d. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related
parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally orjointly with any other person that areeither:
(a) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifyingany terms or periodof repayment during the current year.

e. The Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of book debts and cash
collaterals. The bookdebts are separately assigned to each borrower / financial institution and end usecertificates are being
filed with the borrower / financial institutions.

f No benami property are held by the Company and or no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

g. The Company hasnotbeen declared as a wilful defaulter byany bank or financial Institution or any otherlender.

h. The Company has reviewed transactions to identify if there are anytransactions with struck off companies. To the extent
information is availableon struck off companies, no companies have been identified as struck off companies.

i. There is no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt / borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

j. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

k. Ratios

Year ended March Year ended
Particulars

31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) 23.25% 20.18%

CRAR - Tier I Capital (percent) 17.63% 14.81%

CRAR - Tier 11 Capital (percent) 5.62% 5.37%

The Company has not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements and hence the disclosure on compliance with approved
scheme(s) of arrangements is not applicable to the Company.

Other than the transactions that are carried out as part of Company's normal lending business:

A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall -
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannerwhatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provideany guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

B) The Company has not received any fund fi-om any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall -
(a) directlyor indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any marmer whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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n. Thereare no transactions which havenot been recorded in the booksof accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Also, there are no previously unrecorded
income and related assets.

o. The Company has not traded orinvested in Crypto currency orVirtual Currency during the financial year.

48 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Presidential assent inSeptember 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date onwhich
the Code will come into effecthas not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect
and will record anyrelated impact in theperiod the Codebecomes effective.

49 Subsequent Events
The Company has since issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 248 million on 09 May
2024. ThisPre-Series E funding will be utilized bythe Company towards expansion of itsbusiness.

50 Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform to the classification / disclosure
adopted in the current year.
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